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Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2023 2022
8Bz BHE
—E-=HF T
“A=+N\H Z—A=+NH
HFE EFE
RMB million RMB million Change
ARBBERT ARBEER b
Profit and Loss Highlights AERBE
Revenue I &= 413.2 569.0 (27.4%)
Consolidated (Loss)/Profit Attributable A Al & 15 5 A FE1G
to Owners of the Company e (BB af (50.3) 3.0
Basic (Losses)/Earnings per Share BEX(ER),&F
(RMB Cents) (ARER) (7.12) 0.42
Balance Sheet Highlights EEEERBE
Total Equity B 663.6 705.3 (5.9%)
Net Cash Balances B ERFHE 371.6 422 4 (12.2%)
Net Assets Value per Share (RMB) BREEFAEANRET) 0.94 1.00 (5.9%)
Net Cash per Share (RMB) BhAFHEARETL) 0.53 0.60 (12.2%)
Other Key Ratios HitF B =
Stock Turnover (Days) FEREXE(H) 480 293
Quick Ratio (Times) RE)L K (%) 3.9 3.8
Gearing Ratio (%) BEEABLE%) N/A N/A
AE A NEA
Consolidated (Loss)/Profit Attributable to
RT&eﬂue Owners of the Company
il AN w R A NS A (B8 /g
RMB million AR E&T RMB milion AR E&T
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James Ngai (Chairman)
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEERRIT
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited & & F /5 E 2175 R A 7

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited AR R AR 1T (2 ) R ) 75 EE/NET!

AUDITOR %4l

PricewaterhouseCoopers EEBKBEERISEKET

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor HESAMETM AR R T B EHED

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building BEEPR

Central, Hong Kong KNFRE22E

LEGAL ADVISER EEEE

Wilkinson & Grist SBEEEMT

6th Floor, Prince’s Building BEAEPRIR

10 Chater Road EITB105%

Central, Hong Kong KFKE6GE

REGISTERED OFFICE TR ER

Clarendon House Clarendon House

2 Church Street 2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11 Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF EREEREBTEEXEMHY
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 11041106, 11th Floor EBH B

1063 King’s Road B2 5510635)7

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong 11##1104E1106 E

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR B ELEE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House Clarendon House

2 Church Street 2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11 Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda Bermuda
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00738
Board Size: 2,000 Shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Email address: ir@lesaunda.com.hk

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.lesaunda.com.hk

ERROBEAE
EEPRESEEARAT
BB

25 RKER1835
A FEF L

171817121716 =

rmER

- BABARZHERAT
&% 15 X 5% - 00738
BFEEENAM: 2,000

BREZEBR
T # b Ut ir@lesaunda.com.hk

48 1t

http://www.lesaunda.com.hk
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR B B 1TEE

2022/23 Interim Results Announcement
ZE /) Z=FHhHEENH

24 October 2022

—E-—F+A=+WMH

2022/23 Annual Results Announcement

TR =R FEEN G

29 May 2023

—E-=FRA-+ANA

Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting
(both days inclusive)

EEnEROBFELTFEULERRAFA) BEEEMA)

12-17 July 2023

—E-=F+A+ZHET++tH

Annual General Meeting

BEREFKE

17 July 2023
—E-=F+HA++tH

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares should notify

the above registrar promptly of any change of their
address.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 R AR A &
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please email to
ir@lesaunda.com.hk or write to the Company at:

Le Saunda Holdings Limited
Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor
1063 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3678 3200
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

BEEBRE
AMEBREEBRERZENRN BEHBE
ir@lesaunda.com.hk » 3k B K 82 K A &) 5
M Hhuban R

BT FER AR AR
EEBAEH

I 2 1810635
110421106 E

B :E 1 (852) 3678 3200
{E & : (852) 2554 9304
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MAR =AH/ 2022

The Group was honored to be awarded the “15 Year Plus Caring Company Logo” by The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Through participating in charity and environmental
protection activities, charity donations and community visits, the Group partnered with
different social service organizations to practise corporate social responsibilities and to build
a sustainable society.

AEEERNE SRR EY KBRS
FPUsEHRBEMEER] - AEEEBLMA
HHREREHRETY  BORE  HERS

AR

E HETAMSRBEUESIE KABELE carinocompan
?JJ: ﬁ;lﬁ /EE% EE ’ @ ﬁ _ 1 ﬂ %EJ' %\E‘i %éé E E"] 7‘i /Eé% ° Awarded by ThegHong Kong Counci\gomal Sew¥

SRS RIS AR

APRWMAH/ 2022

In the “ERB Manpower Developer Award
Scheme”, launched by the Employees
Retraining Board of Hong Kong, the Group
was continuously renewed as a “Manpower
Developer” in recognition of the Group’s
outstanding accomplishments in talent training
and development.

EEABREBHBIBELNIERBAS R E R
AEh AEERTEEATEXINER A
REAKERATS B RERITIETHSEAL
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APRWMAH/ 2022

On April 29, charm & easy
took the lead in stationing
Causeway Bay to create the
craze for “Clean Beauty”. The
store also has comfortable
separate rooms to provide
customers with one-on-one
professional beauty consulting
services and recommend
products that are the most
suitable for their skin types.

M4A298 + charm & easy &
5 3k BT 4R §% /& - LA$T ¥ [Clean
Beauty] £ # 5§ A % &% A &F
HERBEIER mMEPREM—
H—EXXMBERRERE
NHRECEFEENEM °

MAY #H A/ 2022

The Guangdong Electronic Commerce Association highly
accredited le saunda’s achievements and brand awareness
in the field of e-commerce, and the association accordingly
endorsed a subsidiary of le saunda to become their
executive director unit.

ERAETFREWESE S Fle saundatt B i 4B A K
MEMENEE  ZHheRAMK Fle saundalfi B QA K A
HEEBEBEEN -
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JUIL. A/ 2022

charm & easy had further developed the cosmetics brick-and-mortar store market and
landed in the shopping hub of Mongkok. On July 29, the second cosmetics store was
launched on Sai Yeung Choi Street South.

charm & easyB #E— T HIMEMRBERIEMS EEEANBY OB - £78298 -
RAEFEEERARE_REME -

NOV+—A/ 2022

charm & easy launched its official e-shop in Hong Kong on
November 2, extending thousands of products and quality
services offered from offline to online.

charm & easy BB B AWM LEBEMNMA2AEXRAE - REHAT
HREMRBERBRGETERER L -
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FEB=A/ 2023

The Group is committed to creating a pleasant working environment,
cultivating employees’ sense of belonging and team spirit and
inheriting the corporate culture of working with heart. This year, the
Group participated in the “Happiness at Work Promotional Scheme
2023” and the Group was honored as a “Happy Company” for more
than 5 years consecutively. The Group hopes our staff love their jobs,
explore their talents and gain happiness as well as job satisfaction!

AEERNAEIMERMRNIIFRE  BREETITNEEBRMEK
B BARLBENEEE - AFE AEE2E[FALTIEH
HEF 82023 REESFUN L BERFAIBLOLE] - AEEHE
BUBIHATECHWIIE S FEHME  RIERIREN -

le saunda, established over 46 years, has been keeping abreast of fashion and focusing
on aesthetic design as well as the comfort of shoes. This year, originated by the idea of
nature, we launched the theme of “Light Chaser” on the online channel, and progressively
offered various series of products with the theme of light. While adding new elements to
the brand, it can also provide every consumer with highly personalised excellent products
to meet the needs of targeted customer groups.

le saunda mIEAFEI T46F - —ERAIKWH  MEEXEXFALERNTFERK - SFK
AEBRESHNE RELLRBEMTIBATEITE  BEEHEEALEEN TR R
NMER  BRIENMAFTENRE  XAUASUHEEREBAAELCNESER -
R EEREFPENTNK -
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CHAIRMAN'S

STATEMENT

BB SUR

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report on the results of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le Saunda” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 28 February 2023 (the “year under
review”).

As a famous retail brand with 46 years of history, the
Group, with its long-established foundation, focusing
on the professionalism of footwear manufacturing with
unchanging initial aspiration, so as to provide multi-mode
fashion solutions for the career development of urban
women. Despite the difficult period during the COVID-19
pandemic (the “Pandemic”), the Group has leveraged
its years of experience in the footwear industry and
implemented flexible business strategies to weather the
storm caused by low retail season and overcome the
challenges arising therefrom.

After the resumption of transportation and normal life,
the global economy seems to be heading towards a full
recovery. However, unstable geopolitics and uncertain
financial market changes have caused the global
economy to fail to emerge from the haze of recession
risk. As for Mainland China, due to its large population,
strict pandemic prevention restrictions were required to
prevent local outbreaks, which would inevitably affect the
consumption sentiment. Measures such as lockdowns and
travel restrictions have also strained supply chain logistics,
new products could not be launched in time, and stores in
the infected areas had to temporarily suspend operations,
the overall operating revenue of the Group was thus
adversely impacted.

BEBR:

AANERREZG(EZTS)IMARE
B AERBERAR (B AR
RADEEMBRAR(AEEDBEE_T
“EFZAZTN\BILEOMBEE (B E
FEDZEZERS -

ERIZ B BIGFHNERZRZTERE K
SEEBEKANESREZ  BFEERBER
ENEERES REARRENTL
AEMZMEBEEREBRERZE RN
REFEFR - #EFEEE@EHEENRE
SCOVID-19& B (EIEHMWERERH - K
EEKESFREGEBREBERRLRENT
BEENCERE  REHTEEXENEX
RERE P ABEE -

MEXBERELEFLERE 2R 2L
BEUEREZEERNLR A& &
RENHMABARTHEN TR ™S &
Lol BMEREBEREELARERAROE
E-ZERETEAM RAAARSZ @ F
EEBRBODRERS - U IEEHELE
REBRE EEENMBRLTEHREBREE -
HERITEEBLSHERDRESE
o FTERBEREF LR - AR RS
ARKEEFEEE HAKREERBZXW
AMKEEZE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group continued
to optimise the network of physical stores, closed
low-performing stores and prudently opened new stores
to enhance the efficiency of sales channels and improve
the cost structure of the store network. In order to achieve
prompt allocation of goods, initiate the shipping process
and deliver goods to customers’ designated locations
on time, the Group centralised inventory management,
shut down small local warehouses, and standardised the
delivery from each regional warehouse so as to improve
the cost-efficiency of warehouse logistics. In addition,
the Group ordered new stocks in a timely manner and
sought suitable new sources of purchasing, which not
only catered to market demand, but also maintained an
optimal inventory level.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &

e JC1 ]

REOEFEE AEEFEELERE W
o BERAREENERRERERILFAR
FIEH ARADHEREOURE AR
HEERBEORAERE - BT EREM
HAESm MBEERERERFEZXT
EFEEHHNTER ARBESEFEER
7 BRAEMNEEE HEDRAEELS
— BB BULRETREMRAK A
o AEBBERIBHFERSHMEE
M RBEER  BELEMmERERNRAR -
NAARFERENTFEEKFE -



BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The rise and fall of the “stay-at-home” economy have
become an important indicator of domestic consumer
activity. Stay-at-home economy has continued to develop
due to the Pandemic, and now it accounts for over a
quarter of the overall total retail sales of consumer goods
in Mainland China. The Group implements a dual-track
marketing plan by conducting appropriate resources
allocation and product promotion on several large-scale
traditional e-commerce platforms with high-traffic and
most popular social e-commerce platforms at the
same time so as to increase its brand awareness and
sales. During the year under review, the Group invited
well-known artists and models in Mainland China to
promote the brand and launched on various e-commerce
platforms, which successfully drew the attention of online
consumers and attracted their likes. Besides, the Group
has also launched a plan to release a series of new
promotion materials on social e-commerce platforms in
the first quarter of 2023. It is believed that the promotion
strategies adopted in the past year can enhance the
brand’s online influence. In addition to consolidating the
existing target customer base, it can also explore new
online customers. To align with the vision of innovation
and keep abreast of the times, the Group is actively
developing an omni-channel operation strategy. It is
currently advancing the development process of the
“Omni-Channel Middle Platform Project”, which is
expected to be officially implemented by the end of 2023.
As such, the efficiency of online and offline marketing will
be further enhanced, and opportunities to interact with
customers will also be increased, with an aim to meet the
full range of needs of consumers, and thereby sales will
also be increased.

R E (&)
[EIRENERCREAEBELIDINE
2HEE -ARRE BEREEINHHRE -
REHUBEEWMTEERBLEHEERT
ERBBBN Sz  AKEEITEHS
AEHTR AEELESRENER
ABREBFEREARRAITHOLERER
FeL ETRENERIEREMERE
MR EmENAMBEREE - KRORE
FE AEEBRFRANZEARERR
AmEELEE  XEEREANERF
B RISIETHELEEENBITIMEE -
O REBIFCMBEE - ERAF T —
FTEMHE -RIFTHNEERBMANERE
Brezt -HEBE - FNHEERRE
ARRAMENR EXESN RTAIZEE
BEMNBREFPE  BrRIBER LHER
RESEIFHzER  RIGWE  NEEE
BITEEREBNEERE  RIELEHELE 2
RETHEBEBIABRE AHEFAE-T
TEEFEREABET RERTHOZEH
MEGE-TRE bEENEETEFE
RS EBAREEERENEIM
TR EMBITHE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

At the same time, the Group has newly engaged
cosmetics consumer goods business under the new
brand of “charm & easy” and opened physical stores
in the shopping districts of Causeway Bay and Mong
Kok. With the philosophy of “Clean Beauty”, the brand
provides customers with a variety of natural and harmless
cosmetic products and thoughtful advice, with a view to
offering high-quality in-store services to consumers. With
the resumption of travel among China, Hong Kong and
Macau, endorsement for free individual travelling amongst
these places has been resumed as well, the Group will
implement several promotional activities, so as to build
up the brand awareness of charm & easy and increase its
market share in the cosmetic market. In addition to the
Hong Kong market, the Group has planned to establish
store in Macau to expand its customer base in Macau and
the Pearl River Delta.

SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES

In summary, the year under review was more challenging
than anticipated. The dampening economic activities,
sluggish retail industry and geopolitical conflicts still pose
uncertainties and challenges to the retail environment
in the coming years. To cope with these prolonged
economic challenges and complex business environment,
the Group have, therefore, reformulate its sustainable
corporate strategies by reviewing its ongoing business
strategies and repositioning its competitive advantages,
with an aim of achieving our vision and purpose as well as
seeking for a more satisfactory and sustainable financial
performance and shareholders’ return.

The Group has, with the consideration of the corporate
culture that based on its core values and the factors such
as Board’s view, stakeholders’ analysis and development
trends, formulated four main sustainable corporate
strategies, namely, green growth philosophy, technology
development, innovative operational management and
staff development.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &
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BRI NEBEEHREAHEE RES -
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SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
Green growth philosophy

To align with the national carbon peak policy and achieve
the carbon neutrality target by 2050, the Group began its
plan to set energy saving, emission reduction and waste
reduction targets, and took environmental protection
as its responsibility. The Group has established an
evaluation process for new suppliers, making sustainable
development as an important evaluation criterion for
selecting suppliers with compatible green philosophies.
In addition, the Group has further optimized its criteria of
product procurement and started to gradually purchase
products containing environmentally friendly materials. It
aims to improve resource utilization, adopt practical and
measurable measures to manage and further reduce its
carbon footprint, encourage employees to save energy,
reduce pollutant emissions and regulate waste disposal,
so as to contribute to a greener society.

Technology development

The Group, as a fashion retailer, need to keep exploring
new technology to improve the efficiency of its operations
and to increase its sale performance especially in
the ever-changing retail market and ever-evolving
e-commence business. The Group has been allocating
resources on the integration of its offline and online
business so as to enhance the shopping experience and
interactions with existing customers as well as to attract
potential new customers. Recently, a new project team
has been formed which comprises of key personnels
from various departments and led by executive director.
This team will not only work together for “Omni-Channel
Middle Platform Project” but also co-operate on any other
technical project or system that would help to improve
the efficiency of the Group’s operation. The Group will
continue to leverage technology to enhance every existing
aspects, such as product design, marketing campaign,
day-to-day management, network data, etc. The Group
believes that the digital development ensures sustainable
growth and successful development in the future.

HFELERRE

BRERRER
REABKIRZEERR K NR2050FEH
ik A B AR - KSR 18 B 46 5T 81 AR E B0 BE R
BERERE  URRRE/CHE - AKH
BYTHHERNFGERE BASE
HRESEENHERMERE  BE
MEESHANMEER - 1IN AEE
E—TBIETERRBRE RHEZED
REZARRMHNER EERSE
BRANBER - BV EBREENEHERE
BRE-—FPRIBET XBEIEHH
BERBERE B SRMPER - MBER
MERE  SERAESENHEERNE -

BMEEE
AEBEFER—ERHZERTETH K
R R B PABRE BB AR B 0 3
EXE FHETEEBLELNZTET SR
THERENERERDT AKEEHERMNX
BREEBTER EEBES  EBUE
BRIRNEEFHBYERLRIIBENE
e —ElATRAMAHNEHABEKH
MEBRNRARY  WHRITEFEERE -
HEBE AN EE[2RETEHEBIFERSR
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SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
Innovative operational management

The Group believes that innovation is the driving
force behind the development of a business and that
encouraging innovation is a key part of the Group’s
corporate culture, providing employees and teams with
the space and platform to innovate is also a responsibility
of the Group. Although many problems will inevitably
arise in the process of innovation, these problems will
lead to the growth of the company and its employees. As
a well-known brand operator with its leading position in
the female footwear market, the Group strives to pursue
innovation so as to fulfill the ever-changing design needs
of customers as well as to strengthen the brand influence.

Staff development

“Human-oriented Philosophy and Mutual Respect” is one
of the core values of the Group. We regard our employees
as the most valuable asset of the Company. The Group
respects each and every employee, believes in the
integrity of employees, and actively cultivates a culture
of encouragement and support to create a good working
environment for employees. The Group has established
a framework of occupational health management that
includes systems, trainings and measures to protect the
physical and mental health of employees. The Group
has set up a comprehensive promotion system and
designed customized training programs in the hope of
providing adequate career development for employees.
The Group has been reviewing its recruitment plan,
offering competitive remuneration package and promoting
corporate culture to attract innovative talents. The Group
values employee welfare, pays attention to the needs of
employees and interacts with them in a positive manner
for mutual growth. Cultivating employees to become
professional and diverse team members is also one of the
Group’s ways to retain talents. Additional incentives and
rewards are offered to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &
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SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES (CONTINUED)
Staff development (Continued)

The Board strongly believes that as long as Le Saunda
adheres to its vision and mission coupled with the
implementation of the above sustainable corporate
strategies and consistently strengthening the effectiveness
of marketing efforts and optimising operation efficiency,
it will surely be able to cope with the challenging
external environment and achieve a stable and positive
development.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my deepest gratitude to shareholders, customers
and business partners for their continued trust and
support, and to all Directors, management team and
colleagues for their devotion and contribution in the past
year.

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 May 2023
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating Results

The Group is engaged in the design, development and
retailing of ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags and
fashionable accessories in Mainland China. The major
proprietary brands of the Group include le saunda, le
saunda MEN, LINEA ROSA and PITTI DONNA, which
aim to appeal to diversified target customer groups with
their distinctive product lines. During the year, the Group
also established diverse cosmetic shops in Hong Kong,
in order to explore new consumer market and develop
new customer base with the Group’s new brand, charm &
easy.

For the financial year 2022/23, total revenue of the Group
decreased by 27.4% year-on-year to RMB413,200,000
(2021/22: RMB569,000,000). Consolidated gross profit
decreased by 24.8% year-on-year to RMB269,200,000
(2021/22: RMB357,900,000), and an overall gross
profit margin of 65.2% was recorded, representing an
increase of 2.3 percentage points as compared to the
corresponding period in the previous financial year. For
the financial year 2022/23, consolidated loss attributable
to owners of the Company was RMB50,300,000 (2021/22:
consolidated profit of RMB3,000,000).

Bt 7% 2] B8

PR

AREBEPBE REXEZRT - BENR
RHEESREERE FRAEMETE
meETEEBE M B1Ele saunda »
le saunda MEN * LINEA ROSA X PITTI
DONNA ' AR EMHER  BEEM
WERERPHEH A AEEELAEE
MR ZTEMEME AAXEEFRDE
charm & easy ' KA H & ST 5 K 1T
M EIR -

RZZE-_Z/—ZREE K&EH
BREKNZBESELE T®274%E ARK
413,200,0007L(= T = —/ /= Z F: A
E #569,000,0007T) ° 4% & E F| [l kb &
1248% & A R #269,200,0007t(= &
——/ = —%: AR%357,900,0007T) * ¥
BREMNERAFHBRFER S L FA2.3E
BHOEEGS2%  c R—ZTE— = /= =Bk
FE AR ZRFAEARGGREEBEAR
A R ¥50,300,000t(ZF=— /"= —F:
4R &% A A R ¥3,000,0007T) °
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i e 23 T

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) Bt %% B 8 (48)
Operating Results (Continued) Rl s (1)
2022/23 2021/22 Change
RMB (million) AR (EER) —g--/-= ZE-—/-= B
Revenue g 413.2 569.0 (27.4%)
Gross profit E7 269.2 357.9 (24.8%)
Gross profit margin EHE 65.2% 62.9% 2.3 percentage
points
23 E D
Consolidated (loss)/profit BaBBAEGLERE (50.3) 3.0
attributable to owners (B518),/ % 7
Final dividend (HK cents) REA S (EAL) - -
Annual dividend pay-out ratio 2FREX N/A N/A
rER T iE A
Profitability Analysis BRI R D
During the year under review, novel corona virus COVID-19 7 Bl B & £ - 51 ) 73 ik & & COVID-19

pandemic (the “Pandemic”) is still prevalent across the
world and have a direct impact to the recovery progress
of markets in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
Economic activities and consumer confidence remain
weak. Hence, the total revenue of the Group decreased
by 27.4% vyear-on-year to RMB413,200,000. Meanwhile,
the Group recorded a gross profit of RMB269,200,000
(2021/22: RMB357,900,000), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 24.8%, however, the gross profit margin
improved as compared to last year, as it increased to
65.2%, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.3
percentage points.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the year
decreased by 7.3% year-on-year to RMB240,200,000
(2021/22: RMB259,200,000). During the year, despite the
PRC footwear business related selling and distribution
expenses decreased, the decrease in overall sales
resulted in the increase in the ratio of selling and
distribution expenses to total revenue. In addition, more
resources need to be invested at the early stage of
the newly developed cosmetic business in Hong Kong
region, resulting in the increase in selling and distribution
expenses. Overall, the ratio of selling and distribution
expenses to total revenue increased by 12.5 percentage
points to 58.1% (2021/22: 45.6%).

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &

BEIEBDMARITRER M - IR
EBETETRRAERBRMBEENE
B REETHREEEELFERS -
Wt REERBKTRLT®K27.4%E
A R #413,200,0007T ° @ K+ 7N & & £
BE2FENBRLL TH®24.8%E ARK
269,200,000 (Z T =Z— ZZF: A K
#:357,900,0007T) * B EFM XL EF L
Z A EA23MEED B E65.2% °

AEBEFRNEERDHERAIZRLLR27.3%
= A R #240,200,000c(— & ——/— —
4 A R #259,200,0007T)c F R EE
BEASEBEXBHEENHEER D HRAXRA
LA ERBHETKRSHERDH
S B EIEm. mEBHIEF
RO REBAATELRELZER
mibuﬁé’%&“iﬁﬁ'ﬂi RAEME @ 8

ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂéﬂﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁtbi%%
1l§“¥5i581%(_i—— - =
45.6%) °



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (Continued)

Whether we are under the Pandemic or not, the Group
has been implementing strict control over the cost
consistently to lower general and administrative expenses
and enhance the cost effectiveness. General and
administrative expenses for the year decreased by 6.9%
to RMB86,900,000 as compared to the corresponding
period of last year (2021/22: RMB93,300,000). As much
of the expenses of the back office were fixed cost and the
total sales of the Group decreased, the ratio of general
and administrative expenses to total revenue increased by
4.6 percentage points to 21.0% (2021/22: 16.4%).

Other income comprised of local government incentives,
increased by 17.7% year-on-year to RMB5,500,000 as
compared to last year (2021/22: RMB4,600,000).

Other gains or losses recorded a net loss of
RMB7,800,000 (2021/22: gain of RMB8,500,000),
among which the exchange loss was approximately
RMB8,200,000 (2021/22: gain of RMB9,200,000). It is
mainly due to the significant depreciation of RMB during
the year and one-off exchange gain from deregistration of
a subsidiary in the PRC last year.

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB50,300,000 (2021/22:
consolidated profit of RMB3,000,000). Basic losses per
share amounted to RMB7.12 cents (2021/22: earnings of
RMBO0.42 cents).

Income Tax

During the year under review, income tax credit amounted
to approximately RMB1,900,000 (2021/22: expense of
RMB20,900,000). Income tax credit for the year was
mainly attributable to deferred tax income recognised
upon the provision made for the year. Since 2012, all
business entities of the Group in China are subject to
an income tax rate of 25%, while the profit tax rate for
operations in Hong Kong remains at 16.5%. Pursuant to
the Enterprise Income Tax Law of China, a withholding
income tax of 5% to 10% shall be levied on the dividends
remitted by a Chinese subsidiary to its foreign parent
company starting from 1 January 2008.

B i e 23 T

Bt %% B 8 (48)

BRI R D4 ()
THELGEREBZT AEBE—EHEEH
MAITER B AR AN I B o DAURIE — % R AT
B RERARZE - AFE—HK
THRAYBEEFREML6.9%E ARE
86,900,000 (=T =— /= ZF AR
93,300,0007T) - E2 A A EEHFIF X
REZBETEAMASEREHERL
LM ETEHAIHRKEMEE B
AEED B E21.0% (T —— /= —4:
16.4%) °

BB AT BRF@E REFR
bt # h017.7% = A B #5,500,0007T (= &
—— /= =% : AR¥4,600,0007T) °

Hihlh e BESESFEBEBARE
7,800,000 (ZE=Z—/ZZF: :m A
R #8,500,0007T) HFEREBEHAR
#8,200,000c (Z T = — /= ZF: W &
AR #9,200,000T) e TBZERBAFAR
MEBEEREREAFATH BB
ANEIMAER—IKERE RS -

RAARE=RBEABRLGEBEEAAR
#50,300,0007t(—F—— /"~ —F &£ 4
i A A R #3,000,0007T) © B E AN E 1B
BAREIR(ZEZ—/"Z=Z=_F %7
AR#0.425) °

FriE®

REBFEE FISHRINKBKRAHNARK
1,900,000 (Z T =Z—/ZZF:FHAX A
R #20,900,0007T) » AN F F7 15 % 0 Br 2
ERAFHNERGIRBEMELEDN - RZ
T——FR AKEMBERFPBRLCENE
IR BoS% M T R G MAT ST - BBEK
B BT 15 Bt Bt R 4 35 1E16.5% M9 K o 1B I
PECEMEHRE B_EENF—F—
Hit - AEK B AR MRING QR I FIR
BEAHRS%E10%NTBHNER -
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i X o A

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B %5 B B8 (48)

Inventory Management FEEH™

RZE-_=ZF-_A=-+1\B AEEHF
EERTGRBREEBEENFEAARKE
192,400,0007T @ 8 & F 1 113.3% ©

As at 28 February 2023, the Group’s inventory balance,
net of provision for impairment, was RMB192,400,000,
representing an increase of 3.3% as compared to that of
last year.

A breakdown of inventory balance was as follows: FEEGIEMD T :

As at As at
28 February 28 February Changes Changes
2023 2022 in value in %
—E-= B CF
RMB (million) AR (BER) “B=+N\B Z—A-tNH 2yeE  E¥EHMHL
Finished goods SR m 192.4 186.3 6.1 3.3%
Since the outbreak of the Pandemic, the Group has RIEEZ4S AEB-—BHHEBEINFE
been adopting a flexible inventory management strategy. EE R - REEBEFE  RBEBEANEF
During the year under review, the continuous outbreak #EEZ @ FEMRHEBHREBEMN -

of the Pandemic in the PRC had an impact on people’s
consumption desire towards footwear. Although the
Group prudently procured goods for the coming seasons
to control the ending inventory level and amount as at
28 February 2023 to be similar to that of the last year,
the significant drop of the Group’s total revenue due to
the strict pandemic prevention policies and consecutive
lockdowns measures caused the proportion of the
inventory of footwear aged less than one year decreased
by 141 percentage points to 57.3% as at 28 February
2023 (28 February 2022: 71.4%). Inventory turnover of
finished goods has therefore increased by 187 days to
480 days (2022: 293 days).

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &

BEALSEEEHNRBEXRTER &
FIEGEKERGE RZE-_=F_A
ZHN\HMERELXFED - AIEEREN
FRBEREEEENH RGBS RNAEE
BUZEETK BRER_T-_=-F=A

“t+N\H EEERERIR—EFENFEEEF
RELWE R D141 B 7D B £57.3%
(ZEZZFZ_AZ+)/\H:71.4%) - &K
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remained very strong
and healthy. As at 28 February 2023, the Group’s cash
and bank balances amounted to RMB371,600,000
(28 February 2022: RMB442,600,000), representing a
decrease of 16.0% year-on-year. While the retail market
has not fully recovered, the Group still maintains sufficient
cash. If necessary, the Group can maintain sufficient
working capital through banking facilities provided by
its major banks in Hong Kong, including but not limited
to revolving loans and trade finance, mainly at floating
interest rates. At the end of the financial year, the quick
ratio was 3.9 times (28 February 2022: 3.8 times). During
the year, the Group repaid bank loan of RMB20,200,000.
The borrowing were made in Hong Kong dollar. At the
end of the financial year, the Group has no outstanding
bank loan (28 February 2022: RMB20,200,000). Forward
contracts will be used, if necessary, to hedge related
debts and bank borrowings arising from overseas
purchases. In addition, the Group did not enter into any
forward contracts to hedge its foreign exchange risks
during the year.

During the year ended 28 February 2023, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were held in Hong Kong dollar,
United States dollar and Renminbi, respectively and all
deposits maturing within one year were placed in leading
banks. With the Group’s steady cash inflow from its
operations, coupled with its existing cash and banking
facilities, it has adequate financial resources to fund its
future needs in development.

B i e 23 T

Bt %% B 8 (48)

FEBHEESRMKEER
AEBMBERAETRRE R =
FZAZTN\B x&EERe RRITEH
A A R#371,600,000c(ZE = =-F— A
—+ 1\ H: A R#442,600,0007T) [t
WMAP16.0% c HEEMHBERTEEED
BRAT  AEEDAKERZTHHRS - W
EFE AXEEUERAATRANEE
RITRENRITREATEBREHEN
MEEEs BHEETERBRERR
BomE  TBLUFEFERFE - R
FARH FEBLHERAIIME(ZZT - —F—
AZ+N\B:38%) - RFR - AEEERE
# A R#20,200,0002 SR1ITER - ZEE
INBTLEA RBBFERE - NEBEE
RITEXRHBRB(CZE__FA=-F+NB:A
R #20,200,0007T) - IR B FZE - XK E
AR B & R #0405 SR 38 5| 8 2 43 3
BERERRBITEE - N AEBEREA
WERTZEMEREGRNUE PEERR

LA
a0
SN

o

BE-_T-_=F-"A-+/\HILHHE K
SE2ReRBOUEHUBT  ETK
ARBEZY UK —FANBP2HFRT
MR EEKRIRIT - ERAEBCBEL
EEBRERA NMEFHReRETR
B AEBEBEEARBNTBERUER
RRERBOFAFE °
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i e 23 T

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

External unfavorable factors such as the Pandemic, which
has ravaged the world for more than three years, and
geopolitical conflicts have hindered the recovery and
development of macro-economy. Although the central
government relaxed the pandemic prevention restrictions
in an orderly manner at the end of 2022, the Pandemic
in the past year has inevitably caused heavy blow to
domestic consumption desire. In April and May 2022,
major cities of China such as Shanghai, Beijing, Tianjin,
Guangzhou and Shenzhen all stringently implemented
various pandemic prevention measures. Such measures
of lockdowns, travel restrictions, and large-scale
screening have impacted the industrial and commercial
added value, economy, investment and consumption
activities of those cities to a certain extent. In addition,
the Pandemic reached its peak in December 2022, hitting
sales in the traditional peak season. As a result, the
year-on-year growth of gross domestic product (“GDP”)
throughout 2022 was 3.0%, slowing down from 8.4% last
year. However, since the relaxation of control measures in
China, it is bound to be conducive to economic recovery
and consumer sentiment.

During the year under review, under the severe retail
environment, the Group actively reviewed and adjusted
its operating structure, including integrating the network
of retail stores and reorganising warehouses in various
regions, with an aim to strive for excellence and
maximise the Group’s operation efficiency in response
to market changes and to reduce business risk. In order
to maintain its brand competitiveness and its leading
position in the female footwear market, the Group is
committed to keeping abreast of market trends, adding
new brand elements to Le Saunda. However, due to
the weak economy and consumption power coupled
with the disruption of the supply logistics chain, the
Group’s overall retail revenue decreased. The Group’s
annual retail revenue decreased by 27.4% vyear-on-year
to RMB413,200,000 (2021/22: RMB569,000,000) as
compared to last year, with annual same store sales
declining by 27.7% (2021/22: a decline of 0.2%).

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &
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FEEWREBREFRI214%E ARE
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network

Mainland China is the key market of the Group’s footwear
retail business, while Hong Kong is the key market of our
cosmetic retail business. At the end of the year under
review, the Group had a retail network comprised of 328
stores in total in Mainland China and Hong Kong. During
the year, the number of self-owned stores decreased
by 56 stores while the number of franchised stores
decreased by 5 stores.

As at 28 February 2023, there were 243 core brand le
saunda stores, representing a net decrease of 54 stores
as compared to the end of last year; LINEA ROSA, our
high-end fashionable brand, had 27 stores, representing
a net decrease of 7 stores as compared to the end of last
year. There were also 2 new and diverse cosmetics stores
under the brand charm & easy established in Hong Kong
during the year under review.

B i e 23 T

XK EFE(E)
FEENERTSEXEBAUFTEKER
FEMETEERURBAEET - REE
FERE AEEBRPBERERESGH
WAEIBRER/EH  FABEEFRAL
56% ' KrAT LA EMF R B ©

MRZZEZ=F_AZ+N\B  &Zdmhle
saunda#E B243R JEH  BREF R FR D
54 JE & ¢ = v 14 an B2 LINEA ROSA JE
HBEREFRFRLTRE2ZIR o R E
BENRN - & B LAmiEcharm & easy H &
T2REFMEZ L EMEPE -

As at 28 February 2023, the breakdown of the Group’s R-_ZE-_=F_-_A_-+N\H XEEHEHK
retail network was as follows: TEERESHET
Self-owned Franchise Total
(Year-on-year (Year-on-year (Year-on-year
change) change) change)
Number of Outlets RHBEHDH EH EEE @t
by Region EH#YE (RE2D) (RE29) (BE28)
Mainland China NS 295 (-58) 31 (-5) 326 (-63)
¢ Northern, Northeaster & o EF RERAL
Northwestern Regions 80 (11 29 (-4) 109 (-19)
* Eastern Region o R 97 (19) 1 0) 98 (19)
¢ Central and Southwestern Regions ¢ R KA 57 (-8) 1 (1) 58 (9)
¢ Southem Region o B 61 (-20) - - 61 (-20)
Hong Kong and Macau BB RRM 2 (+2) - - 2 (+2)
Total By 297 (-56) 31 (-5) 328 (-61)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i e 23 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China
Retail Business

China’s total retail sales of consumer goods fell by 0.2%
year-on-year in 2022, as compared to the growth of 12.5%
last year. This was mainly because of the widespread of
the Pandemic in China, leading to the strict lockdown of
major cities and towns again. This is the second negative
growth since the outbreak of the Pandemic, while the first
negative growth was a 3.9% drop in 2020. Throughout
2022, the retail sales of consumer goods in garments,
footwear, hats and knitwear category dropped by 6.5%,
which was worse than the growth rate of the overall retail
sales of consumer goods. In response to the volatile
Pandemic, China has strictly implemented long-term
prevention and control measures, which greatly reduced
national consumption sentiment. At the same time, the
physical stores in the affected areas were forced to close
temporarily, thus severely affecting the performance of the
Group. During the year under review, the retail sales in
Mainland China decreased by 26.8% to RMB410,400,000
(2021/22: RMB560,700,000).

During the first half of 2022, the government had
gradually lifted the lockdown measures in affected areas,
especially those of Eastern and Northern China, whereby
citizens had started to resume normal consumption and
social activities. The Group also seized the opportunity
of economic recovery to launch several advertising
campaigns, and invited celebrities to promote the Group’s
products. During this period, although the Group’s sales
initially rebounded, a new round of the Pandemic spread
again across China at the end of 2022, which once again
severely hit the retail business of the Group’s physical
stores. To overcome the difficult period of the new round
of the Pandemic, all members of the Group worked
together and immediately adopted a number of key
operating plans.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

In addition to actively promoting to target customer
groups, actively strengthening online interaction with
customers and promptly responding to customer needs,
the Group also constantly reviewed the network of
physical stores, paid attention to inefficient stores and
their leasing arrangements and renewed leases in the
form of short-term leases. The Group evaluated the
self-sustainability development of its inefficient stores, or
early terminated the stores that did not contribute to save
rent and improve the related cost structure. In addition,
the Group had also negotiated with the property owners
to limit the lease period of the stores to two years or less,
to cancel signed long-term lease contracts and to renew
them with shorter lease periods, so as to increase the
flexibility of our store network and optimise the overall
performance of our sales channels. In addition, the Group
also optimised the supply chain, centralised warehouse
management, closed local small warehouses, and directly
delivered goods from the regional warehouse, with a
view to improving the speed of inventory allocation and
accelerating the release of new goods for customers to
purchase.

B i e 23 T

R E (&)

ol K R (4

FEXH (#)

RTREEBRESREFPHEME B Mma s
EFRLEPRAKLRREFFR K&
BN EERERE®E DM BITER
sNERMEEERY AEHEER
AEE FHEEXEEHNASESR
RARTRENE - HIRATHUE R B ARG -
KREFEHEMAEERBOKAERE - BN
R E TR 2 TR AT 5 d A & B
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e - EhREERE MR NEEE
EEHPREERESER URAETRF
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B i e 23 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business

Due to the severe Pandemic during the year under review,
the growth rate of online retail sales of physical goods
(wearing goods) slowed down from 8.3% of last year to
4.0%. Yet, the e-commerce business is still in a good
momentum, and is an important channel under vigorous
development. According to the data released by the
National Bureau of Statistics, the ratio of online retail
sales of physical goods to total retail sales of consumer
goods has increased from 10.8% in 2015 to 27.5% in
2022. All retailers have seized this opportunity to allocate
resources to promote their products by planning and
developing different livestream content in order to attract
consumers’ attention and increase market share. Although
the demand for e-commerce consumption has been
constantly increasing, in face of the keen competition in
the online market, customers’ loyalty to a single brand is
getting lower and the competition in the same industry is
getting more intense, resulting in the continuous increase
in e-commerce operating costs for retailers because
of their attempts to draw the customers’ attention and
novelty to purchase their products. The Group adheres
to strict control of e-commerce business costs. The
proportion of e-commerce sales promotion expenses on
e-commerce platforms remained the same as last year
and had not increased due to the fierce e-commerce
market environment.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business (Continued)

Social e-commerce is an increasingly popular and
important marketing channel, and the Group has always
attached great importance to the business and resource
investment on social e-commerce platforms. We interacted
with customers in real time on different social platforms,
including but not limited to Douyin, Xiaohongshu, Weibo,
etc. We continued to promote the Y collection launched in
January 2021 and released the latest trends of the brand,
so that customers can get the latest product information,
and thereby the popularity of the le saunda brand can
be enhanced. In addition, in May 2022, the Guangdong
E-Commerce Association recognised the Group’s
achievements in the e-commerce field and authorised one
of the Group’s subsidiaries to become its executive director
unit. The Group believes that such recognition may arouse
concerns among potential consumers and enhance our
brand influence. In February 2023, a marketing campaign
with the theme of “#8 ¥£ 17 LIGHT CHASER” was launched
on various social media platforms. The Group will inject
new elements, with its product image, design concept,
promotion pictures and copywriting to be based on this
theme direction. Subsequently, the “Light” collection will
be used to promote products to meet the needs of target
customer groups for personalised products. During the year
under review, in addition to the constantly weak domestic
consumer sentiment due to the large-scale Pandemic,
local governments also adopted strict lockdown measures,
which hindered logistics and transportation and reduced the
growth of the Group’s e-commerce business. The overall
revenue of the e-commerce business for the year increased
by 1.4% year-on-year.

In order to facilitate with the further integration of physical
store retail business and e-commerce business, the Group
is making every effort to organise the “Omni-Channel
Middle Platform Project”. This project can achieve the
integration of the Group’s footwear business, enhance
internal operation efficiency and stabilise of online
supply to speed up the time for launching new products.
Customers can also instantly find the highlights of the
Group’s latest products and experience high-quality online
retail services.

B B s S o3 T

XK EFE(E)

BB K B (48)

ERFEHK(E)
HREAEITHELNEEZLE RS
MAEE—MA T+ ITELREFHBFAEH
(B RERNBA ETRMERFES -
BRERESERES  NIE- - MESE R
KPR  HEHERET _T—_—F—
AHEHBOYRIREMMESHER @ &
EPBIEFNEMER  #HifE AR
R mEMBE - B ZF==
hAM BEREEHHERUTASEL
EHEFEOA UK TFTAEEHEP —H
MBARIKAHEKIEEEMN ANEEM
EZRAUANSIREBEEEENE TR
RBAREEEN - N-_T-_=F_A%
VA8 %17 & LIGHT CHASER] A X EH ™
GEEEHEESERERFEAEM -
SEBEIAFREZ  ERER - REHS
HEEEAXKRBEERZEIEFTR#E
T BRENMUIKIBRIRERER + KU
MEEERPHYERMEMEHNFERK - E
BEFERN RAENEBELIBEREEIE
FERBRIBZIN - B M BTt BB ER A
W SRR ERYXME  BIEKT
AEEEHEBNER AFEWES
BRWERLE EA1.4 % -

REARERBETEXBRERRHE —
TRE AEEBLE2NEEZRET
REB]- HWARAERAKEEE X
—BIt ERAMEERE  ZEMLH
ERE MEFELRKHE  BEEIH
FEMASEZHEMNTHLERE
EmR ETERS -

annual report 2023 3R 2023

33



34

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i B o3 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong’s actual GDP realised negative growth of
3.5% in 2022. In the past year, Hong Kong and Macau
were also affected by the Pandemic and border closures.
The number of domestic and overseas tourists visiting
Hong Kong kept decreasing, and the economy and
consumption of both places have not yet recovered.
Although the Hong Kong and Macau governments have
also proposed a number of relief measures for merchants
and citizens, industries such as retail, tourism and
shipping are still struggling to survive in a downturn.
In view of the expected recovery of the retail industry,
in April and July 2022, the Group opened physical
stores in the shopping hubs in Causeway Bay and
Mong Kok respectively, under the new brand charm &
easy, operating cosmetic business, covering skin care,
hair care, make-up, fragrances and even body care
products. The philosophy of the new brand is “Clean
Beauty”, which introduces almost a thousand beauty
products from Europe, America, Japan, South Korea,
Taiwan and local areas to take care of customers’ skin
in a non-toxic, non-damaging, safe and hypoallergenic
approach and to prevent burden to the environment at
the same time. Furthermore, to allow customers to buy
the most suitable products for their skin, our stores offer
one-on-one professional beauty consultant service to help
customers thoroughly understand their skin conditions
and daily needs. The stores have been equipped with
facial moisture analysers to further provide professional
skin analysis and tailor-made beauty solutions to our
customers. During the year under review, the Group’s
sales in Hong Kong and Macau decreased by 66.4%
year-on-year to RMB2,800,000 (2021/22: RMB8,300,000).
The drop in sales was due to the fact that the sales for
the year were derived from the cosmetic business, as
compared to the footwear business last year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

It is believed that China has entered a new stage
of post-Pandemic, and the Chinese economy, after
experiencing ups and downs, will see overall improvement
gradually after several pandemic prevention measure
being adjusted. Domestic productivity and public
consumption power will be strengthened in an orderly
manner as well, and both physical sales and online sales
will continue to grow. China supports the expansion of
domestic demand, the stabilisation of prices and lower
deposit reserve ratio to achieve the speedy recovery of
traffic, logistics and capital flow, leading to the continuous
release of market vitality. Being a pure brand owner, the
Group will continue to grasp the market trends, focus on
designing and developing innovative models, and provide
high-quality products and superior online and offline
services to customers.
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B B i B o A

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

The vigorous Pandemic prevention policies in the past
have facilitated the development of online marketing
activities, and consumers are now fond of and
accustomed to online consumption. Therefore, the
e-commerce business has created a good momentum
to keep its growth on the right track. The Group will
continue to focus on investing in online platforms,
aiming to maintain the growth of e-commerce business.
The Group will continue to innovate on traditional and
large-scale e-commerce platforms with high traffic, such
as Tmall, JD.com and vip.com, hoping to constantly bring
refreshing experience to existing and potential customers.
In addition, the social e-commerce market is also a critical
online sales channel. Consumers attach great importance
to information available on social platforms, user sharing
and influencer recommendations. Therefore, the Group
will continue its marketing strategy, enhances its brand
power, and focuses on several mainstream e-commerce
social platforms, including Douyin, Xiaohongshu,
Weibo, etc., to promote the le saunda brand with blind
advertising. Following the marketing theme of “i& ¥ 17%&
LIGHT CHASER” launched in February 2023, the Group
will publish promotional content on its WeChat corporate
account in the form of graphics and texts. As the content
presented in form of text will be more atmospheric,
consumers on social platforms may have a more visual
understanding of our current seasonal theme, thereby
deepening consumers’ awareness and impression of
Le Saunda. Also, the Y collection will also be promoted
online on large flagship e-commerce platforms in the
second half of 2023. It is believed that such strategies will
not only strengthen our existing presence in the ladies’
fashion market and increase consumers’ loyalty to the
brand, but also broaden the new generation of target
customers group, thereby expanding our market share.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

The Group will continue to review its brand positioning
and conduct research on various operation options to
enhance its brand value and bring superior consumption
experience to its customers. All departments of the Group
will make unremitting efforts and work closely with one
another to implement and launch the “Omni-Channel
Middle Platform Project” successfully, transforming the
management and operation system into a more digitalised
one, integrating online and offline sales channels, and
subsequently enhancing the efficiency in terms of logistics
and delivery of goods. Under the “stay-at-home economy”,
target customer group or potential customers may get to
know the brand and purchase products at home via this
system, and every household can also quickly obtain the
purchased goods. In addition, consumers can immediately
provide feedback through the system and receive
real-time responses from customer service staff catering
to different needs. The Group believes that such project
transformation shall not only enhance its brand value,
but also improve operation efficiency and help increase
turnover and operating profit. In the medium and long
term, the Group’s sales scale is expected to gradually
return to the pre-Pandemic level.

As for the cosmetics business, the Group will continue
to adopt online and offline market advertising strategies
simultaneously, thereby establishing the brand awareness
of charm & easy, developing a customer base based on
“Clean Beauty”, and increasing the market share of its
cosmetic business. In Hong Kong, the Group will launch
large-scale promotional activities during the traditional
sales periods in order to increase sales and brand
popularity. In addition to the opening of two physical
stores in Hong Kong, the Group will soon establish its
footprints in the famous tourist area of Macau by opening
a physical store on Rua de S. Domingos near the Ruins of
St. Paul's to attract local consumers and Mainland China
tourists in Macau. Self-owned online stores and online
shopping platforms also offer delivery to Macau. With
online and offline services supporting each other, we are
able to provide customers with high-quality experience.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i B o3 T

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

In terms of operations, the Group will continue to
consolidate the distribution network of physical retalil
stores on a regular basis. As in the past, the Group will
continue to review physical stores with substandard
performance and will also examine the opening of new
stores in shopping areas with high traffic. The Group
will renew leases and open the stores with the shortest
lease periods, thereby increasing the flexibility of the
store network and responding to the uncertain demand
in various regions. In addition, the Group will continue
to invest resources in product management in order
to shorten the production cycle and expedite business
operation. As for reorganising inventory management,
coordinating with logistics companies will definitely
improve the performance of the logistics supply chain
SO as to deliver products to the designated locations of
customers more rapidly to ensure customer satisfaction.
The Group will continue to develop new sources of
revenue and reduce cost and enhance operation efficiency
using digitalised tools. Furthermore, the Group has always
placed great emphasis to human resource management
and will continue to attract more experienced talents to
maintain its corporate competitiveness and strengthen its
marketing efforts on footwear and cosmetic businesses.

With the resumption of travel among China, Hong Kong
and Macau and the gradual improvement of economy,
Le Saunda will also seize the opportunities arising from
the recovery and continue to implement the above
strategies and measures, which will surely strengthen
the competitiveness of its brand. The Group will strive for
better performance and bring the greatest return to its
every shareholder.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 28 February 2023, the Group had no pledge of
assets (28 February 2022: RMB600,000).

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of
banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
on letters of credit and bank loans to the extent of
RMB70,800,000 (28 February 2022: RMB64,600,000),
of which was not yet utilised as at 28 February 2023 (28
February 2022: RMB20,800,000 was utilised).

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended to declare a final
dividend for the year ended 28 February 2023 (28
February 2022: no final dividend).

No interim dividend was paid for the six months ended
31 August 2022 (six months ended 31 August 2021: no
interim dividend).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i B o3 T

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 28 February 2023, the Group had a full-time
staff force of 1,120 people (28 February 2022: 1,342
people). Of this number, 35 were based in Hong Kong
and 1,085 in Mainland China. The remuneration level of
the Group’s employees was in line with market trends
and commensurate to the levels of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees comprised
basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives. Total
employee benefit expenses for the twelve months ended
28 February 20283, including Directors’ emoluments,
net pension contributions and the value of employee
services, amounted to RMB135,900,000 (2021/22:
RMB147,900,000). The Group has all along organised
structured and diversified training programmes for staff
at different levels. Outside consultants will be invited to
broaden the contents of the training programmes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky, aged 59, first joined the Group
in 1981 and was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in September 1992 and left the Group
in September 2010. She re-joined the Group in April
2016. She is an Executive Director of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Chui is responsible for the Group’s supply
chain management, product design and development,
retail, e-commerce and franchise operation, business
development and brand management. She has over 30
years of experience on retail and product management.
Prior to re-joining the Group, she was the chief executive
officer in a renowned handbag company in Mainland
China and was responsible for footwear products
development, manufacturing management and retail
operations.

Li Wing Yeung, Peter, aged 64, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2020. He is responsible for the
development and quality control of the Group’s products.
He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li has over 17 years of experience in
product management. He is the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, a controlling shareholder of the Company and the
brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan, an executive director of
the Company.

Liu Tsz Yan, aged 37, joined the Group in April 2022 and
is responsible for the Group’s cosmetics business, human
resources and administration functions. Ms. Liu graduated
from University of Adelaide with a Bachelor's degree in
Economics and a Master’s degree in Wine Business. She
is @ member of Rotary Club Central. Ms. Liu has over 9
years of experience in marketing and human resources
areas. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu was the
marketing manager of a catering company in Hong Kong.
She is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling shareholder of the Company and the sister-in-
law of Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, an executive director of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRGLAREEHAR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

James Ngai, aged 60, joined the Group in March
2011. He is a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
the Chairman of the board of the Company (the
“Board”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Board.
He is responsible for the Group’s leadership and
management of the Board and the Group’s strategy.
Mr. Ngai graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation matters. Mr. Ngai is a director of
Stable Gain Holdings Limited (“Stable Gain”) which has
an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Max Sight Group Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon, aged 74, joined the Group in
January 2006. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Board and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a chartered accountant and certified
public accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. Mr.
Lam has been a practising accountant for over 30 years
and is the proprietor of Messrs. S. L. Lam & Company.
He has served as a member of Insider Dealing Tribunal on
a number of occasions. Mr. Lam is also an independent
non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, a privatised company, the shares of which
were previously listed on the Stock Exchange. He was
previously an independent non-executive director of
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (formerly known as
Lifestyle Properties Development Limited), the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Leung Wai Ki, George, aged 65, joined the Group in
September 2004. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, auditing
and receivership. He is a director and financial controller
of a real estate development company in Hong Kong.

Hui Chi Kwan, aged 74, joined the Group in November
2007. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hui graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1980 and
has been a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since 1983.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Hui was a partner of a law
firm in Hong Kong. He retired from the partnership in
2007 and remained as a consultant of the said law firm.
Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Max Sight Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRGLAREEHAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Tsz Lok, aged 47, joined the Group in August
2009. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s financial control and accounting, treasury, tax,
legal and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan holds a
Master degree of Science in Financial Management from
Heriot Watt University, UK and is a fellow member of
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK.
He has over 25 years of experience in internal control,
financial management and accounting. Prior to joining
the Group, he has held senior positions in a multinational
corporation and manufacturing groups listed on Stock
Exchange.

Li Ying Ying, aged 54, joined the Group in September
1997. She is the General Manager (Southern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in the southern region of Mainland China.
Ms. Li has over 26 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.

Xiao Kun Min, aged 48, joined the Group in March
2004. She is the General Manager (Southwestern China)
of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail
business operations in southwestern region of Mainland
China. Ms. Xiao has over 27 years of retail experience in
Mainland China.

Cheng Dong Xue, aged 56, joined the Group in October
2018. He is the General Manager (Northern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in Northern, Northeastern and Northwestern
regions of Mainland China. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years
of retail experience in Mainland China.

Huang Li Han, aged 51, joined the Group in July 2000.
She is the General Manager (Eastern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in Eastern region of Mainland China. Ms.
Huang has over 23 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving and maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance. The Board and its management
understand that it is their responsibility to establish a
good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence,
accountability, responsibility and impartiality so as to
improve the operation transparency of the Company,
protect the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and create value for the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of, and applied the principles in, the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Part
2 of Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Since
October 2019, the position of Chief Executive Officer has
been vacant. To ensure the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer not to be performed by the
same individual, the responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer for the conduct of the business of the Company
have been taken up by other executive Directors of the
Company, who have extensive knowledge of the Group’s
operations and business issues, particularly on corporate
strategy matters, that they can exercise the appropriate
judgement and make proposal to the Board.

The Board will continue to enhance the Group’s corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the Group’s business and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with statutory and professional standards and align with
the latest developments.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

In order to achieve long-term goals and carry out a
sustainable business model, the Group cultivates four
main corporate cultures, namely teamwork culture,
respectful culture, ethical culture and innovation culture,
through its three core values, namely Supreme Quality,
Innovative Thinking and Mutual Respect. With the Group’s
purpose and corporate culture, the Board leads all levels
of the Group to act in a legal, ethical and responsible
manner to protect the relevant rights and interests of
customers, partners, investors, suppliers, employees and
other stakeholders.

The management is responsible for formulating the
Group’s corporate culture to ensure that its core values
and purpose are reflected and, taking into account of the
factors such as Board’s view, stakeholders’ analysis and
development trends, to formulate four main sustainable
corporate strategies, namely green growth philosophy,
technology development, innovative operational
management and staff development, which are then
subsequently reviewed and approved by the Board.

Various circumstances such as staff engagement,
employee retention and training, whistleblowing, data
privacy and anti-corruption policies, and compliance
with laws, rules and regulations have comprehensively
reflected our corporate culture. Accordingly, the Board
believes that the Group’s purpose, values and strategies
are aligned with the Group’s culture.

For the details of the Group’s corporate strategies, please

refer to the Chairman’s statement on pages 15 to 22 of
this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors,
one Non-Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Board has established
three board committees, namely the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), to oversee different areas
of the Company’s affairs. The composition of the Board
and the board committees are given below and their
respective responsibilities and work performed during the
year are discussed elsewhere in this report.

During the year ended 28 February 2023 and up to the
date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2022)
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among members of
the Board, except that:

(@)

Mr. James Ngai is a director of an accounting firm
which provides advisory and audit services to private
companies owned by Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling shareholder of the Company;

Both Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces and Mr. James
Ngai are the directors of Stable Gain Holdings
Limited (“Stable Gain”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company. The entire issued share capital of
Stable Gain was registered in the name of Stable
Profit Holdings Limited (“Stable Profit”), a company
wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC Trustee”) which acted as trustee of
Lee Tze Bun Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”),
a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces was the founder and an eligible beneficiary
thereunder. Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces was also the
sole director of Stable Profit;

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, the son of Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces and brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan,
is a trustee of The Lee Keung Charitable Foundation
(“Charitable Foundation”), of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces is the founder;

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Lee
Tze Bun, Marces and the sister-in-law of Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter; and

Both Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are
independent non-executive directors of Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483).

The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 41 to 44 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

Each Director possesses the necessary expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances
for safeguarding the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole. During the year, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors have brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the fact that each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for more than 9
years, the Board is satisfied that they are still independent
in discharging their duties as required. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings in
the past have demonstrated their abilities to exercise
independent judgement and to provide an objective and
balanced view in relation to the affairs of the Company.
Their individual expertise and extensive experience in their
respective fields have continued to provide diverse and
valuable advice to the Board from different perspectives.
In addition, all of them possess the required character,
integrity and familiarity with the Group’s business and
culture to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Company will propose the
appointment of a new independent non-executive Director
at the forthcoming AGM to comply with code provision
B.2.4(b) of the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors
representing not less than one-third of the Board. Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, one of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, has the appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of
his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Whilst
Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are directors of
both the Company and Max Sight Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 08483) and thus hold cross-directorships, the
Board determines that Mr. Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless
independent with respect to his directorship at the
Company since Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
hold only non-executive roles at both companies and have
no interest in both companies as disclosed under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis of at least four times a year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. The Board
members are served with notices of at least 14 days and
provided with all agendas and adequate information for
their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After
the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by
any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense of
the Company. During the year, the Board held 6 physical
meetings and 3 written resolutions were signed and
passed by all Directors. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings are set out on page 65 of
this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the
development of the Group with the goal of maximising
Shareholders’ value in the long run. The Board also takes
the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, approves and monitors the strategic
plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews
the Group’s financial and operational performance and
internal controls. The Group’s day-to-day operations and
administration are overseen by the Executive Directors
and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management of the Company. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions,
matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval
of interim and annual results, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends and other
disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by
the Board for consideration and approval. Matters not
specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the
daily management and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
of the Company. The management team of the Company
is accountable to the Board for the daily management and
operation of the Company.

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company would provide a
comprehensive induction package covering the summary
of the operations and business, constitutional documents,
the latest published financial reports of the Company,
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong and the Guidelines for Directors
and the Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to
each newly appointed Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules,
corporate governance practices, environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) issues and other regulatory
regime to the Directors with written materials, as well as
organises seminars on the professional knowledge and
latest development of regulatory requirements related to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

During the year and up to the date of this report, all
Directors pursued continuous professional development
and relevant details are set out below:
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Types of training

Name of Directors EEnA 3% 39 & 5l

Executive Directors: HITES:

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky TREFIF L B

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter Pk R E B

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan (Note 1) BITEZ+ (f771) B

Ms. Liao Jian Yu (Note 2) B2+ (fit2) A

Non-Executive Director: FHITES:

Mr. James Ngai {5 76 & 5 & A, B

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFHTEE:

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon PRIJK B o8 & A, B

Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George RERELESE A

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FFRSEE A, B

Remarks: i HE

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums A—HEMNE /€% WiE

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials B—HM#EaHT &HEAN/ " XEEHR

Notes: bt -

1. Ms. Liu Tsz Yan was appointed as an executive Director with effect 1. BEEfRZTE-ZT-__FNA-THHBEZHE
from 25 April 2022. RPITESE -

2. Ms. Liao Jian Yu resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1 2. ERmZtE-_ZE-__FRA-RAEHIHNTE

May 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for indemnifying the
Directors and officers of the Company against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred arising
out of the corporate activities.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and appointing
individuals with integrity, experience and caliber to act as
Directors. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates
and seeks recommendations from the Nomination
Committee on the appointment and re-election of the
Directors.

According to bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
each Director so appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy on or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Moreover, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. The rotating Directors who are subject
to retirement and re-election at the forthcoming AGM are
set out on page 125 of this report.

All Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company were appointed
for a specific term of 2 years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but be eligible for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In order to maintain a balance of power and authority, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and assumed by separate
individuals who have no relationship with each other.
During the year, Mr. James Ngai, being the Chairman
of the Board, is responsible for overseeing the function
of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company and ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and receive adequate information, which must
be complete and reliable, in a timely manner. On the
other hand, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the implementation of the Company’s overall strategies
and coordination of overall business operation. Since
October 2019, the position of Chief Executive Officer has
been vacant. To ensure the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer not to be performed by the
same individual, the responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer for the conduct of the business of the Company
have been taken up by other executive Directors of the
Company, who have extensive knowledge of the Group’s
operations and business issues, particularly on corporate
strategy matters, that they can exercise the appropriate
judgement and make proposal to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All
board committees have clear and specific written terms
of reference, report their work to the Board after each
meeting and are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their respective duties. Copies of minutes of
all meetings and written resolutions passed at the board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 1999. As at 28
February 2023 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan. Mr. Lam has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary functions and duties of the Audit Committee
are to recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Company’s external auditor, oversee
the integrity of financial information of the Company
and its disclosure, provide independent review of the
effectiveness of the financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, and review
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 5 physical
meetings with the external auditor, internal auditor and
independent consultants. The Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Financial Officer were invited to attend the
meetings. In addition, 1 written resolution was signed
and passed by all members of the Audit Committee.
The attendance records of each member of the Audit
Committee are set out on page 65 of this report. A
summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year was as follows:

(i) review of the audit plan, terms of engagement,
independence and qualification of the external auditor
and the remuneration paid to the external auditor;

(i) review of the financial information of the Group
including the annual and interim financial statements
and related documents before submission to the
Board for approval;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(iii)  review of the management letters and reports issued
by the external auditor;

(iv) review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the potential impacts of
the change in accounting standards to the Group’s
financial statements;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group; and

(vi) review of the internal audit reports prepared by
an independent consulting firm in respect of the
effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management of the
Group twice a year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
written terms of reference (as amended) since 2005. As
at 28 February 2023 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung Wai
Ki, George and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy, determine the terms of
specific remuneration package of the Executive Directors
and senior management, and review and approve
the performance-based remuneration proposals with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee also reviews and/ or approve matters relating
to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1
physical meeting. In addition, 1 written resolution was
signed and passed by all members of the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance records of each member of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 65 of
this report. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; (i) approved
performance-based remuneration with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
and/or the senior management from time to time; and (iii)
ensured that no Director or senior management or any of
his/her associates was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Details of the emoluments for Directors,
chief executive and five highest paid individuals, and
senior management remuneration by band during the
year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 19 March 2012.
As at 28 February 2023 and up to the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon and Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The
full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1
physical meeting. In addition, 1 written resolution was
signed and passed by all members of the Nomination
Committee. The attendance records of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out on page 65 of
this report. In the meeting, the Nomination Committee (i)
reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;
(i) assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors; (iii) made recommendations
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting; and
(iv) reviewed the diversity of the Board’s composition.

Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (as
amended) with the aim of achieving diversity on the
Board since August 2013. The Company recognises the
benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity of
perspectives at the Board level as essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development.

Summary of Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry
experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against a variety of criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews this policy, on an annual basis, to
ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for examination and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
Summary of Policy (Continued)

The Board contains individuals who have diverse
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. Coming
from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Non-Executive Directors actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. On the other hand,
the Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute to
ensuring that the interests of all Shareholders are taken
into account by the Board and that relevant issues are
subject to objective and dispassionate consideration by
the Board. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on pages 41 to 43 of this report. In implementing
the board diversity policy, the Board aims to have a
balanced composition in each of the relevant areas, but
recognising at the same time that all Board appointments
must be based on meritocracy having regard to the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Measurable Objectives

Targets have been set to maintain the Board with at
least 50% of members being made up of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors,
together with an appropriate level of female member,
which shall be at least one female member.

The Board has achieved the aforementioned targets
during the year ended 28 February 2023. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprises seven directors, three
of which are independent non-executive directors and one
of which is non-executive director and has two female
members.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from
time to time and at least once per year to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
Gender Diversity of Workforce

During the year ended 28 February 2023, the gender
diversity in workforce levels was generally in line with
the diversity philosophy of the Group. As at 28 February
2023, 94% of our total workforce were female (including
our senior management). We consider this gender ratio
is an appropriate level for a fashion brand operator with
principally offering ladies’ footwear products and we will
continue to review it and make appropriate adjustment in
staff recruitment, if necessary.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Board adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with the aim to set out
the criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
when considering candidates to be appointed or
re-appointed as the Directors.

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate:

(@) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

(b) effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

(¢ commitment of the candidate to devote
sufficient time to effectively discharge his/her
duties as a member of the Board and/or board
committee(s) of the Company. In this regard,
the number and nature of offices held by the
candidate in public companies or organisations,
and other executive appointments or significant
commitments will be considered;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate: (Continued)

(d) scrutinising the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

(e) independence of the candidate in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules subject to its
amendments from time to time;

(f)  potential/actual conflicts of interest that may
arise if the candidate is selected;

(9) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of
an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
number of years he/she has already served;

(hy conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate; and

()  other factors considered to be relevant by the
Nomination Committee on a case by case basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

(2) Process of appointment of a new Director:

(@)

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other members of the management and
external recruitment agents, and should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is to be appointed, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board will
also assess and consider whether the candidate
can satisfy the independence requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules;

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable);

The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable; and

For any person that is nominated by the
Shareholders for election as a Director at
the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(3) Re-election of Director at General Meeting:

(@ The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board,

(b) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is subject to the
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board will also assess and consider whether
the Independent Non-Executive Director
will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules; and

(¢ The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation
to Shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to Shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.
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Nomination Committee (Continued) REZEE(HE)

Nomination Policy (Continued) 1EE B (&)

The following graph provides an analysis on the RAH{REHH BEEES2H8KENUT
composition of the Board as at the date of this report: KON -
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Attendance Records

The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and
the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company (“2022
AGM”) during the year ended 28 February 2023 are set
out below:
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Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination

Note Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee 2022 AGM
ik E2® EhZEg FHZse REZEe RRAFAE
Executive Directors: HWITEE:
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REFRL 6/6 N/A N/A N/A i
TR TEH TE A
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBRE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11
@R TiER TER
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BERZL 2 5/6 N/A N/A N/A 1
@R TER @R
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BREBTT 3 1/6 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Non-Executive Director: FHTEE:
Mr. James Ngai =ik 1 6/6

Independent Non-Executive BUFHTEE:

Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WEEB L 6/6
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PRELE 6/6
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan sFRBTL 6/6
Notes:
1. Mr. James Ngai attended the Audit Committee meetings as an invitee.
2. Ms. Liu Tsz Yan was appointed as an executive Director with effect

from 25 April 2022.

3. Ms. Liao Jian Yu resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1
May 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices relevant to the model and growth of
its business. In order to achieve a right balance between
governance and performance, the Board is responsible for
ensuring the application of the principles in the CG Code
and introducing and proposing other relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the
standard of corporate governance of the Company. The
Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions adopted with written
terms of reference on 19 March 2012:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The details of the corporate governance functions

reviewed and performed by the Board during the year are
further disclosed and explained elsewhere in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 28 February 2023, in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted HKFRSs and suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
143 to 1583 of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the external
auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 28 February 2023, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services (the non-audit services
comprised of professional services and tax advisory
services only) provided to the Group by the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
amounted to approximately HK$1,860,000 (2021/22:
HK$1,800,000) and HK$112,000 (2021/22: HK$126,000)
respectively. The Audit Committee was of the view that
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
of the Company did not impair its independence and
objectivity.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Tsz Lok (“Mr. Chan”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 September
2021. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in UK. In his capacity as
the Company Secretary, Mr. Chan reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Mr. Chan took not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since
4 Qctober 2005. The terms of the Code of Conduct are
no less exacting than the required standard in the Model
Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the relevant
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct, including the
Directors, any employee of the Company, or a Director
or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company, who, by reason of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of
Conduct and the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 28 February 2023 and up to
the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control,
risk assessment and management systems (including
environmental, social and governance risks) and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It reviews
and evaluates the effectiveness of the said systems
at least annually (and has done so during the year) to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the Group’s ESG
performance and reporting.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks,
rather than eliminate risks, of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Company, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of
risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the establishment of a risk
register to keep track of and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure
their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent
risks that affect the achievements of its objectives. A
risk matrix is adopted by the Company to determine risk
rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of attention
of the management and the effort of risk treatment
required.

e X EIE: 8

[ B B IR % A B BE =
EFxgCHEAEE ZAMERE B R
AEEEENERERE HERkEA
[\ f) - 3 % A AT K MR R 5 R B 2
REELAMEZEHREEBEE2EAE - K
RERRNBELRAEBEE - HRIE
FREFAETR) BT RGN ENE
HIEEBRRAEE LS Wﬂ%@
B 7% ¥R 5 B AL A MESGE M i &
HNER BIEENER A RE
BLREBBEER RN o

N%

EREERANBEZGE

$“ﬂMHAmE&W%%%ﬂEEE
ERELBERBRMIFTE2HHKERAR

AIEBEFRLRARZER - BEAEMH
EERBNMIFBHRBEISHREANE
RERAHER - HPMERBETM LD

TR R MORIR T X B
EBEIES BN RR -

EREERABEEZFHETERH

ARAREBREERANGEZHELTE
TCER BRI A R AC 8 A A8 HE & RS 8%
Frrd R AR RER - HIF]
EEBEEHREBREHRER  URFER
ARNBEEREFUNEREGEHIZE -

ZAN/NICI SRS ) ﬂ?%ﬁﬁm & IR
TAENKBEFEFEREENAENE

%Iﬁﬂ& NN Tﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁm
EEEREREENYERRERM— ER
&ﬁﬂ%%mﬂ@ﬁﬁ&—ﬁ@@mh
FERR:H="ER) - BAkRFHRRE
BEIBKFERRERBOMANE -

annual report 2023 3R 2023

69



70

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e SEIsE ¥

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk
owners of departments and major subsidiaries is required
to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk
is evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking
into consideration of the risk response, such as control
measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk
of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register
with the risk responses and residual risks is reported to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board.
The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of
operations, the Group set up an internal audit
department (the “Internal Auditor”) in August 2017 with
an aim to continuously improve the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control of the Group. The
Internal Auditor is required to prepare a risk oriented
annual audit plan, and on the basis of risk assessment
results, determine the work focus of internal audit that is in
line with the organisation objective. The annual audit plan
should be subject to approval by the Audit Committee.

Further, the Board has engaged an independent
consulting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
thorough review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the period
from 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2023 in accordance
with the requirements under Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects
(Continued)

After conducting a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
during the year, the Internal Auditor and the Consultant
reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems after implementation of the recommendations
of the Internal Auditor and the Consultant with regard
to internal control defects. The Audit Committee
reviews annually, and has reviewed during the year, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and
has access to information necessary to fulfil its duties
and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Based on the foregoing review,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective
and adequate during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the duty
and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and waiver to the disclosure of inside information, and
also compliance and reporting procedures. Every member
of the senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company from time to time. They must
promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial
Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide, on a course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to create long-term value for the
Shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements and
capturing future growth opportunities. The Board has
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws of the
Company and any other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) to provide guidance on whether to propose a
dividend and to guide the Board to consider, inter alia, the

following factors in determining the dividend amount:

° the Group’s actual earnings performance;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIVIDEND POLICY (CONTINUED)

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

the Group’s liquidity position;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business, financial results
and position of the Company; and

other factors that the Board may deem appropriate
and relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all Shareholders equally and ensures
that the Shareholders’ rights are protected and every
convenience is provided to them where practicable to
enable the exercise of their rights.

1. Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws,
Shareholders (the “Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may request the Board to call a SGM
by a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the written requisition. The requisition must be
signed by the Requisitionists and deposited with
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Before convening the SGM
of the Company, the requisition will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong to obtain their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order. The SGM shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
within 21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionists
themselves may convene such physical meeting in
the same manner in accordance with Section 74 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), (i) the
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders, are entitled to request the Company
to give shareholders notice of a resolution which
is intended to be moved at the next AGM or
SGM. A written notice to that effect signed by the
Requisitionist(s) with contact information must be
deposited at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1104-11086,
11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong (addressed to the Company Secretary). The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the
proposed resolution desired to be put forward at
the meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder in
such a proposal. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a
general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director”, which is posted on the
website of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

3. Procedures for raising enquiries to the Board
The Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address:  Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063
King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors

The Board recognises that effective communication
with the Company’s investors plays a crucial role in
maintaining existing investors’ confidence and attracting
new investors and enhancing their understanding of the
Group’s performance, strategies and future direction. The
Company has in place a shareholders’ communication
policy (“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) to ensure
that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. To foster effective communication with the
Shareholders and potential investors of the Company,
the Company endeavors to provide accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group
through the publication of the interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars, press interviews and press
releases on the website of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (CONTINUED)

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

The AGM provides a useful platform for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of
the Board and the Chairman of each board committees
are available at the AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
of the Company is also available at the AGM to assist
the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
the Shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining
an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders, the
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM or other
general meetings of the Company. The notice of AGM is
sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM and posted on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition to the AGM, the Board designates specialised
personnel to maintain close communication with research
analysts, fund managers, the Shareholders and media
outlets via regular one-on-one meetings, luncheons, press
conferences and road shows to keep them informed of
the Group’s business performance and developments.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness and
implementation of Shareholders’ Communication Policy
during the year and was of the view that, through
the above-mentioned measures, the Shareholders’
Communication Policy remained effective and was
implemented effectively, to ensure that the Company
maintains long-term effective and good communication
with its shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

In order to bring the Bye-Laws of the Company in line
with Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which has come into
effect on 1 January 2022, the amended and restated Bye-
Laws were adopted by way of a special resolution passed
by the Shareholders at the AGM held on 18 July 2022,
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report discloses Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(“Le Saunda” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) in the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performance for the year ended
28 February 2023.

Scope of This Report

Based on the principles of revenue contribution to the
Group and significant interactions with the environment
during the reporting period, the scope of this report
disclosed the operations of the Group in Mainland
China that involved design, development and retailing of
products including ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags,
and accessories. Since the cosmetics business in its first
year of operation was not significantly accounted for the
Group’s revenues during the reporting period, the relevant
information of cosmetics business was not disclosed
in this report according to the aforesaid principles.
Concluding the abovementioned disclosure scope, this
report covered the environmental and social responsibility
performance of the Hong Kong office and operating
sites in Mainland China pertinent to products including
footwear, handbags, and accessories.

Reporting Period
From 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2023.

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Comply or Explain” provisions and Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements of the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix

27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
Reporting Principles
Materiality

The Group regularly makes reference to the industry
sustainability standards at the local and international
level and strives to integrate with them. At the same
time, regular communication with various stakeholders
is used to identify the most concerned and important
sustainability topics for the Group. Those sustainability
topics will also be incorporated into the Group’s
development policies under the overall strategy of the
Group’s operations. The Group had conducted survey
to gather the opinions of key stakeholders on the
Group’s ESG management performance, to identify their
expectations on the Group and developed appropriate
strategies to respond to their views and needs.

Quantitative

The Group is committed to quantifying and disclosing key
performance indicators and data within the environmental
and social categories, and whenever feasible, explaining
the methods of data collection and calculation to enhance
transparency of the data.

Balance

In order to maintain the balance of reporting content, fair
disclosure of sustainability performance and challenges
related to the Group and stakeholders is provided with
impartial information to the public.

Consistency

The Group adheres to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” of the Listing Rules for
disclosure, which allows the Group to make meaningful
annual comparisons of past performance under the same
framework, and to disclose updated calculation methods
of relevant data when necessary.
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BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP

Le Saunda is a local brand renowned for fashionable
footwear, that is engaged in the design and development,
as well as sales of footwear of ladies and men, handbags
and other accessories in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Macau. During the year, the Group also established
diverse cosmetic shops in Hong Kong, in order to explore
new consumer market and develop new customer base
with the Group’s new brand, charm & easy. The key

AEEES
KBHAR " FRAMMBNESERE M
B EFBEAE - BARBANER
FAERAE - CURBEESARERE F&
REthEFER AFAN AEBEELEEB
AR ZITEMBEME UAEEFHRE
charm & easy ' KM F B E M5 M1
MEFER - AEBEETITTEREEE:

brands of the Group include:

MEN

le saunda l!esaunda /mﬁm PITTI DONNA

1977 Since its establishment, Le Saunda has developed rapidly and become one of the leading
footwear brands in PRC.

HRMABEIIAR ERAR WKATFRHAEEMUMNEREMBRZ— -

1991 The Group set up production lines at Shunde district in Foshan, PRC. Since then, the factory
in Shunde has gone through a series of expansion to increase its production capacity.
AEETEFRBLMIEEERTEES UELZRIEEREARAER -

1992 Le Saunda was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
EEBBAaXHPEMR LT -

90’s The Group expanded its retail network by setting up self-owned stores and franchise stores.
Le Saunda entered into retail market in PRC as early as 1990s when it opened its first retail
store in Shanghai to develop the huge market in PRC and unveil a brand new chapter for its
business.

AEBFARRELEERETRLEETHERZEREE - FROFEREFPRZETSE - 1
FERZRE—RZTEE HREANFEMS  AEKBRE2F—BH -
2001- In the past 17 years, the Group has launched a number of different brands for different
2017 targeted customer groups to meet the different needs, including a high-end brand “LINEA

ROSA” featuring trendsetting designs and premium quality, le saunda MEN has been
repositioned as a light luxury brand for fashionable men as well as online brand “PITTI
DONNA".

BETFHE, AEEHEIANEEEPE HEZATA@E  WASAEANFTE 81
HHAZEE RS M E 8= i@ LINEA ROSA] + le saunda MENE #7 5 i & B 15 55+ &9
WEZmE KRR EGEIPITTI DONNA] °
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BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP (CONTINUED)

2020

2021

2022

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - Ahd KRS

rXEEER R

The Group has ceased its production line at Shunde district in Foshan, PRC, and has switched
to a brand operating model with products entirely procured from external subcontractors.

AEERIERTEGILUTIERENEER AAZARIIKBELRNmEEEELN -

“le saunda Y Collection” with a designed concept of “Be yourself” was launched through online
channels, targeting the young customer group.
HYFERZE UERMEC ] ARETESM(le saunda Y Collection] A48 EF A H -

In this April and July, the Group opened physical stores in traditional shopping areas in
Causeway Bay and Mong Kok, engaging in cosmetic business under the new brand, charm &
easy. With the philosophy of “Clean Beauty”, the brand addressed the consumers’ demand for
mid to high-end cosmetic products and paid close attention to the cosmetic trend of non-toxic,

non-damaging and natural products.

RIUAR+A AEBHRERBEEMNTIAEREYERRERE U2 FMEcharm &
casyiE B M ER - RIEILZFEAR[Clean Beautyl B2 S IEAHBEHTSHERE @

MEXR  WEKES

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Group recognises the importance of good
environmental management and sustainable development,
so the Group has all along been in strict compliance of
the relevant environmental protection laws and standards
enacted in the places of its operations, including the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong.

The Group has implemented multiple environmental
protection measures in various business processes and
work premises, including retail stores, warehouses, and
offices. The measures included:

Green supply chain management

During the stages of product design and operation
planning, the Group will prioritise the adoption of products
made of environmentally-friendly materials, and will
focus on partnership with those suppliers possessing
environmental technology. Moreover, the Group is
committed to managing the environmental performance of
its supply chain.

Facilities
In the configuration of the facilities at the retail stores, the

Group has implemented LED lighting fixtures as one of
the energy saving measures.

THEERRANZRHRLIE
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY (CONTINUED)
Daily operations

For minimisation of paper use, the Group advocates the
“paperless” office, actively promotes electronic information
management system and set up communication devices
to facilitate phone and video conference for reduction in
emission of exhaust gases and greenhouse gases (“GHG”)
arisen from transportation.

BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS

In response to the post-pandemic situation and the slow
global economic recovery, the Group actively addresses
the adverse effects of the pandemic by capitalizing on
the brand value established in the industry and retail
management experience over years. The board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Group oversees the ESG
matters in the context of current business strategy, and
ensures that business operations in continued compliance
with local laws and regulations of the regions where the
business is operating, thereby safeguarding the interests
of the Group and stakeholders as well as enhancing the
corporate brand image.

Through different functional departments and working
groups, the Group regularly collects environmental, social
and governance information and then consolidates,
analyses, and discloses performance in the ESG report.
At the annual Board meeting, the Board members review
the performance disclosed in the ESG report to assure
it is aligned with our business strategy and is complying
to the laws and regulations, and to identify sustainability
topics that are important to the Group and stakeholders
for making appropriate decisions and adjusting the
relevant strategies as needed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS
(CONTINUED)

The Board is still dedicated to contribution in sustainable
development and was striving to reducing emissions
and saving resources amongst the stages ranging from
product design to other controllable aspects. The Board
considered feasible development strategies from multiple
perspectives, including but not limited to the following
examples:

o Adopt product design using environmental-friendly
materials at higher priority

o Partner with suppliers to explore green production
technology, including use of packaging materials of
higher level of environmental-friendly nature

o  Set goals for sustainable development

Social and governance matters include but not limited to
product responsibility, complaint handling, the general
disclosure regarding company’s policies on product
labelling, advertising, consumer privacy and any remedies
if needed.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that effective communication as
well as accurate and timely information disclosure will
strengthen the confidence of various stakeholders.
The management establishes regular communication
with the various stakeholders for timely exchange of
views and solicitation of feedbacks from each other.
Where appropriate, it will also share the latest business
information and seek to understand the demand
for corporate social responsibility from respective
stakeholders, which helps the Group in achieving different
goals for corporate sustainable development.

B - AL E ARl
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The Group believes that employees are important assets
for our success. Therefore, the Group has maintained
good relationship with the employees and strived to
keep a low employee turnover rate for improving the
operational capability and efficiency of the employees as
well as promoting team spirit among them. Upholding
the quality of the products and services is the way to
meet the consumers’ needs and to enhance the business
performance. As a result, maintaining long-term good
partnership with suppliers is also one of the main goals of
the Group.

Key stakeholders and the associated channels for
communication with them:

BiFHEzZBERGE

AEEHEERESRM—EEREE -
At AEEHEEE 2H-—ERFTRIEFW
ERMBRIGERS —BERKFNEER

Ko DUBRMEEGEEE L2 RRE
WiRE B TR BB o 45 E m Ak
BHRIFERREMEHEEFTKNME
BEBRAN—BIE - AR ER
RERARENAFRENSASEE
ZERBEZ—

TERNEREBRNERRE:

Social Media
R

Customers
X

Member Newsletters
& BB

Customer Surveys (Questionnaires, Phone Calls, E-mails)
EFAS(M% 85 BH)

Official Website
B 7 48 uh

Market Research
DR EES

Employees

5 & BYBEBRFE

Electronic Communication Platform

REEE )3T

Internal E-mails and Memos

S T Ny A Ay
BETERSH

Communication Sessions with Employees

Training
|

Procurement Contracts
KESR

Suppliers
HIER

HEmTASTA

Code of Conduct for Suppliers

Supplier Evaluations

e YA

Community/Charity Groups
HEREEE

Partnership Programmes

B EatEl
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Based on the Group’s evaluation of any possible deviation
between this reporting period and the previous reporting
period regarding the composition of product mix, regions
of operations and external stakeholders within the
reporting scope, it deemed the results of the materiality
assessment derived from the stakeholder engagement
last year using the following three steps remain valid for
this reporting year.

Step 1: Identify topics on environmental, social
and governance

In accordance with “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange as the framework for materiality assessment,
and taking into account of factors such as corporate
development strategies, industry development trends,
regulatory and market requirements, the stakeholder
questionnaire was developed to proceed survey on 18
sustainability topics in four categories: environmental
protection, employment and labour management,
operating practices and community investment.

Step 2: Identify stakeholders and set up
questionnaires

The stakeholders identified as utmost important
to the Group were our customers, suppliers and
employees. According to their respective perceptions
and expectations, specific content of the topics was
formulated in their respective questionnaires. The
questionnaires were then distributed to the sampled
stakeholders, whose feedback was collected within the
specified time frame.

Step 3: Evaluate and identify material topics

Through statistical analysis of survey feedback from ex
ternal stakeholders, and review of the Group’s corporate
strategies and the priorities of internal stakeholders, data
of both external and internal demands was consolidated
for plotting the “ESG Materiality Matrix Diagram”. From the
aforesaid 18 sustainability topics, the ESG material topics
of the Group were identified (in blue text in the table
below, as well within the blue square in the upper right
corner of the matrix diagram).
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ESG MATERIALITY MATRIX DIAGRAM ESGE E M 2 #7 JE f&
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)
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EEMF MG

Energy Management
BERE 2

Employment and
Employee Benefits
BERKETIRA

Quality
mER%

Community
Engagement
=YD=

Exhaust Gases and

Fair Recruitment

Customer Service

Carbon Emissions NEREE EF R
[E& = K Bk HE BR
Water Conservation Safety Information Security
2 EKEIR ZE2E L and Personal Data
Protection
EEREREBAEHR
R &
Solid Waste Employee Training Procurement and
Management BT 3 Supply Chain
EfEEENER Management
Rt E e e

Climatic Change
FIRE

Corporate Governance
hEER

Anti-Competitive
Behaviour
REEFITR

Intellectual Property
Rights Protection
R P& 0 8% 2

*Responsible Operation
BETLE

* Note: The topic “Responsible Production” is renamed to “Responsible
Operation” in the matrix diagram, for aligning to the change in the
Group’s business model from manufacturer to brand operator.
Despites the change in topic name, the same findings of the
previous stakeholder engagement were used since the original
topic questions in survey covered the same context regarding
of the company’s responsibility and decision for use of materials
in operations (e.g. product design) and selection of sustainable
packaging materials.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

In accordance with the requirements of “Comply or
Explain” disclosures for all aspects in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“the Guide”),
the Group has undertaken the disclosure obligation
of pertaining to the compliance of the relevant laws
and regulations of significant impacts, as well as the
“Mandatory Disclosure Requirements” stipulated in the
Guide.

For the year ended 28 February 2023, the Group did not
identify any significant non-compliance with the laws and
regulations pertinent to the ESG aspects covered by this
report.

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS

Environmental Aspect
1) Environmental management policies

Being a responsible company, the Group advocates
5R principles for reducing environmental pollution
and raising resource utilization, namely Refuse,
Reduce, Reuse, Repair and Recycle.

Refuse

For product design, it is dedicated to the use
of non-hazardous and environmentally friendly
materials. It is also the Group’s policy to pursue
“green procurement”, which requires the suppliers
to maximize the supply of raw materials possessing
degradable characteristics (e.g. shoe boxes) in order
to reduce environmental hazards. Also, production
subcontractors are required to optimize the
production processes and industrial engineering and
to persist in the use of more environmentally friendly
materials in the manufacture of packaging materials
for finished goods of shoes, with the aim to minimise
environmental pollution.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

7)

Environmental management policies (Continued)
Reduce

Production subcontractors are required to upgrade
equipment and technology to reduce waste and
resources consumption. Administrative measures are
adopted within the Group for reducing environmental
impacts, such as arrangement of video conference in
replacement of remote physical meeting for reduction
of GHG emission incurred from taking transportation
like aircraft.

Reuse

For the recyclable wastes (example: packaging
cartons, plastic bags), methodologies for their
classification and reuse have been established. Also,
for internal office operation, it involves the reuse of
single-printed papers and the practice of double-
sided printing.

Repair

“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) is the basis of the Group’s after-sales service.
To encourage saving of resources, repairing service
is offered to customers under specified conditions.

Recycle

To support recycling, the Group has appointed
vendors to handle recyclable resources, such as
paper waste.

)
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ITENE i o

# 15 (Repair)

AEBEREEREO =6 B (A
PR BB} BB RFEERT
RIEEERY  SZERFEEER -

18 3% /1= (Recycle)

ZREINE AW REEALOKME
R BEERR XEFEERBRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AL RERHRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

2)

Environmental Targets

The Group adopts business model of brand operator
and retailer, focusing on product design and brand
management. As a result, there was no significant
emission of exhaust gases or sewage, nor generation
of hazardous wastes. Under the operation of the
reporting year, the usage of water in office and retalil
operation was minimal, the target on water use
efficiency was not material and hence not required
to be established. Nevertheless, the Group is
striving to set the following environmental targets for
contribution towards environmental protection:

BERtEHBNRE ()

5 90 B ()

2 BEAE
FERRAQIELERRTERD
LEER EIERBHLRGEEE

1 & E .ﬁﬁﬁz‘“%q:‘/xﬁjiilﬁ
RLBEKNEEHR WYETEELERE
BEEY) - EAFEMEET AKH
W AERTELEREKERD -
AAKMZERLIFEEREZER
mABEN BREEDNAFTILT
FIRFERE  BMAOARRNES N

Emission Reduce the use of 1.
reduction transportation means
BB E which could incur “direct

GHG” emission.

BV EHREELEIER
BERBIHHRHORBTLT
/E\_O

Minimised the number of delivery
times by consolidating the orders

of procurement for retail materials

and merchandises, that reduced the
transportation emission incurred by
fuel consumption. Procurement orders
were consolidated from different

sites nationwide every 2 months for
centralized delivery management

HRZEEYHNEL  BEFARXREBN
MO RERE EBUR D R B R
AmEHPHN - BMEAEEZ2EN
FEE ETEPTIEREE-

Reduced the number of business trip
meeting through the use of video,
teleconferencing or other electronic
online communication tool in order to
reduce GHG emission incurred from use
of transportation.

FEREARE BSESRIEMEFER
@A - /JEKQ&%QE% Iﬁﬁ/}&Q

RE MR AT AMESH R EREBEN
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - Ahd KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BEERMSEHENRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued) RIBEE(E)
2) Environmental Targets (Continued) 2) REHZ(E)
Waste reduction Reduce paper waste 1. Reused paper cartons received by
WAL REEY generated from the retailing operations. During the reporting
operation year, it is estimated that there was a
WL EEBEBRERELED recycling use of approximately 80 tonnes
MEREEY of paper wastes resulting from this
practice.

BREMTERBMZFROEN - BB
¥ e - ANFE L E B B UEE F K80ME
MMERERED -

2. Use of non-laminated technology for
paper-based packaging, e.g., shoe boxes,
gift packaging boxes. This enables and
facilitates recycling of paper wastes.
KREABRIZNRERER  WESR
BnbRaF EEBEANEKRES
EMBEHMELE -

3. Strengthened electronic operations and
file management to reduce paper use and
consumption in offices.
MABEFHNEERBERERE BRI
NEHNREFERE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B Al AR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

2) Environmental Targets (Continued)

Energy use
efficiency
B IR FA A 2

Adopt alternative means
to reduce the number of
times that the company’s
vehicles are used, in
order to reduce fuel
consumption.
ERERFER BIA
AIEWAE AR E
BUR D HFERER -

BRRMSERNERS (H)

REEE (R
2) REFEZGE)

Changed the sourcing way with material
suppliers: it was changed to direct
delivery to the subcontracted warehouses
of third-party logistics company at
different regions in closer proximity,
which aim to reduce the distance of
truck transportation and hence fuel
consumption as compared to previous
transportation to our owned warehouse
at Shunde.
EHOHHEENREA R REEE
ZAZBUEBMONE=TWRAAH
IBEREE: HEBAEXIAEERERN
Ig#&E = B - BT &= e IR Bl & R

Adopted video conferencing applications
for internal meeting arrangement, thereby
reducing the number of business trips for
intra-group meetings and hence reducing
the use of vehicles.

KARAERSE  RIEARARAE
@ EMRIAEEREENSZE
R EINRIOERAEWOUR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

3)

Emissions

As a brand and retail operator, the Group does not
have owned manufacturing facilities and hence does
not have sewage and exhaust emissions arisen from
production activities. Nevertheless, the Group’s retail
stores and offices, despites no significant sewage
and exhaust emissions from these premises, also
contributed certain amount of emission of GHG
through electricity consumption and transportation
involved in their related operations.

In terms of the Group’s revenues in this reporting
year, the emission intensity was 5 tonnes carbon
dioxide (CO,) equivalent per million revenues in RMB.

The retailing operation of the Group did not involve
the generation of hazardous wastes. Therefore, no
hazardous waste was recorded in the reporting year.

B - AL E ARl

BRERMESEBHNERE (E)

RRER (A
3) HRY

AEBER—RmEMTEZERD -
YREBRNEERE BMA%
BOR B 4 E AR A5 K & R SR A BE
Mo R YRAEENZE)EH
EWRAEZE BEELSMRE
BENSKRERFER EMEH
EBA N BRE R MER BN

LEEA-EMNENEERE -

BRRASBAFENZEBTE
BBEARBZZWABERSM — A1t

RE= -
REEBNTELEFTRESRESE

BEMMES B AFED AR
BEEEEYNEE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B Al AR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

BERtEHBNRE ()

Environmental Aspect (Continued) RERE (&)

3) Emissions (Continued) 3) HHY(E)
ESG Environmental Performance — Emissions ESGRIEEN — W
The following table set forth the amount of emission T §IJ ABRBEETAREFEBNLE
and the intensities from GHG and Non-hazardous AENMEBEZEEEYNHERERHE
Wastes in the reporting year: zujr; :

GHG
BRERE
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)'  tonnes CO, equivalent 10.51 16.29
EEHRAREREE(HBE) WM_StREE
Energy indirect GHG emissions tonnes CO, equwalent 2,056.68 2,612.46
(Scope 2)? W-aftiREE
EREEFHAZEREE (HE2):?
Total GHG emissions? tonnes CO, equivalent 2,067.20 2,628.75
BRERBHMESES g — %ﬁﬁ?ﬁi
Total GHG em|SS|ons mtensity tonnes CO, equivalent 5.00 4.62
BEREBHERA revenue (million in RMB)
—ELREE/BEEA
Eﬁ% EERA
Wastes B £ )
Non-hazardous wastes* tonne 7.40 5.22
BEERY 1
Non-hazardous wastes emission  kg/revenue (million in RMB) 17.91 9.14
intensity R/ 8BEARKE
BEREMIEMEE =ESVON

Direct GHG emission was mainly originated from fuel combustion during gasoline consumption by vehicles, diesel consumption
by electricity generator in Guangzhou office, and natural gas consumption by dormitory in Guangzhou. Method of calculation was
based on “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.

HERERRFTZREE®H A BMPAETREHEE  BNEERARSMELEERNBEN - 5TE 7R E N 20064 H Ak (B
FERERZEILEMEZES (IPCOBRREEREBFERM) -

Energy indirect GHG emission was originated from consumption of electricity purchased from external source. Regional grid
emission factors used in the calculation were referenced to the values issued by HK Electric’s Sustainability Report and National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) in People’s Republic of China.

RRREZRERERBRAMEENNHEEENR AELEMKANEREBEEREREFRAZ2ZERIAFERRBRERIF
BARANANFERNAEEES (NDRC) Fi 28 BI(E -

Global Warming Potential (GWP) adopted in this GHG calculation were based on the values disclosed in the Sixth Assessment
Report (AR6) of Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
BERETERMKANSIRERELE GWP) BERC(BNEREZ(CHEPFIZEE (PCC) F/NRTHME (ARG) FITEMEOEE -

Since the warehousing has been subcontracted by the Group to the third-party logistics company, therefore the disposed cartons
and paper boxes generated from the courier of product returns were destroyed by the third-party logistics company, which
consolidated such wastes from other merchants and hence could not provide the figures on the weight of such wastes generated
by the Group in the reporting year. Consequently, the aforesaid figures were simply estimated based on the previous experience.
ZK%@F BEINBGEE=TMRAR  WEF B&L}Ehéiﬁ’]%i&*a&@i&‘*{{$¢ﬁ%ﬁm%‘7‘5%43y@ﬁ%ﬂ’]@f%%
HM—HREE  FABZEBLEAERELERYNESRS - TS BARRREENEELRMARNFEHFHNGE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

4)

Use of Resources

Each operating region of the Group has adopted the
appropriate equipment and administrative measures
to enhance the effectiveness in use of resources.
Part of the measures included:

e Through re-routing the delivery service, the
usage of vehicle is reduced and hence the
consumption of gasoline and diesel oils is also
reduced

e  Through reusing the cartons and paper boxes
from parcel deliveries amongst offices and retalil
departments, the usage of paper resources is
reduced

° In PRC regional offices, seats are better planned
so that no need to switch on the lights when
some area have no one there. LED lighting is
preferred. Employees are encouraged to switch
off the computers and equipment when they are
not in use, while lighting is switched off during
lunch break and after office hours. A framework
for energy use supervision has been reinforced
on practices regarding light-off when not in use,
and setting temperature and fan control of air-
conditioners

° The Group advocates “paperless” office, and
has been promoting electronic information
management system. With the use of electronic
files, it reduces unnecessary use of papers

B - AL E ARl

BRERMESEBHNERE (E)

B 15 4 0 ()

Q) EEEA
AEBSELEESRAOESEE
RATHHE N - RIE RS BRE -
5 B 5 -

e FRABHEEBREA BRLER
B W - = BUR DR TH K& S
5 R R

e WRERTEHFBRERK
BRENEELAR  BEH
MAREER

e REBEAREMEE  ELHBE
EFBEE REAUETHAR
B MBI R ETRERMLED R E ¢
FEBRMAZTITHER  BK
EBETI KBTI ERORAERE
MEIRBE X FIRESERRERE
BN ABEREE - 86 0ok
MAOREEEEBNE BE
B ABEREE & =R E B
HhBREEEHIE B

e HINAEEREMEMA MR
RE W—BEHTEFEEERE
A BBERETFRE B
T B 4R fE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AL RERHRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

4)

Use of Resources (Continued)

ESG Environmental Performance — Use of
Resources

The data for consumption of electricity and water in
Mainland China has covered for retail stores located
in Guangzhou office and other regions, including
those located in shopping malls/areas managed by
property management companies.

The table below set forth the consumption and the
associated intensities for the main resources of the
Group during the reporting period. Apart from the
calculation for consumption intensities of packaging
materials (papers and plastics) was based on
annual goods received quantities, the consumption
intensities of other resources were calculated in
terms of million revenues in RMB:

BE

RiR

)

Kit & g1 s 0 & (8

g (&)
BEREH (&)
ESGREEN — BIREMN

BRAENNERAKBEEHCEEZR
M nzEREMERENTEEH -
BREBEMRDEEERRBES
%/ B e JE

TREFARBEREHMHES
ARFEAERATE - BT RENR
EH B OEATERRD S
MBARBEANERE I K
it B R R IR A RS
B

Electricity KWh 3,142,976 3,261,589

BN F LB

Gasoline Litre 4,440 6,800

H NI

Diesel oll Litre 100 240

g m NF

Natural gas cubic metre 75 108

RAR AR

Water cubic metre 5,423 5,960

K AVAVS PN

Packaging materials — Paper® tonne 382.41 715.35

BRI (M) g

Packaging materials — tonne 1.91 3.50
Plastics® L7

BEME (BH)e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - Ahd KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERMSEENRS (H)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued) RIFEHE (&)
4) Use of Resources (Continued) 4) BFEEH(E)
ESG Environmental Performance — Use of ESGRIREN — BERFEA(E)

Resources (Continued)

Electricity® kWh/revenue (million in RMB) 7,605.93 5,731.80
Ik TRE SEEARBEK
Gasoline litre/revenue (million in RMB) 10.75 11.95
i DT/ BEBEARBLER
Diesel all litre/revenue (million in RMB) 0.24 0.42
i N/ BERBARKER
Natural gas cubic metre/revenue (million 0.18 0.19
RAR in RMB)
VAR BERBARKER
Water 7K cubic metre/revenue (million 13.12 10.47
in RMB)
MK/ BRBARKER
Packaging materials — Paper® kg/annua| goods received 0.48 0.54
AR/ 2FERBARHE
(Bfr)
Packaging materials — kg/annua| goods received <0.01 <0.01
Plastics® i i
> quantity (unit)
£ 8 4l (p 6 . =
REWHEN) AF/2ERGAEHE
(1)
5 This year, an increase in electricity consumption as per kWh/revenue (million in RMB) was because the significant drop of sales

revenue.
AEEMENENRE(TER /S8 8AREER)RNAF E IR 5EZ=ERSI5E -
6 The figure was based on the amount of packaging materials consumed by external suppliers.

REANDBHERREANRKDHIEMGE -
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BREL - AL RERHRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

5)

ESG Environmental Performance — Climate
Change

In response to extreme weather incurred by the
climate change in recent years, the Group has
identified the possible emergency situations such
as the flooding risk caused by rainstorm weather.
For addressing the risks associated with the
relevant natural disasters, emergency plan has been
established to prevent the occurrence of dangers
and damages and the measures include but not
limited to:

° Prevention of flooding nearby operation facilities
at the time of rainstorm weather;

e  Securing of the outdoor equipment before the
hoisting of super typhoon signal;

o Instruction to employees to ensure all windows
closed and regular window inspection prior to
typhoon;

° Regarding the material transportation risk
caused by extreme weather, evaluation of the
impacts to the procurement of raw materials
(such as price and quantity) will be conducted;

o For tackling resource strain caused by climate
change, contingency plan for changing the
product compositions will be established.

Moreover, with regards to the climate change
mainly attributed to GHG, the Group has adopted
measures mentioned in the previous sections of this
report regarding energy conservation and emission
reduction, with the aim to reduce emission of GHG
and ultimately to mitigate the tendency of climate
change.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect

7)

Employment
Recruitment and Promotion Policies

The Group only considers the capabilities of job
applicants as the primary assessment criteria, and
reviews the job performance, experience, business
performance and competence of employee as
the conditions for promotion. We have developed
practices of “employment management for persons
with disabilities” to actively consider the job
applications by persons with different disabilities. In
the past, ethnic minorities have been employed to
create a diversified working environment. The Group
will not reject the job application nor review the
promotion based on the attributes of applicants such
as gender, disability, race, family status, etc.

As at 28 February 2023, the total number of full-time
employees in the Group was 1,120, of which 1,085
persons were employees in China and 35 persons
were employees in Hong Kong. On the other hand,
there was a total of 106 part-time employees in
Mainland China, while 3 part-time employees were
engaged in Hong Kong.

Remunerations and Employee Benefits

The Group not only meets the minimum wage
requirements in each operating location, but also
offers remunerations which are competitive on the
market to attain a higher staff retention rate. In this
reporting year, the overall average monthly employee
turnover rate was 3.98%. As compared with the
employee turnover rate of the previous year (2021/22:
5.90%), the overall turnover rate was significantly
reduced by around 33%.

B - AL E ARl

BRERTESHERNERE (E)

ol
1) 1Eg
BELEFTRETH

AEBEREBEREZENENERE
EEZNEE - RABRENTIERR -
R RENMBENERB TG
BZPERIERAARRBEEIRERF
KGR E BRI AK AR -
BELREERIBREREES
TENTHERR -AEBEALSEAR
R BR BEEREAREMULER
EMERBERENHBRERSET
MEBRZE -

R-ZEBE-_=%F_A-+NH K&EH
MNEBRBETAZHKEAEII200 EF
1,085BENE T NISABEBETL:
S ERAFBEINTHEL A
WERIET106% - REBRIRE T3
LRBET

FHEEBRETIRAAM
AEEBTEFASEEHMMKET
EMEXR WIREAEMERFSN
MEFMEE NE—EA&mWE
THEE AFEEEBNEAYHE
ERAER338%:  HEFENEE
MAER(ZE=-— /"= =4 :590%)
B OMARERRBRADTHZ3% °
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AL RERHRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

7)

Employment (Continued)
Remunerations and Employee Benefits (Continued)

In terms of employee benefits, we have always
been complying with social security and other
legal benefits in PRC, including social insurance
contributions for all employees. In addition, long
service awards will be granted to permanent
employees after they have completed every five
consecutive years of service with the Group, as kind
of encouragement and enhancement of employees’
sense of belonging. Different operating regions
will provide other forms of employees’ benefits in
accordance with different job positions.

Working Hours

To achieve work-life balance, the Group neither
advocates nor forces employees to work overtime.
However, due to the needs of different positions,
certain employees may still need to work overtime
provided that all overtime work must be done on a
voluntary basis and in compliance with the relevant
regulations of the operating region. Furthermore,
the Group is honoured to be awarded by different
organizations over the years, demonstrating
its continued commitment to maintain a good
employment relationship: (1) Awarded the “Caring
Company Logo” for 15 consecutive years or above
from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service; (2)
participated in the “Happiness at Work Promotional
Scheme” and was awarded as a “Happy Company”
for the 5th consecutive year; and (3) passed the
“Employees Retraining Board (ERB) Manpower
Developer Award Scheme” assessment and was
renewed as a “Manpower Developer”.

100 6 saunda holdings Itd. 2 BT FHERBR A7)

BRERTESHERNERE (E)

e HEK(E)
1) ER(E)

FMSEREIRN S @E(E)
ERETHRMNTE BMA—EETF
BA LSRR NS EORE N
BEEXR BEAMAEREERE MM
Re B REAREEEERS W
BF LA RE  HAESRIAR
B AEEBRNSEREENEE
B HEERITERRMAIER
Hipfe AW B L&A -

TieEE A M
REBRREI/FAR  BMLTE
REGBERERBEMM I BEEEFT
RITEEMNMTE % 1EBHE A4
TEEBEETIE MATEMBEIIES
WEEERRAT WAFAEEB
FTEMMERBMME TIENSRTE H
AT o BN REBZFRELET
F#ENET TEASEERY
BEBERLENFEAZ  (1)EEISTF
FNEESEBLEREE 2)E
EHIgARBEIERS: Q28 FL
TIEMIHKERE  EEFFERE
FRIFALEE] RO RIERBA A
TEETFEITBEATIEEFmE
EEIATTEINER -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - Ahd KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERMSEHEBENRE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued) HEEHE(E)

1) Employment (Continued) 1) 1EE(#E)
Working Hours (Continued) TiERM A E(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics MEEESIEA L&

Full-time employees person 1,120 1,342
PBET A
Part-time employees person 109 91
FREETL A
Male person 71 84
B A
Female person 1,049 1,258
g A
18-30 years old person 108 207
18-3073% A
31-45 years old person 840 990
31-455% A
46-60 years old person 171 144
46-6073% A
>60 years old person 1 1
>607% A
Hong Kong person 35 19
BB A
Mainland China person 1,085 1,323
SNETIAE: A
7 The statistics by gender and age group in Mainland China and Hong Kong was based on the total number of full-time employees

only.
RUEFIRFEDERANEARETBEAMRUEZBE INEBERT -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERUMSEHEBENRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued) HEeHEBE(E)

1) Employment (Continued) 1) 1EE(#E)
Working Hours (Continued) TIERM A E(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics WEEBSEOLEK(E)
(Continued)

Male % 3.78 4.55
S
Female % 4.00 6.48
g
18-30 years old % 7.32 10.11
18-305%
31-45 years old % 4.85 7.73
31-45%%
46-60 years old % 1.69 2.97
46-605%
>60 years old % 0 0
>6073%
Hong Kong % 5.25 9.70
i
Mainland China % 2.73 211
A A 3

8 For calculation of the “employee turnover rate” within the retailing business in Mainland China, it only took account of the full-time

employees’ mobility, given that part-time employees were engaged on irregular needs of the business and hence the aforesaid
calculation did not include the number of part-time employees.

REANTEEBNEERREIFES ARF2BAENRY AEARBEIRESTERNTE - MUE FlstEHY
REBIERB A -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

2)

Health and Safety

For ensuring the safety of working environment and
enhancing employees’ awareness on occupational
health and safety, the Group has formulated
procedures and operating rules related to the
occupational health management system for
reference and compliance by the employees, with the
aim to reduce the occurrence of accidents.

The Group’s office operation was also concerned on
the occupational safety. Fire drills and inspections
of all fire equipment has been conducted on a
regular basis to avoid occurrence of accidents. In
the reporting year, the administrative department of
the Guangzhou office has arranged employees to
participate in the fire drills organized by the property
management agency, for acquiring the skills on the
use of fire extinguishers.

Despite there was no hazardous job nature identified
in the operation, in the reporting period the Group
allocated a fixed cash allowance to subsidize health
examination, for maximizing the occupational health
and safety protection to employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
identify any significant non-compliance of the
occupational health and safety regulations and
provisions in operating regions. Also, in the past 3
consecutive years (including the reporting period),
the Group did not identify any incident of employee’s
fatality incurred from work.

On the other hand, there was a total of 94 working
days lost due to work-related injuries (2021/22: 79
days), which all were attributed to injury incidents in
Mainland China.

B - AL E ARl
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

3)

Development and Training

For raising the professional knowledge and skKills
of employees, the Group has designated functional
departments for provision of respective trainings to
different ranks of employees, on regular basis or
upon the launch of new product or technology, in
order to equip employees with product knowledge
in a professional manner. Whenever appropriate,
contests or other forms of activities will be organized
to enhance learning motivation of employees.

During the reporting period, there was a total of 7,574
counts of employees participated in the trainings
provided by the Group (2021/22: 6,286 counts of
participants), and the total training hours achieved by
all employees amounted to 18,312 hours (2021/22:
20,0083 hours). As compared with the previous year,
the monthly average proportion of trained employees
and the monthly average number of training hours
per employee was increased by 35% and 41%
respectively.

Despites the aforesaid classroom trainings
were reduced as a consequence of pandemic
impacts, alternatively the Group adopted online
communication channel and utilized company’s
internal workgroup apps for sending articles to
employees regarding the awareness topics relevant
to environmental habits, which included low-carbon
lightings, water conservation in public areas, reduced
use of paper-based commodities, etc.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERHESEHENRE (E)

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social Aspect (Continued)

3) Development and Training (Continued)

Two-year comparison of employment statistics®

¥ 9 ()
3 BERZE)
4 5 R T 2 B e e

By gender

ol
Male no. of attendees 170 91
B4 ANIR
Female no. of attendees 7,404 6,195
7% ANIR

Senior Management no. of attendees 48 46
mRERE ANIR
B B AR
Junior Staff no. of attendees 7,051 5,696
BT NN

Male hour 312 276
S /B
Female hour 18,000 19,727
7t /N
Senior Management hour 309 328
SREEE N
Middle Management hour 1,615 2,219
PREERE IINBE
Junior Staff hour 16,388 17,456
MHET N
9 The training data in the table included the participants (Directors and new staff) attending the topics related to anti-corruption.

HRANZIBEES2HBDERBAREINAB(EERHET) -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERMSEENRE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued) HEHE(E)

3) Development and Training (Continued) 3) BERZI(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics® MEEE NS BB L& (8)
(Continued)

Male % 14.65 6.15
S

Female % 39.66 30.48
gl

Senior Management % 16.06 10.26
=AREEE

Middle Management % 12.58 18.14
PREEE

Junior Staff % 4417 34.15
MHEETL

Male hour 0.41 017
B N
Female hour 1.20 0.85
7% NG

Senior Management hour 0.78 0.69
= A E 1R N
Middle Management hour 0.43 0.63
hAREIRE N
Junior Staff hour 1.45 0.92
MNHEEL /B
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

4)

Labour Standards

The Group is dedicated to safeguarding the rights
and interests of employees by building a fair working
environment for employees. Also, the Group has
been strictly complying with regulations to ensure
that no form of forced labour is imposed and no child
labour is recruited.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have
any employment of child labour or any violation of
regulations related to forced labour.

Preventive measures against child labour

Applicant is required to fill in his/her personal
information in the employment application form, to
show his/her personal identification documentation
for the Group’s verification of his/her age and other
personal information.

Applicant below the legal minimum working age
is not allowed to attend the job interview. The
designated department of the Group would verify
the age of the applicant and the authenticity of the
personal identification documentation. The Group
would only recruit those applicants at or above the
legal minimum working age.

Retail department in-charge and HR department
would conduct shop inspection to confirm that all
employees currently working at shops have passed
through the normal recruitment channel.

In event of identification of any child labour in the
daily management, the Group would terminate
the employment relationship and proceed the
subsequent steps in accordance with the legal
requirements.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

4)

5)

Labour Standards (Continued)
Preventive measures against forced labour

Upon onboarding, the Group would request new
employee to submit the personal identification
documentation for HR verification, but anyway will
not withhold the identification documentation nor
request for any deposit.

In accordance with the job descriptions and the
appropriate conditions for task arrangement, the
Group would not adopt threatening or violent
practices for coercing employees to take on
incapable or unreasonable jobs.

The Group would not force employees to work
overtime. In case of any overtime need, prior
consensus from employee and advance approval is
required. Overtime application would be submitted
by the employee themselves and not requested by
supervisor.

If there was the occurrence of any forced labour
condition, the Group would immediately commence
the investigation and eliminate the condition in
accordance with the legal requirements.

Supply Chain Management
Geographical distribution of Suppliers

As at 28 February 2023, the Group engaged a total
of 19 active suppliers, all of which were located
in Mainland China, for provision of production
subcontracting services, warehousing services,
packaging bags and boxes to the Group.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Assessment of Suppliers

The Group has established supplier assessment
process that requires evaluation prior to formal
procurement. During the reporting period, the Group
engaged a total of 2 new suppliers. The scope of
evaluation included the evidence of legal entity,
production capacity, quality assurance system,
evidence of environmental compliance and the
aspects related to social responsibility, etc., for
assuring the compliance with the requirements
imposed by customers, regulators and the Group’s

policy.

Existing suppliers were also evaluated as needed for
continual monitoring and a total of 19 suppliers for
product manufacturing has passed the evaluation
during the reporting period. Based on the magnitude
of impacts associated with different supplies to
the Group’s finished goods, different methods of
evaluation may apply accordingly, including on-
site inspection, product testing, sample approval,
random inspection of mass production, verification
of qualification documents, self-assessment
questionnaire, etc. When conducting on-site
inspections, the scope of evaluation includes verifying
conformance with environmental protection permits
and production configuration involving workshop
conditions, production equipment, and allocation in
number of employees.

New supply of materials could only be formally
purchased upon passing of the supplier evaluation.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Control of Environmental and Social Risks

For materials and supplies containing potentially
hazardous substances, including those supplies
of exterior leather, interior leather, metal buckles,
sole materials, heels, and finished shoes, the Group
requires suppliers to provide materials in compliance
with relevant regulations and standards and passing
the relevant environmental tests, for example:

° Leather — scope of testing: content of formaldehyde,
and decomposable harmful aromatic amine dye;

e  Metallic buckles in footwear — scope of testing:
content of nickel release, and content of heavy
metals such as lead (Pb), cadmium (Cd),
mercury (Hg), hexavalent chromium (Cr (VI)), etc.

The procurement contracts between the Group and
suppliers will require the suppliers to submit the
materials for third-party testing and to refrain from
using materials which would damage the environment
or contain any hazardous substances harmful to
human. Whenever appropriate, the attachments
to the procurement contract will specify those
hazardous substances that could not be contained,
such as formaldehyde, decomposable harmful
aromatic amine dye, heavy metals, etc.

Formal procurement could only be made after
evaluation of the environmental testing results of
those materials containing potentially hazardous
substances, for controlling their respective emission,
pollution or other adverse effects on the environment.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Control of Environmental and Social Risks
(Continued)

For those suppliers whose operation impose
significant impact to the environment, the scope
of the Group’s evaluation would even cover
their preventive measures against environmental
pollution. It requires the suppliers to provide the
evidence, e.g. discharge permit, in meeting the
targets of discharging effluent in accordance with
environmental requirement of the local government
and compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and standards.

Therefore, in additional to material testing, production
subcontractors were also evaluated on their valid
discharge permits, including the installation of
environmental protection equipment, transfer and
handling of hazardous wastes, environmental test
reports related to exhaust gases and noise, etc. In
selection of suppliers, priority would then be given
to those not imposing significant environmental
hazards.

Moreover, the Group also evaluated the operational
compliance of other business partners in the
supply chain and assessed the involved risks
related to social responsibility, such as employment
compliance, occupational safety, product compliance
and risk of commercial bribery. For assuring
compliance with labor laws when managing suppliers
in Mainland China, the Group has included in the
procurement contracts with labour protection clauses
and requires all suppliers to sign them as one of the
risk management tools.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Green Procurement

Whenever complying with operating requirements,
the Group will give priority to equipment and
materials that are environmentally friendly in nature.
For shoe boxes currently purchased by the Group,
the raw materials have been using environmentally
friendly papers which could be recyclable. The Group
prioritised those suppliers of shoes boxes, who
have attained certification from Forest Stewardship
Council (FSQ).

In addition to shoes boxes, the Group is striving to
work with suppliers on exploration and application of
environmentally friendly materials as the components
of the Group’s finished goods, such as for producing
the outer layer of shoes.

Upon selection of energy-consuming equipment,
priority is also given to products that are certified or
labelled as energy efficient.

In addition, the Group has established local
procurement policy as one of the measures for green
procurement. Under similar cost and product quality
conditions, priority is given to local (Mainland China
and Hong Kong) suppliers of products and services
for minimising emission of GHG from transportation
during the procurement processes.

During the reporting period, all suppliers were
situated at Mainland China and there was no direct
overseas procurement.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERMESEENRE (E)

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued) HEHE(HE)

6) Product Responsibility 6) EmMEF
For assuring product compliance and meeting REBAEBRERAERLEFTARRE
customers’ expectations, the Group provides HE - enPiEHERLEEAR
customers with accurate and true information on fE o ﬁg MZEZHBFTA
the quality and safety of its products. All products EnVEBRBESE MNTr2mE 8
must pass through testing on quality and safety HUHEYE 2ERAZEDHEO®
requirements, including those tests on materials like B HAREZEREEEERER
leather, metallic accessories, etc., for assuring quality PHRE o

and safety of the products delivered.

For management of product compliance, the Group RTEBERGR A&EH Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ{
would agree with the suppliers regarding the terms of FEEEZIINEEAR L IS X
requirements on technological standard and quality BARIERENMmERE El’] 23k
assurance, with the aim to safeguard the brand RERNEBHNHEOR -

reputation of the Group.

Prior to the delivery of finished goods, the Group EXBEEN AEEBe2kHE S
would assign quality control personnel to conduct ABRMETHE TE - FHREE
sampling and inspection at the factory site. Finished Zig A @ HMIT o

goods are allowed to release only upon fulfillment of

the quality standards.

According to the categories of shoes and handbags, ERELBIRELRTFRER  £F
“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement, AEBTHERTHT =B IHTE F
Repair) applies to the sold products under specific — BEBER: F- BIEBEE: F
conditions: First, items guaranteed for return; — BmEERRB -KRBIZBIBEE T
second, items guaranteed for repair; third, handling MM AEEBRREPERNEERND
of product replacement. According to “Three-R” BEENEEFRKOEE -

provision, the following table set forth the accepted
number of requests for product return and repair
during the reporting period.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social Aspect (Continued)
6) Product Responsibility (Continued)

BERMESEBNERE ()

HEsEE (&)
6) EmEE(E)

In the same period, apart from the aforesaid
customer requests for returns and repairs, the Group
identified that there was no significant incident of
product non-compliance or any case of customer
complaint, nor identify any recall incident owing to

R BRTEANEFRENGER
KOAEBBRLBEANERE
RERAEPRF LRBAEREMDN
LR BEREHM LA EEHE KD
(EESK

product’s health and safety issues.

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February 28 February 28 February
2023 2022 2023 2022
BE_E_= Bz2-—=E_—_— BE_-_ZE—-= BEr—_T_—_—
Product type —A=+NH —BA=+NH —A=+NH —B=+NH
E Al LHFE LFE LtEE LHFE
Shoes 118 205 937 2,875
&
Handbags 1 4 26 34
FL&

AREBERRILIEERMM BERE

The Group has designated the particular department
to be responsible for handling of customer
complaints and the initiation of product recall
procedure whenever necessary.

In case of need for product recall, the Group would
work with the responsible supplier for quality
investigation and with the relevant departments to
analyse the product issues for formulation of the
corrective actions.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

6)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The employees of the Group also adhere to the
established rules for protection of intellectual
property.

During the reporting period, the Group has applied
patents from “China National Intellectual Property
Administration” regarding the appearance design
of metal buckles and have successfully registered
22 items for assuring intellectual property rights of
the buckle accessories being used in the Group’s
products.

Information and documentation related to the
intellectual property, such as product drawings,
technical specifications, would be secured and
stored by the designated department. Without
permission, employees are not allowed to make
photocopy or to take away from the company
premises.

The Group is bound by confidentiality agreement
with customers not to disclose customer information
to external parties.

Also, the Group has signed with confidentiality
agreements with business partners, for committing
no external disclosure of any product information.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

6)

7)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights (Continued)

Regarding application of commercial software in the
office application, the Group is committed to not
procuring software in any form of pirated version and
only purchasing from software developer and its the
authorized dealers.

For security of customer data, based on different
infraction risk levels, the Group will use hardware
firewall to protect the stored data from attacks by
hackers, enables behaviour management equipment,
activates login account in enhanced password format
as well as mandatory changes of passwords every
three months, and requires access to internal file
servers under permission.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is convinced that fairness, honesty and
integrity are its important commercial assets, and
therefore requires all employees (including directors)
at different levels to strictly adhere to business ethics,
which ensures that the Group’s reputation will not be
compromised by misconducts such as dishonesty,
disloyalty or corruption. We have incorporated
the requirements of relevant laws and regulations,
including “Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China” related to various corruption and bribery
offences and “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” of
Hong Kong, in the “Employee Code of Practice”,
which provides concise and clear guidance for all
employees in the aspects of prevention of corruption
and bribery, solicitation of benefits, acceptance of
benefits, conflict of interest, confidential information,
etc. This reduces the risks of involvement in acts of
corruption and bribery.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

7)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

At the same time, the Group requires all employees
at all ranks to declare and state any possible conflict
of interests with the Group that may arise during
the daily operations. In addition, we encourage
employees to report misconduct, fraudulent activities
and illegal behaviours related to the Group under
the confidential whistleblowing mechanism. Current
means of reporting is generally in the form of letters
or mails sent to the audit committee of the Group
for this whistleblowing purpose. No incident of
whistleblowing was found in the reporting year.

The Group has included the integrity trading terms
in the procurement contracts. For those suppliers
in long-term partnership, both parties have signed
the anti-commercial bribery agreement. During the
reporting period, the Group did not identify any
incident of behaviour non-compliant with the code,
nor violation of regulations related to corruption. Also,
no incident of relevant whistleblowing was received
in the same period.

During the procurement process, the Group seeks
quotations from more than one supplier to ensure
fair and reasonable offers. In addition, managerial
personnel of different rankings have been designated
to review and approve orders of different monetary
thresholds to reduce the risks of corruption and
bribery. During the reporting period, there was no
declaration for conflict of interests in need in any
relevant procurement.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)
7) Anti-Corruption (Continued)

Anti-corruption trainings of the Group covered the
topics like integrity, employee’s code of conduct,
business ethics, compliance behaviour, etc. The
mode of training was not limited to classroom training
or seminar, and other mode could be sending the
anti-corruption reminder notice or email to directors
and all employees, such as sending mails in October
2022 to all employees in Mainland China and Hong
Kong regarding the information on anti-bribery and
anti-corruption policy as well as whistleblowing

policy.

The orientation for new employees has also included
the topics on integrity and anti-corruption awareness.
A total of 180 new employees from both Hong Kong
and Mainland China participated in such orientation
during the reporting year.

Upon new employee’s onboarding, the scope
covered content on employee handbook and
Employee Code of Practice, with topics involving
code of conduct, anti-bribery guidelines, preventive
awareness against corruption, confidentiality
guidelines, and declaration on conflicts of interest,
etc.

For job positions which have liaisons with
external parties and higher demand of integrity
requirements, such as finance department, supply
chain department, marketing department, the
Group would arrange appropriate training topics for
their participation, some of the topics like integrity
agreement signed with suppliers, and precautions
during contract review and approval, etc.

In addition, the Group has also provided training
to directors on the topics related to compliance.
During the reporting period, the Directors were
trained on the updates on listing rules, relating to
the requirements in the new Corporate Governance
Code.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

8)

Community Investment

Over years, the Group has been supporting the
community and the industry in various aspects like
charity, environmental protection, health, with the
aim to assist the people in need. The following table

set forth the examples on the types of community
activities contributed by the Group in the reporting

year:

HEEHEE)

8) #HBRE
ZERAEBR OB EREREZE -
F#E BR RBESZHEEH
EZFEMAL - TRINBAEEARE
EXEALEEES AN

B - AL E ARl

BRERdtSHEBNEKRE (E)

Anti-pandemic

Support
mEXE

Provision of the Group’s idle Shunde factory site
for Foshan Shunde Xincun village committee to
proceed novel coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19)
testing services for nearby villagers and employees
of the nearby enterprises
AEEFNAIEEHREERR &6 THLIEZEEN
N Z g {E A% 8 &R IE(COVID-19) & A8 5 4 - A& M
AR R M 68 TR COVID-19% 8 fR 75

Assistance for the
Vulnerable Groups

XFEHEHE

“Umbrella Protective Cover Workshop” by St.
James’ settlement
EREEHGINRAREELIEY]

— Monetary assistance for rehabilitation
services to intellectually disabled
individuals and mental health recovery
patients

— BRIEEEBATRBEHEEENER
PR 5

Community Health
Sponsorship

HtEREFEE

“Love Teeth Day 2022” by The Community Chest of

Hong Kong

BELmEIRHETE 2022)

— fundraising for The Community Chest on
supporting the needy to strengthen oral and
dental care services

- EXRLRCEPATEATMRORERT
EIE R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

5B

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in
presenting to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 28 February
2028.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group is principally engaged in trading and sale of
footwear, accessories and cosmetic products.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year ended 28 February 2023 by business and
geographical segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required
pursuant to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), comprising
analysis of the Group’s performance during the vyear,
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year as well as indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 15 to 22 of this report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 23 to
40 of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Financial Highlights on pages 3 to 4 of this report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

)

(1)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands that its business has an
impact on the environment and recognised the
importance of sound environmental management
and sustainable development. It is committed to
complying with the relevant environmental legislations
and standards related to its business operations as
set by the authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong where it operates.

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of
the Group (the “ESG Report”) is set out on pages
78 to 119 of this report. The ESG Report has been
prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The report details the
environmental policy of the Group and their actual
effectiveness, and further discuss the relationships
between the Group and its key stakeholders as
well as the compliance with significant laws and
regulations.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risks of
non-compliance with such requirements. The Group
has conducted on-going review of the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group and provides relevant trainings and guidance
to the staff. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong Kong
that have significant impact on the operations of the
Group for the year ended 28 February 2023.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

=R

EBERGE

U

(1)

BREBRRERR

AEEABEXBHRBEER T
TE O UARARMORREIE LA
SEERNEBE - AKE-—HRK
RETEHLZEMEMHERPEAR
HKAMBE(HEDRBEBNE ERBEM
B E X 5% A Ew B REOE B RAR

# -

AEBZGRRE HEREARE)
(TESGH &) FH N A HEFXT8E19
B -ESGHEDNREBFTEH AR S
FrER AR (B3 FT)) 78 25 £ AR Al
(T EmARAD M ER27h A # 2 (RI% -
HEekERABEEDFNI BT
ShAEEIRX REfREREINE
KRB o ZMEFAELAKHE
MIRREBR L EEE e - W —
TRwmAREREEERDENBRE
AR BTFERNTENEKERIER -

BT ERERER
AEBERBREEMRTELAARA
ERBEAREMSRKOER - N&
BRERNFELATEXRBNHR
AR EOAR > LR AR 215
ks FTEL - BE_T_=F_
AZ+NBLEEE AEEEETY
AEBZEBNEATEZHBT
B N & B ERIIER

annual report 2023 3R 2023 121



122

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(Ill) Key Relationships

(@)

(b)

(c)

Employees

The Group believes that employees are a key
element to the success of its business, so it
strives to maintain a high staff retention rate by
providing competitive remuneration packages
and developing a harmonious workplace.
To enhance the capabilities and productivity
of its employees, the Group provides a
comprehensive training program to instill them
with quality service skills, product knowledge
and language and interpersonal skills. In
addition, the Group organises regular staff
gatherings to promote team spirit and enhance
the recognition of the Group’s corporate culture
and values amongst the staff.

Consumers

The Group provides direct service to consumers
in its retail shops. To ensure continuous
improvement of the quality of products and
services, the Group regularly conducts internal
and external market surveys to interact with
consumers and to gain more market insights
and feedback.

Suppliers

The Group has established long business
relationship with certain suppliers. It selects
its suppliers prudently. The relevant suppliers
need to fulfil certain assessment criteria of the
Group, including, among others, track record,
experience, financial capability, reputation
and history of meeting our standards for raw
materials or finished products. As the Group
is committed to managing the environmental
performance of its supply chain, the Group
will prioritize the adoption of products made of
environmentally-friendly materials and focus on
partnership with those suppliers possessing
environmental technology. The Group has
established anti-bribery and anti-corruption
policies which are required to be observed by all
parties with business dealings with the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(lll) Key Relationships (Continued)
(d) Shareholders and Investors

The Board believes effective communication
and the disclosure of accurate and timely
information build the confidence of Shareholders
and investors, and also facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are
beneficial for investor relations and future
corporate development. For details, please
refer to the Shareholders’ Rights and Investor
Relations of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 74 to 77 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February
2023 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 154 of this report.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 28
February 2023 (2021/22: No interim dividend).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2021/22: No final dividend) in respect of the year
ended 28 February 2023.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on
pages 258 to 259 of this report. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in notes 29
and 34(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES (CONTINUED)

As at 28 February 2023, the Company’s retained
earnings and contributed surplus of approximately
RMB153,963,000 (2021/22: RMB146,026,000) were
available for distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during
the year (2021/22: NIL).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal investment properties held by the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2022)
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 41 to 44 of this report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
James Ngai, Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and Ms. Chui
Kwan Ho, Jacky shall retire from office by rotation at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
their respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the guidelines. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are both directors of the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483) and thus
hold cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr.
Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect
to his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). During the year, the service contract of
Mr. James Ngai, acted as Non-Executive Director, was
renewed for a fixed term of 2 years with the Company
with effect from 25 March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Company in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
entered into any contract of significance with the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested
in any business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the year.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER EESHRESTERcHMET
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directorship and other changes in the 1R MBI F1351B)GZEE AT
information of the Directors of the Company, which are FEEEBAAFEHEZE_Z-_—_F_-_A =+
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the HIFEE ZERFIZHUNKRAKANT 2 EFHE
Listing Rules, subsequent to the publication of the annual &N ESFER 2 EMmEFHEF I WOT
report of the Company for the year ended 28 February

2022 are set out below:

Name of Directors Details of change

EEnR BEFE

Non-Executive Director:

FHITES:

Mr. James Ngai o Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of
RS KE 2 years commencing on 25 March 2023 and ending on 24 March

2025
BEEARREIRBAN A_T-_=F=A_+tHARE-T
“hAF=ZA-tWMAL  AWMFEEFH

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information B FXFFIEZEEN > #HimEMMERER

required to be disclosed herein pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) & 1 #8 BI F13.51B() 1§ 2 #8 i T LA
of the Listing Rules. 5 o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 28 February 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFQO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares)

EERBESTRAEREARAREME
BEZEzRMD  MHEROREZSAA
BEZREBZERAXR

RZE_=F_AZ+)\B XQAESE
k@ {TBABRARNE R EARRE LB (F
ERABBEPESNEFFRBEG (F
HFREBEKRDEXVE) ZBAREFRE
BOo0B Tz EBEER((IRM]) - B KRM
REHTES  BREBEZHFRBEIED
EXVESETR FE8D F A M E AN A KB
RFfizEEk LR (BEBEESFLEE
GO 2 ZSEBRXEERIRRER 21
HEAR) WERAREESRBPEEK
BIEI2GRMEBFEZS LM zERZ R
KR RINRE AR RIS AT E 2 &
MBETAESETESFRHNZESTA([1F
EFADBERNEART LBz ER R
KEWT

) Rezga(BEABRH)

Number of Shares
kB 4E
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Personal Spouse Corporate Other capital of the
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total Company
AEERFEE
EEftg EAER REgE: AaER s Bt TREEAM
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (‘Mr. L") 5,909,200 11,000 - 55,000,000 60,920,200 8.63%
TkEEE Note 1)
(Wit1)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (Ms. Chui’) 5,779,000 - - - 5,779,000 0.81%
REERL(%EL))
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George (‘Mr. Leung’) - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.24%
RREAE(RRE] (Note 2)
(Hit2)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

)

Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares) (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Mr. Li, Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie and Ms. Cheung Man
Ching, Teresa jointly held 55,000,000 Shares as trustees of The
Lee Keung Charitable Foundation, (the “Charitable Foundation”)
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Therefore, all of them are deemed to be
interested in these Shares which are duplicated amongst their
respective interests.

Mr. Leung was a governor of Xin Chuan Middle School
Foundation Limited, which held 1,700,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Leung was deemed to be interested in these Shares.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

(I) Long positions in underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

EERBESTRAEREARAREME
BEEzZRD  HEAROREZDHR
BAzERRKRE(E)

) FrAZHBROREZZHR

Interests in share options EIRFERE
Adjusted number of shares options Note 3
SRELBREHA (7
Total
Date of Balance outstanding Adjusted
share as at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at exercise
Name of options 1 March during during during during 28 February price per
Directors granted 2022 the year the year the year the year 2023 Share  Exercise period
(Notes 14 2) Note 3)
RZB=zf RZF=zE
RiEBRE Zh-H ZAZTNE B3EZ
3.2 ZRH ZEB RERRE RERTE  REAEE REAXRY  HATE  SROEE AREH
a1k W3
HKS
BT
Mr. Li 10 July 2012 110,000 - - - (110,000) - 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
FxBRE 201257108 20145 7R10AZ 20205 7AIE
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - (110,000) - 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012574108 2015E7R10H £2022E7A9H
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - (110,000) - 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012678108 0165 7A108 2202267798
Ms. Liao Jian Yu 10 July 2012 184,800 - - - (184,800) - 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
(resigned with 20127410 20165 7R10H £2022F7A9H
effect from
1 May 2022)
BRERRL
(Bz%-zfF
RA-ARES)
Total 514,800 - - - (614,800) -
3
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

(I) Long positions in underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (Continued)

Interests in share options (Continued)

Notes:

1. The vesting period of the above share options is from their date
of grant until the commencement of their exercise period.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before 10 July
2012 on which the share options were granted was HK$2.41
per Share.

3. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed

by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the issue of bonus Shares on the basis
of one bonus Share for every ten existing Shares held by the
qualifying Shareholders on the record date (the “Bonus Issue”).
As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the
exercise price and the number of Shares to be allotted and
issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached to the
outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the
exercise price per Share after the said adjustments were made
on 30 July 2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price
per Share in relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012
was HK$2.404. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 29 July 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2023,
none of the Directors or chief executive (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests and/or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions which are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRE

EERBESTRAEREARAREME
BEZE 2R  HEROREZSAA
BAzERRKRE(E)

() =2AzHBERORESZHFR (&)

BREEZ (B)
Bret

1. LABREZENREHHAIRHARE
=T HERABRL -

2. ERE_Z-—HFLATHRUBEREAN-
B mERESR241ETT -

3. RZZ—AF+LtA+=A ARAIZHERE
RARRZBRREREAFAS LA BRALA
REBE - UHEETARET  EEAR
REARAERRREBATRBEERD
B — AT R (TAT AR 3 1T]) - R ETTAL
RET MRITEERBEZITEERZ
EHEBRBEMNRAEREZATERET
RERBETZROBEERAR A%
—AFELtA=ZtTHRBER - RATKRATI 2
BRTEEANR_Z—HELA=1+HH
Bl zBRITERE - RAER BER=
T——FLtA+EREZERBEZTRT
FEAR2404FB T - BAFE FLHEX
ARIRZE—AFELA=Z+NLRAZAE -

BREXFEEEN RZTEZ=F=
AZ+N\B BMEARAESTIES
TBRABEBEFERSEZEB R TR
TN ZF L) AAAR SR AE (F
EABHFRBEKGEXVE) 2K
M - HERNDKEFEBTHRE
BHEMHEEPEXVEETR E8D
HEMGARRERBMRMzEER,/
IAE (BRREBREZEHFRBEGGZ
ZEBRXWEESIREBERBE 2SR
/8% RB) Wit AREEF M
BEikPIFEI2E B[ EMFTE 2 &L
ZHEER AR AR IB IR EST
AlBMEARNRI BRIz ER R,

SR o

annual report 2023 £k 2023 131



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRE

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above and
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below,
during the year ended 28 February 2023, (a) at no time
was the Company or a specified undertaking (as defined
in the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter
622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of the Company a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate; and (b) none of
the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2023, according to the register of R-_ZE-—=F—-HA—-+/\H REZAEK
interests in Shares and short positions of the Company HiE &M E336IEHEMFE 2 I MHREZR
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, the KX EZEaMATscsk @ T AT sEE
following persons or corporations (other than the Directors (AR AFESZ &2 1TH A EBIN RIEH
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short S BEBRHFEEERZ XA S MAIR B
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which FE 5N B ESETIEXVIEFE2R E3D 2 1E

FTERRREMALRRG REEK
MZEBERKRE

would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the  H# 55 :

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

() Interests and short positions of substantial N ETERRARGCEEABERAzER
shareholders in the Shares and underlying E#RE
Shares
Long positions in Shares RG22 HE

Number of Shares and nature of interests

RSB R % 8
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Interests of Share
Name of Beneficial controlled Other capital of the
Shareholders owner corporation interests Total Company
HEXEDT
ERTRE
RRER BEHEA ERVAER Hit & &t BA
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces (‘Mr. Lee”) 54,561,000 36,600,000 280,500,000 371,661,000 52.65%
FriwkE(FEx4)) (Notes 1&2)  (Notes 3 & 4)
(Witikz)  (Wi3k4)
Stable Gain Holdings Limited 225,500,000 — — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Gain”) (Notes 5)
(H1325)
Stable Profit Holdings Limited — 225,500,000 — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Profit”) (Notes 5)
(W 7t5)
HSBC International Trustee Limited — — 225,500,000 225,500,000 31.94%
("HSBC Trustee”) (Notes 5)
(W #ts)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

U

Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares (Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Succex Limited, a corporation which was controlled and wholly
owned by Mr. Lee, held 33,000,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Mr. Lee was a founder and governor of Qing Yun Middle
School Education Development Foundation Limited, which
held 3,600,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain
was registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company
wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of Lee
Tze Bun Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Lee was the founder (as defined in section
308 of the SFO) and an eligible beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee
was also the sole director of Stable Profit. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

The Charitable Foundation, of which Mr. Lee was the founder
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO), held 55,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain
was registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company
wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of the
LTB Family Trust, a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was a
founder (as defined in section 308 of the SFC) and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of
Stable Profit. Therefore, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares in its capacity as trustee (other than
a bare trustee) and Stable Profit was deemed to be interested
in these Shares by virtue of the interest of its controlled
corporation (being Stable Gain). The respective interests
of Stable Gain, Stable Profit and HSBC Trustee were thus
duplicated.
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22 A MZELLELTB Family Trust 2 Al
WAREEKZE A T AStable Profit
ZMWE—ZEE o Al - HSBC Trustee A E A
TREAFD HBZEARINERAES
2 ER D 2 K Stable ProfitJiiE H
BYE R A B HA Stable GainfTEA 2 s -
MwEBABEZERG ZEE o Stable
Gain, Stable Profit X HSBC Trustee & 8 2
HERAMEMAES -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

O
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FERREEMATIRRORMBEER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS MZEBERAE(E)
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)
(I1) Interests and short positions of other persons (Il) HEtt A+ RABROREBEARD 2 EH
in the Shares and underlying Shares ERE
Long positions in Shares ROZHFE
Number of Shares and nature of interests
ROMERERER
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Name of Personal Spouse Other Share capital of
Shareholders Note interests Interests interests Total  the Company
NEXDT
BRTRE
hEEL Wit BARR ERER Hi s fct BAt
Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena 1 6,985,000 - 55,000,000 61,985,000 8.78%
Jackie (‘Ms. Leg")
FRELL(Fxx))
Ms. Cheung Man Ching Teresa 2 - 2,585,000 55,000,000 57,585,000 8.15%
(“Ms. Cheung”)
KXERT(RRL))
Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung 3 - - 55,000,000 55,000,000 7.79%
as trustees of the Charitable
Foundation
FRT FABAERRRL
BIERBEEEE ZXFAA
Ophorst Van Marwijk Kooy 4 35,454,000 - - 35,454,000 5.02%
Vermogensbeheer N.V.
(UOVMKJY)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(I

Interests and short positions of other persons
in the Shares and underlying Shares
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1.

Ms. Lee was interested in an aggregate of 61,985,000 Shares
(comprising 6,985,000 Shares personally held as beneficial
owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her, Mr. Li
and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ms. Cheung was interested in an aggregate of 57,585,000
Shares (comprising 2,585,000 Shares held by her spouse as
beneficial owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her,
Ms. Lee and Mr. Li as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.15% of the issued share capital of
the Company

Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung jointly held 55,000,000
Shares as trustees of the Charitable Foundation, representing
approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, all of them were deemed to be interested
in these Shares which were duplicated amongst their respective
interests.

OVMK holds 35,454,000 Shares, representing approximately
5.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2023,
the Company had not been notified of any other
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) or corporation who had interests
directly or indirectly and/or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 22
July 2002, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme was to enable the Board
to grant options to selected eligible persons including
directors, employees and other persons (as defined under
the Scheme) as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group. There are no
Shares available for issue upon exercise of all options
granted under the Scheme as at the date of this report.
The aggregate number of the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible person (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of such limit must
be separately approved by the Shareholders with such
eligible person and his associates abstaining from voting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing
on such date on or after the date on which the option
is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
option and expiring at the close of business on such date
as the Board may determine in granting the option but
in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1.00. The full amount of the exercise price for the
subscription of the Shares must be paid upon exercise of
an option.

The price per Share payable on the exercise of an option
is to be determined by the Board provided always that it
shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant (which
is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the grant
of an option is accepted by the eligible person), which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and (jii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company granted
14,100,000 and 17,440,000 share options to certain
Directors and employees of the Company to subscribe
for up to a total of 31,540,000 Shares on 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 respectively. Particulars of such share
options and their movement during the year ended 28
February 2023 were as follows:
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Adjusted number of share options Note 4)

BREZBREHA 7Y
Balance Outstanding Adjusted
as at Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at exercise
Name or Category of Date of share 1 March during during during during 28 February price per
Participant options granted 2022 the year the year the year the year 2023 Share  Exercise period
Notes 142) (Note §) Note 4
i Juk- a3 gut Jmit-3
RAERE ZB-A ZE-tAR E3Ey
SRERLTEN ZBH 2GR RERERL  REATE  REAZE  RERKN WATE BRARE RER
W1k (w3 (W4
HKS
o
Directors /Note 5/ 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021
(s 01156/27R 14EBA2TEE202156A268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
01156727R 1556A27R 22021564267
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
01156727R 201656A27A 22021564267
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - (110,000 - 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
2012477108 014ETA0RZ20245779A
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - (110,000 - 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012477108 015E7A10RZE2025779A
10 July 2012 294,800 - - - (294,800) - 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012477108 016E7A10BE2025 7598
SJub;ota\ 514,800 - - - (514,800) -
Employees 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021
| 01156727R 14E6A2TEE201567268
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
01156727R 1556A27R 22021564267
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
01156727R 2016F6A27A 22021567267
10 July 2012 - - - - - - 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
2012677108 0U4ETA0RZ2025779A
10 July 2012 78,100 - - - (78,100) - 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012677108 015E7A0RZE2025779A
10 July 2012 479,600 - - - (479,600) - 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012677108 016E7A0E2025 759
SJub#o tal 557,700 - - - (67,700) -
Total 1,072,500 - - - (1,072,500) -
@i
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The respective vesting periods of the above share options are from
their respective dates of the grant until the commencement of their
respective exercise periods.

2. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 on which the share options were granted were
HK$4.65 and HK$2.41 per Share respectively.

3. Upon the grant of 17,440,000 share options to eligible persons by the
Company on 10 July 2012, there were 1,960 share options available
for grant under the Scheme. The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.

4. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
approve the Bonus Issue. As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments
were made to the exercise price and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached
to the outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the exercise
price per Share after the said adjustments were made on 30 July
2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per Share in relation
to share options granted on 27 June 2011 was HK$4.730 while that in
relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012 was HK$2.404. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
July 2015.

5. For a detailed breakdown of the Directors’ interest in share options,
please refer to pages 130 to 131 of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules). The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 28 February 2023.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that the indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (other than service contracts with
Directors as disclosed) concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.2% of the
total revenue from sales of goods for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 0.5% of the total revenue from sales of
goods for the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 60.3% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to approximately 14.5%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 45 to
77 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The ESG Report of the Group is set out on pages 78 to
119 of this report.
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EREHRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2023 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By Order of the Board

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 May 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_

pwec

To the Shareholders of Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), which are set out on pages 154 to 257,
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 28 February
2023;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 28 February 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Provision for impairment of inventories; and

° Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of retail stores.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) ARETSEE
Provision for impairment of inventories FERERE
Nature of the key audit matter BRETESEZHE

Refer to Notes 2.10, 4(d) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 28 February 2023, the Group had gross inventories
and provision for impairment of inventories amounted
to approximately RMB230,500,000 and approximately
RMB38,124,000, respectively.

As described in the accounting policies in Note 2.10
to the consolidated financial statements, inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The Group is engaged in the trading and sales
of footwear, accessories and cosmetic products,
and is subject to changing consumer demands
and fashion trends. Management’s judgement
is required for assessing the appropriate level of
inventory provision in current challenging retail
environment.

Management determines the provision for obsolete
or slow-moving inventories based on a detailed
ageing analysis of inventories and the Group’s
estimates of projected sales of aged inventories
in consideration of various factors, such as the
marketability of aged products and the market
conditions.

We focused on this area due to the significant
carrying value of inventories and the critical
estimates adopted by management on the provision
for obsolete or slow-moving inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

B E B H ()

Provision for impairment of inventories
(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures for assessing the appropriateness
of management’s judgement applied in assessing
the provision for impairment of inventories included:

° Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment processes,
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors, such as subjectivity of assumptions
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

° Evaluated analysis and assessment made by
management with respect to slow-moving
inventories.

e Tested, on a sample basis, the stock holding
and movement data during the year and after
year end to identify products with indications
of obsolescence.

° Compared, on a sample basis, the net
realisable value of inventories sold subsequent
to the year end to the cost of inventories.

o Evaluated the future estimated sales through
of aged inventories with reference to historical
sales performance of similar products through
different sales channels, management
assessment of the relevant external market
information and the Group’s business
strategies identified through enquiries with
management.

e Tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s year end calculation of
provision for impairment of inventories.

Based on the above audit procedures performed,

we found that management’s assessments were
supported by the evidence that we obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) AR ETEE(E)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment ZEE Y% EMBRREBEURERAEEE
and right-of-use assets of retail stores 1B

Nature of the key audit matter HAEETSEZHE

Refer to Notes 2.6, 2.7, 2.18, 4(b), 16 and 17 to the FRHEHGAMERERMF2.6 2.7 218~ 4(b) »
consolidated financial statements. 16517 ©

The Group recorded impairment loss of #HE-ZZT-_=F_A-_+/\BHLFE- E&
approximately RMB6,069,000 and approximately BEgtEWE  #ELRXETHBROMERST
RMB11,555,000 in respect of its leasehold RUKFEAEEESHSESHREBEBEHARE
improvements classified as property, plant and  6,069,0007T & #) A K #11,555,0007T °
equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively, for

the year ended 28 February 2023.

The Group’s market capitalisation value is lower EBEBR-_ZT-=F-A=-+/\HHMEEKKRZ
than the net asset value of the Group as at 28 HEEFEN EXELEMNETZEERNF
February 2023 and Group’s certain retail stores KWHREE EEEBEFENZE/EAEFT
with operations were loss making during the year. HRReELEN  UHEEEEEETHE
Management determines each individual retail #Ffh - TEEEEMNTRESEHAFER L
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating XA HFHAEEUNRSEAE)E T FH
unit and carried out impairment assessments for EBREENUN(MMEFMEKZEER)AETE/REE
the retail store assets. The recoverable amounts AR LBHMITBR S AETEH -

of the assets of the retail stores are determined

at higher of fair value less costs of disposal or

value-in-use using discounted cash flow projections

based on the forecast prepared and approved

by management with major assumptions such as

gross profit and revenue growth rate.

We focused on this area because significant HM@TINHEBRIIBERETCBETREN G2
estimation and judgement were involved in 8 &E E 2 AT Bl & 5% & 8 Kb ET & HIE -
determining the recoverable amounts of the

relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

B E B H ()

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores
(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the impairment
assessment of the property plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the retail stores by
performing the following procedures:

° Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment processes,
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors, such as complexity, subjectivity of
assumptions and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.

° Enquired management on their basis of
identifying impairment indicators and
challenged the judgements made in the
identification of impairment indicators.

° Compared, on a sample basis, the forecasted
sales performance and estimated running
costs of the retail stores used in the value in
use calculation to their historical records.

° Enquired management in relation to key
assumptions in their value in use calculations,
challenged management and evaluated the
key assumptions (such as gross profit, sales
growth rate) applied by comparing them to our
understanding of latest market information and
conditions and historical information, where
applicable.

° Reperformed calculations of impairments
assessed by management.

° Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain
the extent of change in the key assumptions
that would result in the retail store assets
being impaired and also considered the
likelihood of such a change in the key
assumptions arising.

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets made by management to be
supported by available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Financial Highlights, Corporate
Information, Shareholder Information, Key Milestones,
Chairman’s Statement, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Board of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Directors,
Five-Year Financial Summary and Investment Properties
(but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 May 2023
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C()VS()LIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HHER

n‘/T

For the year ended 28 February 2023

BE_T-_=F"A-1+/\BLFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2023 2022
BZE HE
—E—-= —_E_—
—A=+NA ZAZ=+/\H
LtEE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lis AR®BTR AR®TT
Revenue W &% 5 413,227 569,034
Cost of sales 8 & A AR 7 (143,997) (211,182
Gross profit E R 269,230 357,852
Other income RN 6 5,451 4,631
Other (losses)/gains, net Hh (B8B), W - F88 6 (7,843) 8,465
Impairment losses on trade B RWRIBREEIS -
receivables, net F R 7 (4) (1,060)
Selling and distribution expenses & K& % #4 il 2 7 (240,194) (259,195)
General and administrative — M RITER X
expenses 7 (86,862) (93,342)
Operating (loss)/profit (B 18), = F (60,222) 17,351
Finance income, net EIJH“HW\ )&= 8 7,065 6,197
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISBLAT (E518), % F (53,157) 23,548
Income tax credit/(expense) TSR B,/ (ZH) 12 1,890 (20,907)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE), & T (51,267) 2,641
(Loss)/profit for the year EERN(EER)/
attributable to: i A
— owners of the Company — ARAEEREBA (50,271) 2,980
— non-controlling interest — JEERER (996) (339)
(51,267) 2,641
(Losses)/earnings per share RArRIERTFA ARG
attributable to the owners of the ~ B (E1E), % T
Company (express in RMB cents) (A R %)
— Basic — EK 13 (7.12) 0.42
— Diluted —#E 13 (7.12) 0.42

The notes on pages 160 to 257 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R a AW AR

For the year ended 28 February 2023

BHE_ZT_=F_A_t+/\BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February

2023 2022
BE H=ZE

—_=E-= =S
—B=+N\B —A=-+N\H
IEFE FE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

e AR®TR ARETTT

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EBE),/ & F| (51,267) 2,641

Other comprehensive income/(loss) F A% i 1% 2 H A
for the year, net of tax 2EEA(EE)

ltem that will not be reclassifiedto E#& TeEZHHEA

consolidated income statement IREEmK AR
— Actuarial gains/(losses) on — RRBHNEEZBE
retirement benefit obligation wm A (B 1) 28 6 (127)
ltem that will be reclassified to HREENDERES
consolidated income statement Bm&k2IEE
— Currency translation —ERESE
differences 9,779 (12,400)

Total comprehensive loss for the &2 H & 18 425
year (41,482) (9,886)

Total comprehensive loss for the  EB{5FRNZ2MH

year, attributable to: Er BB
— owners of the Company — ARRIEEFAA (40,486) (9,547)
— non-controlling interest — FEIERE R (996) (339)

(41,482) (9,886)

The notes on pages 160 to 257 are an integral part of ZE160E 2578 2 M 5 & KN B 7% ) X T ]
these consolidated financial statements. DE|ZE D o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEEAMRE

As at 28 February 2023

RZZE_=F_HA=-+N\H

As at As at
28 February 28 February
2023 2022
—_E-= g
—BA=+NA ZA=+\H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

e AR®TR ARETTT

Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEWMEHE 15 73,200 66,999
Property, plant and equipment Y B RRE 16 14,534 18,508
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 34,869 52,761
Long-term deposits and REEE2R
prepayments AN 21 3,118 2,624
Deferred income tax assets REFMSHIBEE 19 32,390 32,150
___ 188111 178,042
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 20 192,376 186,312
Trade and other receivables B REREEE &
o fth FE YL BRIE 21 42,290 48,206
Deposits and prepayments e RENHRIA 21 38,067 37,237
Pledged bank deposit EEBRITER 22 - 647
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITERR 22 371,606 442,642
___ 644339 715,044
Total assets wEE 802,450 888,086
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable ~ ANRA A #E 358 A FE(L
to the owners of the Company I& AN K 1
Share capital s 7 26 59,979 59,979
Reserves % 29 595,546 636,032
655,525 696,011
Non-controlling interest FERES 8,111 9,328
Total equity Pl 663,636 705,339

The notes on pages 160 to 257 are an integral part of ZE160ZE 2578 2 M 5 & AN B 7% ) X T ]
these consolidated financial statements. DE|ZE D o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AR EE AR

As at 28 February 2023
RZFEZ=F-"A=+)N\H

As at As at
28 February 28 February
2023 2022
—_E-= g
—A=—+NA —A=+\H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

e AR®TR ARETTT

Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMSHIBEAE 19 18,312 28,800
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 14,564 24,927
____32876 53727
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables, other payables BSREMNIRIE - Hib
and contract liabilities EHNEREREHEE 24 81,755 83,466
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 22,735 22,387
Current income tax liabilities EHFEHAaE 1,448 2,967
Short-term bank loan MEISEITE X 25 — 20,200
___ 105938 129,020
Total liabilities HweE _ 138814 182,747
Total equity and liabilities EzRaEH8E 802,450 888,086

The consolidated financial statements on pages 154 to  ZF154ZE257TH R A M B R EXE N =ZF

257 were approved by the Board of Directors on 29 May —=FHA-t+NHEES=e# i I H
2023 and were signed on its behalf. TIHATHREFEE -

James Ngai Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky

17 M= BmEy

Chairman Director

*FE EZE

The notes on pages 160 to 257 are an integral part of ZE160ZE 2578 2 M & & KN B 7% ) X T ]
these consolidated financial statements. DE|ZE D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EORERR A B R

For the year ended 28 February 2023
BRE_ZT_=F_A-+N\ALLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRARGEREARL
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves Sub-total interest Total equity
N B Bt FERER BER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR AR®Trn ARETR AR%TR
Balance at 1 March 2021 W-E--F=fF—H
2T L SegTS SR TS 1020 100847
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EMA/(EB)
Profit/{loss) for the year Engafl/ (B8 - 2,980 2,980 (339) 2,641
Other comprehensive loss AtZEEE
Currency translation differences ERER - (12,400) (12,400) - (12,400)
Actuarial losses on retirement BABHEEZ
benefit obligation REEE - (127) (127) - (127)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEBESLE — _[@%47) (@547 (339 (9888
Transactions with owners RERBEAIRS
Dividends e —poR019) peiig 60y (92722
Balance at 28 February 2022 RZEZ_F-A-+)\H
288 59979 63032 696011 9328 705389
Comprehensive l0ss 2HEE
Loss for the year FRER - (50,271) (50,271) (996) (51,267)
Other comprehensive income A2 EKA
Currency translation differences ERZER - 9,779 9,779 - 9,779
Actuarial gains on retirement BRBHEEZ
benefit obligation BERM - 6 6 - 6
Total comprehensive loss for the year ¥A2EBESLE - (40486)  (40486) (996) (41,482
Transactions with owners BREBBEAIRS
Dividends o i e - ( 2_21_) L _(2_21)
Balance at 28 February 2023 RZE-_=ZF#-A-+)\A
L& 59,979 595,546 655,525 8,111 663,636

The notes on pages 160 to 257 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FILLOW STATEMEN'T
mEBHERER

For the year ended 28 February 2023

BHE_ZT_=F_A_t+/\BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February

2023 2022
B=ZE HE

—E-= —_EF-
—A=+N\B —B=+/\H
IEFE FE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i AR®TR ARETTT

Operating activities REER TR
Net cash (used in)/generated from 4% & X 75 (7 ) EEZ

operations e F %E 23(a) (78) 14,046
Taxation paid [RENE R (11,198) (16,364)
Interest paid 2 F B (1,576) (1,933)
Net cash used in operating activities & & ¥ EZHFEH 2

BeFH8 (12,852) (4,251)

Investing activities ?ﬁ ﬁ /Eib
Interest income on bank deposits T2 F B U A 8,641 8,130
Purchases of property, plant and Eﬁﬁ@% *&%3& 1

equipment 16 (16,384) (21,401)
Increase in bank deposits with initial #2838 =18 A 7 F #F X

term over three months 0 (42,738) (7,800)
Decrease in pledged deposit EERERRLD 647 14
Net cash used in investing activities & EBER 2R & F5E __ (49,834)  (21,057)
Financing activities mMEEE
Proceeds from short-term bank loan f& )\LH,%E TEXR - 40,400
Repayment of short-term bank loan %8 Hi$R 7 ﬁ BiE % (21,637) (20,200)
Principal element of lease payments F & 2 K& 25D (25,214) (21,749)
Dividends paid 2 E - (292,005)
Dividend paid to non-controlling B IR R

interest (221) (603)
Net cash used in financing activities & & )& B A 2 3 &% # . (47,072)  (294,157)
Net decrease in cash and cash BehkFRREER

equivalents }DZ > %ﬁ (109,758) (319,465)
Effect of foreign exchange rate SR 5 g 2 B

changes, net T EE (4,016) (575)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzHER

beginning of year ZRBFLEH 422,342 742,382
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZB/E R

end of year EZRREIEH 22 308,568 422,342

The notes on pages 160 to 257 are an integral part of F160E2578 ~ M 3 & AN B 7% ) = 1 7]
these consolidated financial statements. DE|Z D e
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading and sales of footwear,
accessories and cosmetic products. The Group
mainly operates in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

160 6 saunda holdings Itd. 2 BT FHERBR A7)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BB HLA W
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBREE(HE)

The preparation of consolidated financial MREFBVBREEL -

statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires EEMBEHREABERSE T

the use of certain critical accounting estimates. Raezths BEEENARE

It also requires management to exercise its RAAEE Z &5 BERELH A

judgement in the process of applying the o PhBEalEEHEBIRE

Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving &SR P REEEH

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, BHREMEBER ZBREK&ME

or areas where assumptions and estimates e M4 ER o

are significant to the consolidated financial

statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amendments to standards, annual (a) EKEFRHZANEFT.ZER
improvements and accounting guideline FENERSI 155/
adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following AREBER-_ZEZ__F=
amendments, annual improvements and A—HABZFERSESH
accounting guideline for the first time for MEXERTIEE - F
their annual reporting period commencing G o R eEtiEsl
1 March 2022:

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
& BB % S 22 R B165% (B 5T ) CEC—FRA=ZTHEFNERSEIEAH
HMEmE
HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
BB ERAFE165% (BFTA) ME - BWEKRKE: BERERINMERIE
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Standards
(Amendments) 2018-2020
FREBEER (BRI AN) TE- N\FE_Z_ZTFHAPZEBUKRE
AR FE ol
HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope Amendments
(Amendments)
BEAEMBHMESEREIN BEEGE N EMEET
AR E165%F & 375k (BT A)
Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control
(Revised) Combinations
BEEGFESIFESR(EBIE) HEEHEFzE A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 AR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEBMEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 FREE(E)

(@) Amendments to standards, annual (@) ZFEEFRPHZIEGTZEE -

improvements and accounting guideline FEXNEREIES (&)
adopted by the Group (Continued)
The amendments, annual improvements EXFRA 2R FE®W
and accounting guideline listed above #RgEHES I EE RN B
did not have any impact on the amounts THEEHERN S EEX
recognised in prior periods and are not THxgE BEHITe Y
expected to significantly affect the current EHARKBEERE X
or future periods. TE

(b) New standard, amendments to (b) AR FZER - 1ZET
standards and interpretation not yet ZERIR 2 FE
adopted
Certain new accounting standard, AEBWLSERFEFRERME
amendments to accounting standards and BEHER_TE-_=F_H
interpretation have been published that e WA= R R B B N
are not mandatory for 28 February 2023 FlEM A/ T 2%
reporting periods and have not been early Al Bilz g £ R E
adopted by the Group: 2

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Rk 2%
G - il
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current 1 March 2023
or Non-current
BRGTEUFEIREFTAE) BEEIBRRPAIERD —“ET-=%=R—H
HKAS 1 (Revised) (Amendments)  Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 March 2023
BEGHENSZIR(KELE) BIHBRRE —“ET-=%=R—H
(BET )
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements 1 March 2023
(Amendment)
EAMBRELENNEBRAER2T sEEMKTFELHE —E-=%=H—H
(BETA)
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Accounting Policies, Change in 1 March 2023
Accounting Estimates and Errors
BB ERFE8H (BFTAX) SARE g AAEERER —E_=F=H—H
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2

NOTES TO THE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New standard, amendments to

standards and interpretation not yet

adopted (Continued)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
b P B A i

FTESHABREBMEE)

21 EHEEE(HE)
(b) [EFARFRBZFHER
ZERR % FE(E)

1&&T

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Fia sl < 1

H 2 &5t B

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BB G ERFE125R(BFTX)

HKFRS 17
BEAMBHRERUBITH

K (IFRIC)-Int 5

EREBERVEREREZES)

— RREBF5R

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

ERMBHRELENFIORRER
GET R E285% (1B 7T A)

Deferred Tax related to Assets and 1 March 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HE-QRFGELEZEERAEIED -Z
BRI

—=H#=HA—H

1 March 2023
—=%=H—H

Insurance Contract

R"BRAERE —_=

Presentation of Financial Statements 1 March 2023
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

2IMBHRE — BRAHMBRERL —T-_=F=1—H
ERERNEHERNS B

Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REERHABENRAEEDLE
JENEEHES TR

EB R ARRE

These new standard, amendments to
standards and interpretation are not
expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

ZEFER - AEET 2 £ R
kaBER e HAEE
EEHE KRR REME -
RABBRRRRZEKE
RE g -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 A
Iy

B A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity where the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets
transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the
Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are with limited
exceptions measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC
Ao o B 25 R Mk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity;
and

e acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from
an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured
to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

B P B A i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency and the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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2

NOTES TO THE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(@

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through the profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
R 3 S 5 AR M

W3

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group.

Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Investment properties (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each financial year
end by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part of a
valuation gain or loss in “other (losses)/gains,
net”.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other
(losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated income
statement.

If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with note 2.6 up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at
the date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation and recognised in asset revaluation
reserve within equity until the retirement or
disposal of the property (when it is released
directly to retained profits). Any resulting
decrease in the carrying amount of the property
is recognised in profit or loss. However, to the
extent that an amount is included in revaluation
surplus for that property, the decrease is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
reduces the revaluation surplus within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R Mk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETFBRBEE

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 X KERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at YE - BMBRREEHIEEL K
historical cost less depreciation and impairment AAOBRFTERBEEBEEIRE-
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that BEERABEHEKNESBIAL
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the BEEEBEZRAX -
items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s HEKRAREBREHEZIEEE @
carrying amount or recognised as a separate B R R & A 25 A Al BE R A K
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable SE MZBEERKANEER E
that future economic benefits associated with FEN BREeEAEEMNERR
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of EXRREBLEECGRERS
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying NME) e BRIBHOMWEBEET
amount of the replaced part is derecognised BHHER FEHEHMEERRE
when replaced. All other repair and maintenance PX 7N 7E EE A A9 B BCER A A S AR
costs are charged to the consolidated income EEmKAIHE -

statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment W3 WEEEZHEIITENE
is calculated using the straight-line method to BOEBATEERB@META
allocate cost to their residual values over their RERBB B ARTE -
estimated useful lives, at the following annual

rates:

Buildings 2-4%

’F 2-4%

Leasehold improvements 5-20% or over the lease period, whichever is shorter
HEEE 5-20% 3k 12 HH (AR & R 4E)

Plant and machinery 10%

Has R 10%

Furniture and fixtures 20%-33.3%

R REE 20%-33.3%

Motor vehicles 20%

A 20%

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not BREAFH I KAEE L
amortised. I Y o

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are EEFBGEARAFEAFTFHR
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end ERERRRITLIELEE H

of each reporting period. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

2.7

(Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amounts and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.8 Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the category of those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Joe A

W3

2

B A W

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecognition

©

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
The Group classified its debt instruments
as financial assets at amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the profit or loss and
presented in “other (losses)/gains, net”
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(@)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
of the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R Mk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETFBRBEE

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10Inventories 2107 &
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and FERMKANSAIEE FEMRE
net realisable value. Cost is determined using FRREEIER - KA EA
the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. The cost of FHEEE - " mZ KA
finished goods excludes borrowing costs. Net BEBEKAR - Al 2 3H % E 8
realisable value is the estimated selling price in REBEBFNEESERE
the ordinary course of business, less applicable RO2siEERT -

variable selling expenses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables CMEZEWREREMEREKRIE
Trade receivables are amounts due from ESRWNEEREPRATE
customers for goods sold in the ordinary course HBRARBFRRKER - WEHRE
of business. If collection of trade and other W BR 18 % H b 8 U BR 18 78 HA X
receivables is expected in one year or less (or —FHIUNA(HEB 2 —REE
in the normal operating cycle of the business if BAEAMYER)WE - Bl 5 %E
longer), they are classified as current assets. If RMEBEE - BRAMKESL
not, they are presented as non-current assets. 2VRERBEE -

Trade and other receivables are recognised B EWERE & H A4 WK IRIE
initially at fair value and subsequently measured MHEARFE®ER  EEFA
at amortised cost using the effective interest B R A 30K 1 8 8 K R 0 BR OB
method, less allowance for impairment. EREF2 - -FEAEEE
See Note 2.8 for further information about FEWBRIE &k Hih BN ARIBEM &
the Group’s accounting for trade and other TREME - STERRAEE
receivables for a description of the Group’s BERFENHER  F2H8M3E
impairment policies. 2.8 °

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents 212B e RBITHEER
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in ReRRTEHREEFFR:
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other RITEBANFRALEME SR
short-term highly liquid investments with original BUEE(RINBAAR=AXK
maturities of three months or less. LATR) ©

2.13 Share capital 213 &

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TERDEAER BIIHR
Incremental costs directly attributable to the M EZ EAE G A AT
issue of new shares or options are shown in EERNYIREBERE(BRE)
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the B F0RL ©

proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year
comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A MR i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value are
determined assuming the properties will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences a rising on investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 0 s 22 B v

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.17 Revenue recognition 217 W= ER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time
when a group entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(a) Sales of goods — retail and
concessionaire sales

Revenue from sales of goods including
retail and concessionaire sales is
recognised when control of the products
has transferred, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered
to customers and title has passed.

(b) Sales of goods — internet sales

Revenue from the sale of goods on the
internet is recognised at the point that
the control of the inventory have passed
to the customer, which is the point of
dispatch. Transactions are settled by credit
or payment card. Provisions are made for
internet credit notes based on the expected
level of returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2.18 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok o B 5 R Mk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.18 Leases (Continued) 218 & (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability, any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and restoration
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR A BA B AR M
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBEME
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.18 Leases (Continued) 218 & (&)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated THREEE—REEENEHA
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the EnHEHENMEACHEE
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group NIZBEFEEFRITE - x &%
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase EEEmESTEEER A
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over FHEENEENERASHHE
the underlying asset’s useful life. NEERAEEEIRTE -
Payments associated with short-term leases HIEHYENEHBAERRE
of store premises and all leases of low-value KEEBEEMEMEBNNR R
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as BERZERBEPBERRBAX -
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases RHESEEMEB AT Z@EAK
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or LWTHHE - BEEEBEEEBRRE
less. Low-value assets comprise point of sale 5 & W o
machines.
Lease income from operating leases where the AEBEEREME AW LS
Group is a lessor is recognised on a straight-line HERAEHEHRNZEZE
basis over the lease term. The respective leased MR- EHEEEEEREHAM
assets are included in the consolidated balance ERGEEERBBERANIIE-

sheet based on their nature.

2.19Interest income 2197 B A
Interest income on financial assets at amortised REBHEKNATEN /R E EN
cost calculated using the effective interest BUWA ZEREBRMEER
method is recognised in the consolidated ENRNiReBaRER -

income statement.

Interest income is presented as finance income MBWAERMBIWAZIR
where it is earned from financial assets that are HRXERRE2EEBENMES
held for cash management purposes, see Note LEMEE  c ATXHES - £
8 below. Any other interest income is included in Al B b F B U A TR B HE T A Aty
other income. WAR
2.20Employee benefits 220 EE A
(a) Employee benefit entitlements (a) EEWEFIEF
Salaries, bonuses, annual leave and the KEBFHE - L4 F&
cost of other benefits to the Group are N H A48 F A A R A &
accrued in the year in which the associated EEMMEBREEE NG
services are rendered by the employees of F o
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory
provident fund scheme which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme and
available to all Hong Kong employees. Both
the Company and the staff are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant
income with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per
month to the MPF scheme. Staff may
elect to contribute more than the minimum
as a voluntary contribution. The Group’s
contributions to this mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group also contributes to pension
schemes established by municipal
governments in respect of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of
the Group. Contributions to these schemes
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

The liability or asset recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B P B A i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHEBMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20Employee benefits (Continued) 220 EE R (&)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the
consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in the consolidated balance
sheet.

2.21Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

e excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok o B 5 R Mk

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHHEBMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21Share-based payments (Continued) 221U R BER AR (E)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.

If the vested equity instruments are later lapsed
and are not exercised, the corresponding
amount recognised for services received from
an employee is transferred from employees’
share-based compensation reserve to retained
earnings.

2.22Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, and
no longer at the discretion of the Company,
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23Earnings per share
(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial
year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares;
and

e the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

2.24Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (included foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.
The directors provide principles for an overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

(a) Market risk
()  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Mainland China with most
of the transactions settled in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), United States
dollar (“US$”) and RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising mainly from the exposure
of HK$ and US$ against RMB as
the majority of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities including deposits
in banks, trade receivables, trade
payables and short-term bank loan are
denominated in HK$ and US$.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANC
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 28 February 2023, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB22,000 higher/lower (2022:
profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB131,000 higher/
lower) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of HK$ denominated deposits
in banks, trade receivables and
trade payables (2022: banks, trade
receivables, trade payables and short
term loan).

At 28 February 2023, if US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB23,000 lower/higher (2022:
profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB38,000 higher/
lower) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated deposits in banks
and trade payables.

The foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of other foreign
currencies is considered to be
minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from bank balance (2022: bank
balance and short term bank loan)
which exposes the Group to cash flow
and fair value interest rate risks.

As at 28 February 2023, if the interest
rates on bank balance (2022: bank
balances and short term bank loan)
had been 25 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year would have been
approximately RMB743,000 lower/
higher (2022: profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB809,000
higher/lower) mainly as a result of
higher/lower net interest income on
bank balance (2022: bank balances
and short term bank loan).

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade and
other receivables including deposits (Note
21), pledged bank deposits and cash and
bank balances (Note 22) included in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to its financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Sales to retail customers are made in
cash or via major credit cards. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit
terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

Substantially all the deposits with banks
are held in international financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institution and management
does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for trade receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables has been grouped based
on the ageing and shared credit risk
characteristics.
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOL

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before 28 February 2023 and
28 February 2022, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
on an individual or collective basis, to settle
the receivables.

As at 28 February 2023, the Group
had identified that certain debtors had
insolvency issues. In this respect, the
Group made provision of loss allowance
for full for RMB4,971,000 (2022:
RMB6,307,000). Regarding the remaining
balances, the Group determined the loss
allowance on a collective basis as at 28
February 2023 and 28 February 2022 as
follows for trade receivables:

Current

Gk
RMB'000

Asat28 February 2023 ~ W-F-=E-FZ+NB ARETR

IDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A B

3 MHEREREE

31 HHEREER(E)

(b) EEEEE)
TRMEERMEGE)
EHEBEEXEAN T - =
F_AZTNBR-ZE-—
FZA-+N\BH36MEARN
5 & 8 1B A N B
HEMMERESEEEE
ME - BEREEBRXD
EFHRE URBRTES
BAERERNEPL XN
J& U 5K BE 71 /O & AT A0 B BE
HEERBREERZREM

RZEZ=F"A=+/\H "
rEERTEE TEBAR
EETHEEBRB - LB
M AEBEFREZES
B & #H A R 4,971,000
T(ZEZ_F: ARK
6,307,0007T) ° ¥f 7 F £
BE R_E_=%_A
“F+N\BER=ZFT=Z=_F=H
“+TNB - AEEHEFHE
WERBEZOTHAREEES

B
Over
1-30days 31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days
pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total

2% g% ok a8
1230 3Z60K  61290%  90RML it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARWTZ ARETR

Expected loss rate EHERE 1.5%
Carrying amount BEE

(net of specfic provision) (RETERER)
— trade receivables -BARNEE 34,302
Loss allowance EiEEE 501

24% 4.5% 16.9% 36.2%

3,665 201 474 69 38,711
88 9 80 25 703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR A BA B AR M
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMEBEKREEE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 H¥REBEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERERE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cEMEEREBEE)
QOver
1-30days  31-60days  61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
A% 1E0K  3EOK  61E0K RN Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2022 WZBZZEZAZT\B OARETT  ARETT  ARETR  AR%TR  ARETT  ARETR
Expected loss rate BHEEX 06% 1.8% 18% 61% 89%
Carrying amount REfE
(net of specific provision) (RET&ER)
— trade receivables - BAENER 36,889 6,781 448 643 610 45,371
Loss allowance BEER 23 119 8 % 54 443
The loss allowances for trade receivables R-ZEZ=%F-"HA=+\H
as at 28 February 2023 and 28 February “E-F-A-+N\H"
2022 reconcile to the opening loss 25 e W BRI B 18 B
allowances as follows: FUEBEBREHEREOT
2023 2022
—_E_-= —EoF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B E AR TR AR%®TTT
At beginning of year F ] 6,750 5,924
Write-off as uncollectable  #ffi #5 1~ 7] Uk [B] 4 %8 (1,080) (234)
Write-back on recovery of U [8] 52 BR % 4]
bad debts 7 (350) (10)
Increase in loss allowance FRNELLAIBZ X
recognised in the i T R B 1B B
consolidated income 1 38 1N
statement during the
year 7 354 1,070
At end of year F 5,674 6,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

©

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference to the
counterparties’ historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash, which is
mainly generated from the operating cash
flow, and the availability of funding from
adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the consolidated balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

3

b P B A i

Bt % = By B 2R ()

31 B¥EREEGE)
(b) EEEEE)

(@)

TRMEERMEGE)
LB AN B A & BB
EMs EEEZ2ERS
HFNELENXRRER
M#BARR - BI L HERIE
RARHEEERRBRY KB R
%igbﬂo/)ﬁkfﬁﬁéfﬁﬁﬁﬁz?
12EARMEEBEREE
ZEHEERBELTEK -

B & % JE B
HRENRBDESRRE R

BREAFRARRS (X2H
Z<(<%£Ei//|b§:$> LA 2 33
BAMMNBEREFERE
N@ERFAIHBAES - K
SERNEFATHAND
AEFERME REED
8 PL g 1 o

TEBAEEHNT K AE
LZHAHEERZANE
HAMBTHES T AME
BEIHAR - RAFTHEE
CEABEHOATERER -
m#%ﬁ%%Tk 12
BMAREBNEHRBEER
HIRAE &4 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 /N
A

B A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3 MHEREREE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 H¥REBEE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEEZERE (&)
Less than Between Between Over

1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total

-EUR -FERECH MEZLEZE BELE at

R-B-=F RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

As at 28 February 2023 —A=1/R AE®Tn  AR%Tn AR%Tn  AR¥Tr  AR¥Tx
Trade and other payables ~ EZEFEER

Rt &R 57,855 - - - 57,855

Lease liabilties HERE 23,841 15,203 3N - 39,415

81,696 15,203 3N - 97,210

Less than Between Between Over

Tyear 1and2years  2andb years 5 years Total

—ENR -FEMECH MEERELME jepohik:3 s

A — RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

As at 28 February 2022 “AZtNB ARBTT  AREFTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Trade and other payables ~ ZHEMEER

At EREE 63,259 - - - 63,259

Lease liabllities HERE 22,556 14,261 13,423 - 50,240

Short-term bank loan RERAER 20,280 - - - 20,280

106,095 14,261 13,423 - 133,779

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBERE

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
make adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
obtain new bank borrowings, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

194 6 saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHER B R A A

AEBEEREERN UREXR
SEERENFERLE RRR
R B 5 10 E R A 3 S M) &
RIE#ERREEAEEBARK

AEBEREEAERE  LRE
RERBEHIFLAE - B #
FRABABEANGERE AEEN
EHEBRTHRRORE 28
REHRITER $ERRE
PR ST R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios as at 28 February 2023 and
28 February 2022 were as follows:

ok 7 S 5 R A B

Bt % = By B 2R ()

3.2 EXEKREE(H)

BEEANEMRRMEE B K
SENBELERESERENR
MEE - EEERZFEBR
N BETE  FEBRE
ReR(BERGeEERBRM
RZnBRIFRBDEF)RRE
;ERREHAEBTE -

RZEZ=F-_A=Z+N\BE=
TZ_F-ZA=+N\HBH BEEL
ES (I

2023 2022
—E-=F —EF- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR®TT
Total borrowing (Note 25) B @5 (K ites) - 20,200
Less: Cash and bank balance B BRe RIRITHE
(Note 22) (K1 &t22) (371,606) (443,289)
Net cash FIR e (371,606) (423,089)
Total equity KA 2 663,636 705,339
Gearing ratio fBEE = N/A N/A
T E A I 3E A

As at 28 February 2023, the Group maintained
a net cash position of approximately
RMB371,606,000 (2022: RMB423,089,000).

RZE-_=F-_A=+N\H"
FEBAERBFFEOARK
371,606,000T (=& = —ZF : A
R #423,089,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

B P B A i

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

This note explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the non-financial assets that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the consolidated
balance sheet. To provide an indication about
the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its non
financial assets and liabilities into the three
levels as following:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Details of the fair value estimation for the
investment properties are disclosed in Note 15.

3

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, and will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment loss for non-financial assets,
comprising property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, is recognised as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 2.6, 2.7 and
218. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use, which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at
each consolidated balance sheet date, from
the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs to disposal.

4

B £ B A M

E E SR H B (&)

AEEFELARRROMGT KB -
BERE FEEGAHANRS
REAERER -HFESHNEEN
BEEEERNT —EMRFELR
EXARR RO MG REER W
T

(@) W% HEERRBENIAEAF
H
AEEEEBETASEYE
Mz kR mREETAIEMER -
At DRBE AL E MDA
MYE KEhXEBENE
PREJBE A FH M E o i Al 62 A
FHIORERGEFH BE
B AL NI B 0 3 KA
WA MEEEREXEEEEN
BT IE R & E -

(b) keMEERE
FEeMEERBEEER BED
¥ WENEERFERAEEE -
B M T2.6 ~ 272187 H &
ETEE BEWME KBEREE
kEAEEEMNEAERRE
AEl e EREHEEH
ABREEE ATKkEEEAE
EANFEBHEEXNABLEEF
BEMEFZESE  HiIRE
AREER A REMEREFRE
MEFBRAFRANETZSHIN
& E WA S K AR
NEAHEERAATRBHELEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

foe A

W3

4

b A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for these taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimation at each balance sheet
date.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHZERE AR A &

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(e) Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The Group assesses the fair value of its
investment properties based on valuations
determined by independent professional
qualified valuers. The fair value of the
Group’s investment properties are based on
the market price of similar properties and
locations. In relying on the valuation reports
of the independent professional valuer, the
management has exercised its judgment and
is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the market conditions prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Any changes
in the market conditions will affect the fair value
of the investment properties of the Group.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The executive directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a retail perspective and
assess the performance of operations on a
geographical basis (Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively). The reportable segments are
classified in a manner consistent with the information
reviewed by the executive directors.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
reportable segment result. This measurement basis
excludes other (losses)/gains, net (excluding gains on
early termination of leases), finance income, net and
unallocated items.

Segment assets mainly exclude deferred income
tax assets and other assets that are managed on a
central basis.

B £ B A M

FEE AR A &)
(e) REMENRFEMET

AEBERBEBIEXRMGEME
ENHEEMBERENENQ
FE - AEENREVEHQ
FEERERLUD MR
MG ERETH - KBEBILE
XEEMNHBERS BEE
B 1F th #8730 15 4 1h (B 07 & B8
REREZEHREHRWBITHR ©
TANEMNES ST EANAKHE
MIEMENRFIE -

WEkoEESR
EEBERUTESHEMNIERG
ERBRERBENBREEETELED
e

HITEFTEUTELHRKEHAN
SENMBEENRRWED B(FE
RE - BARRFDFBEB KA -
AZHRDBEATESTEMNENZ
TADE -

HITEERBEIEROBRETGL
REDPBLIRBR - LA EEETE
EEM(ER), Was FRCERE
RATRIEAEEN KR  BBEA
FENMARDEIER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A MR i

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customer is
located, and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on the country where the assets are located.

()  The segment information provided to the
executive directors for the reportable segments
for the year ended 28 February 2023 is as

5

WEkosBER(E)

DTRAEIEITBREHRMENR?
EBEEMSHAEAERKES
BrHEMAE -

A

R

R OBHREME  BEDER
EFMEBZRMmMEE REERE
AXHDEREEMENBRETE -

iy MPATEFTREEABZE_Z
= A+ \BLEFEZA
EFRPBE2HBEERNDT:

follows:
Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
B KB EBREM a5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR
Revenue from external customers SRyl 410,426 2,801 413,227
Reportable segment loss NERNEER _(e3535) (28,717) (52,252)
Other losses, net (excluding gains on AER FECARE
early termination of leases) REKIBERNMR) (8,199)
Finance income, net BHBA 58 7,065
Unallocated items AAEIEER 229
Loss before income tax BEERAIEBE (93,157)
Income tax credit FERNR 1,890
Loss for the year FRER (51,267)
Depreciation e 30,287 6,527 36,814
Impairment losses on property, plantand  #1% + & &
equipment SEREESR 3,115 2,954 6,069
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FBEEEREEE 583 10,972 11,555
Additions to non-current assets (other ~ FAHEERE (BT
than deferred income tax assets) FEREEERIN 15,772 19,056 34,828
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(if)

The segment information provided to the
executive directors for the reportable segments
for the year ended 28 February 2022 is as
follows:

ok 7 S 5 R A B

WEkosBER(E)
iy MATESRERHEIEAAEE_ZT

T A+ N\BLEFEZA
ERO/B\zHEERLT :

Mainland Hong Kong

China and Macau Total
N BEREM Ba
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT ARETTR

Revenue from external customers WRAEEZ W&
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AERDEE/(BE)
Other gains, net Aflis - 28
Finance income, net HBKA 58
Unallocated items AHEIEE
Profit before income tax BRETET AR
Income tax expense e
Profit for the year FER A
Depreciation il
Impairment losses on property, plantand  #1% -+ & &
equipment SEREER

Impairment losses on right-of-use assets £ BEEEREEE

Additions to non-current assets (other ~ FFFBEERE (RIT
than deferred income tax assets) FIERBEERIN

For the years ended 28 February 2023 and
28 February 2022, revenues from external
customers are mainly derived from the Group’s
own brands, le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA
ROSA, PITTI DONNA and charm & easy.

560,708 8,326 569,034
_____ 10702 (934 9,768
8,465

6,197

(882)

23,548

(20,907)

2,641

30,322 2,140 32,462

4,109 - 4,109

3,305 - 3,305

53,329 11,026 64,355

BHEZT-="F-_A=Z+NBK
T E-__HF-_A-_+NBLILHF
E-NABEPZHREEERE
KRNEBESEMMle saunda - le
saunda MEN - LINEA ROSA -
PITTI DONNA Kz charm & easy °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R Mk

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WakoEERGE)

(CONTINUED)

(il An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities iy RZE-_=ZF_A=_+NA\H =&
as at 28 February 2023 by reportable segment SERAERSOHE S CEE
is set out below: RBEOWHT:

Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
o A B BERRM ax
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARB TR ARBTR
Segment assets PEEE o 48 306,752 748,980
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHEEE 32,390
Unallocated assets AREE 21,080

Total assets per consolidated balance ~ HAEEBRERZ

sheet BELR 802,450
Segment liabilities PEERE . %466 22544 119,010
Current income tax liabilities BHMEHEAE 1,448
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEAR 18,312
Unallocated liabilities APEEE 44

Total liabilties per consolidated balance GABEEREERZ
sheet BEEH 138,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(iv)

An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
as at 28 February 2022 by reportable segment

is set out below:

b P B A i

WEkosBER(E)

ivy R -—"F-_HA=-+/\H '«
EERAERDBE L ZEE

KBEITHET:
Mainland Hong Kong

China and Macau Total
HEARE EAREM ek
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Segment assets

Deferred income tax assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets per consolidated balance
sheet

Segment liabilities

Current income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities per consolidated balance
sheet

NREE

ERFMEHEEE
ANEEE

GREERRRYL
EERE

nEARE
EMAEHAR
ERMEHERE
APERE

FREERBRYZ
BlERE

661,545 173,750 835,295

32,150
20,641

888,086

114,962 35,755 160,717

2,967
28,800
263

182,747
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R 3 S 5 AR M

W3

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(v)  The analysis of revenue from external customers

5

WEkosBER(E)

v) EAHMIEDEE D2 KEIR

by geographical segments is as follows: EPWm oW :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue W 2= AR TR AR%®TTT
Mainland China A B K B 410,426 560,708
Hong Kong BB 2,801 7,020
Macau B P - 1,306
Total et 413,227 569,034

For the years ended 28 February 2023 and 28
February 2022, there was no transaction with a
single external customer that amounted to 10%

or more of the Group’s revenue.

(vi)  An analysis of the non-current assets (other
than deferred income tax assets) of the Group

HE-_ZT-_=F-_A=-+N\HEK
—E-FE-A-+HNBILEE
WHEEE-IIREPETESHE
EARAEEWKZI0%H A EHT

5 o

(Vi) AEEZRAMESEE D2k
RBEECREMBSHREEER

by geographical segments is as follows: SN Z DT

2023 2022
—E_=F =S

RMB’000 RMB’000
Non-current assets RBEE AR TR AR®TT
Mainland China AR K B 44,057 62,953
Hong Kong BB 6,828 12,767
Macau JE P 74,836 65,172
Total mat 125,721 140,892
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ok 7 S 5 R A B

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 6 HWARHEMER) WHE -

GAINS, NET

R
2023 2022
—E-=F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt ARETT

Other income
Government incentives (Note (a))

Other (losses)/gains, net

H bty A
BT #6887 i2 (a) 5,451 4,631

Hit (B8, W FE

Fair value losses on investment KEMERNFEEIR
properties (Note 15) (H17£15) - (747)
Net exchange (losses)/gains E R (BB,
(Note (b)) SRR (M AE ) (8,199) 9,212
Gains on early termination RAKRIEBEES O KR
of leases (Note 17) (B it17) 356 —
(7,843) 8,465

Notes: B iE

(@)  Government incentives mainly represent grants received from (@ BINMMEITERENTBEMNEDBNFK
the PRC and Hong Kong governments in subsidising the M@ E  AREEAEEN —REE
Group’s general operations and employee salaries. There are MEEF© - ELHHLBERERME
no unfulfiled conditions or other contingencies attaching to B {68 14 Sk B Bk A IR A o
these grants.

(b)  Net exchange (losses)/gains arose from the settlement of (b) REINEHEXRFEERRFREXRBRE
transactions denominated in foreign currencies and from the LANEGEZEREERBE(BEEE
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets NEIBESRFMEE ZER(EB) s
and liabilities, including inter-company balances, denominated FRELEFEHE —HAPBENE QMK
in foreign currencies and one-off exchange gain from — IR R Es e

deregistration of a subsidiary in the PRC in last year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR A BA B AR M

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RUMESEZRAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, impairment TABEERA - B 5 EWRIEREE
losses on trade receivables, net, selling and B8 HEERHEHRAIM—KK
distribution expenses, and general and administrative THRAX 2T :

expenses are analysed as follows:

2023 2022
—_=E-= =S

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTFRT AR®FTIT

Auditors’ remuneration % B BT BN &
— Audit services — Z R 1,610 1,490
— Non-audit services — R BRTE 97 104
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - MBS K

equipment (Note 16) HEITE (K aL16) 13,191 11,933
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHRAEEEFE

(Note 17) (K7 &E17) 23,623 20,529
Loss on write off/disposal of plant and il § " H & # 28 I

equipment (Note 23(b)) R E B (K Z231) 1,607 674
Cost of sales 85 & A AR 143,997 211,182
Expenses relating to short-term leases A& @G HHAE &

and variable lease payments AEHEENRAX

(Note 17) (B 7t17) 72,229 94,363
Freight charges BB 4,877 6,222
Postage and express charges BIERRES 1,711 1,966
Advertising and promotional expenses E &N EEMA X 16,286 18,535
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®FMHASZ(BIEES

directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) B &) (47 :£9) 135,893 147,876
(Write-back of impairment)/impairment 17 & CR{E & @),

losses on inventories, net BEEE  FE (3,839) 2,258
Impairment losses on trade receivables, & 5 & W BRTE R E & 18 -

net HRE 4 1,060
Impairment losses on property, plant  #1% - # 23 & R & R (E

and equipment (Note 16) & 18 (h7 it 16) 6,069 4,109
Impairment losses on right-of-use EHREEERE

assets (Note 17) B (A it17) 11,555 3,305
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE INCOME, NET

22 /N
e

8 MBWA  FHE

I B A i

2023 2022
—E-=F —_E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR AREBTET
Interest income on bank deposits IRITFERZF B U A 8,641 8,130
Interest expense on lease MEBEZ
liabilities (Note 17) MBXH (M aE17) (1,491) (1,692)
Interest expense on short-term bank 52 HIR1TE &K 2
loan A B X (85) (241)
7,065 6,197

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BERAMAXX(BEESH)

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E=- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETIT
Wages and salaries ITERF= 107,316 120,064
Staff welfare and other benefits B T1E M & H b E AL 7,596 7,286

Pension costs — defined contribution (EARES KA — REHK

plans (Note) =& (B i) 20,981 20,526
135,893 147,876
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

Note:

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate
in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) which is a
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under independently administered
funds. Contributions to the schemes by the employers and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 was enacted in June
2022 which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits of employers’
mandatory contributions under the MPFO to offset severance
payment and long service payment (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).
The abolishment of the Offsetting Arrangement would increase the
state benefits that affect the long service payment payable by the
employer. In accordance with the requirement of HKAS19 Employee
benefits, management has re-measured the provision for long service
payment to reflect the financial impact of the abolishment of the
Offsetting Arrangement. The impact was assessed not material for
the year ended 28 February 2023.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement schemes administered
and operated by municipal governments. The Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees which are calculated on
certain percentages of the average employee salaries as agreed by
the municipal governments. Such retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

Retirement benefit scheme costs amounting to RMB20,981,000 (2022:
RMB20,526,000) were paid by the Group during the year. Forfeited
contributions totalling RMB171,000 (2022: RMB2,836,000) were
refunded and credited in the employee benefit expenses during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R Mk

EERAMXI(BRESHE)(H)

Hrat -

AEBEBNEBHNME QMRS 28R EHK
sHaEl - Rt Amest a8l ((RESFE]) - #R
EeddMEENEASEEMEEDMER
FHBYESEENTLAKE BEXIRERR
BIEDF BN - HRAMEENELRF FE -

(ZE2Z—FRERRAKFENDEN (KL HH(E
FDGRODR -T2 ZFXABB - BB AR
HAESEI TEINRGIERRREERE
HEMBRERORBENRHTEPIRE) - B
BEBRBBENEZERIRNERARE S
MBEF - RIFEESFTERNFI9REESRMND
RE BEECEFAERIRTSEE A
RREBGES h e N BEE -BE_T =
FE_AZTNALEFE ZRERFBATE
* o

AEERPERENHBAREEEZ2EAN
BRNERBREENRERTRARSEE - A%
B 5 B R BE A B BB 2 B ) AR PR & IR
NmEERERAKEN  BEHXERTRA
EENTHEEFENETAOLFE - ZF
BRASFERENTRKEENZERIKNEERN o
AEBBREFRIN BEAEREERIGTRKER
FMEMEE

FR -AEBIMNHERBEAAEREAAEAR
#20,981,0007C (= F = = 4 : A R #20,526,000
J0) o BIRENZU A A A A R¥171,0007T
(ZZT=-—F: AR#%¥2,836,0007T) " ¥ E AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok o B 5 R Mk

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EE2RARESR
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERESTHRAEMS

emoluments

Pursuant to section 383 of the Hong Kong BEEAB(RAIGHINE622E)
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies FIBIFE(AR(EBEESHN R E
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of £ R PN (FEe22GE) & iR
Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and the A BUESEE&RTTHRAER
Listing Rules, the emoluments paid or payable RERNB WS EROFHMAT

to every director and the chief executive for the
year are as follows:

2023
“ECCE
Salary, Employer’s
bonus, other contribution
allowances to retirement Share option

and benefits benefit benefits
Fees in kind scheme (Notg) Total
e w4
Rk EIgHhe BREEA
we ENRla HE FE (i) @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name tE ARETR AR¥Tn AR%Tn AR%Frn ARETR
Executive directors BTES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BEILL - 2,380 16 - 2,396
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter £y bt - 182 9 - 191
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BlExt
(appointed on 25 April 2022) (R-E-—£mf
Z1HAEZE) = 378 1 - 389
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BEmt
(resigned on 1 May 2022) (R-E-—F
FH-HEF) - 228 - - 228
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. James Ngai filEsLs 182 - - - 182
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon B EE 182 - - - 182
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELE 182 - - - 182
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan HRARE 182 - - - 182
728 3,168 3 - 3,932
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A MR i

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

10 EF2EFNRER(E)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EERBESTHAEMS (E)
emoluments (Continued)
2022
Salary, Employer's
bonus, other contribution
allowances  toretirement  Share option
and benefits benefit benefits
Fees in kind scheme (Notg) Total
e
EERk  EIEhe  BREEN
#e ENils ER M) i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name #3 ARETLE  AR®TT  AR%Tn  ARETn  ARETR
Executive directors YnES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REFLL - 2,069 15 - 2,084
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BRERL - 1574 - - 1574
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter ZKARE - 178 9 - 187
Non-executive director FUTES
Mr. James Ngai REZAE 174 - - - 174
Independent non-executive BUFYTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon WkEEE 174 - - - 174
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PEERE 174 - - - 174
Mr. Hui Chi Kiwan FREEE 174 - - - 174
696 3,821 24 - 4,541
Note: Bt -

Share option benefits are non-cash compensation which were
determined based on the fair value of share options granted to
the relevant directors at the date of grant and recognised over
the vesting period (Note 27).

No other emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s
other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the company or its subsidiary undertaking during the year
ended 28 February 2023 (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 28 February 2023, no
retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
or other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit
pension plans (2022: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 28 February 2023, no
payments or benefits in respect of termination of
directors’ services were paid or payable, directly
or indirectly, to the directors (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 28 February 2023, no
consideration was provided to or receivable
by third parties for making available directors’
services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 28 February 2023, there
are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporates and connected entities (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2022: Nil).

G R B HA W

10 EF2EFNRER(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EZRAERN
HE-_ZT-_=F-"A=-+N\HLt
FE - VEEETZFARATRIN
S E B BEBERERARFK
MEBARR R - SkERART]
FEMNBRAREBKNEKEE
ZJEMRS BN EN 2
BREN(ZZEZZF:|) -

RIEEERBz2HES
BE-_T-=_F-_HA=+N\BLt
FE VYERNESEEIMHEE
SHNBERKRIEESTRSE 2 RE
gE L2 ERNRE(CZE
TTF M)

MEEZHRAEOE=FRHEN
#
HE-_T-_=F"_A=-+N\HL
FE VERESZ2HERSE
=AHENSIEREM(ZE ==
FfE)o

FHUESE ZSEEZRE
TERRAEERBAZTZAZE
R -EERRAEMXZZEHR

HE2-_ZE_=%F-_A=-+/N\HIt
FE BENESE ZFESFZ
XIEFERBAEEERY T A
LEF EEFRAMRG(Z
T F M)

EERXRS  REHEIESGHANE
RF =
RARIMEIEARARRIZESH
EXEEREEARAMNEZRRNF
RIFAFEMEBDRATE -
HARNAEBBEENEARARS -
THIEN (T ZF &)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 3 S 5 AR M

W3

1

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11 EREBAEHNS
TEBREH AL

Five highest paid individuals

The directors’ emoluments presented above
include the emoluments of 1 (2022: 2) highest paid
individuals in the Group. The emoluments of the
remaining 4 (2022: 3) highest paid individual during
the year ended 28 February 2023 was:

EXE2NNEZTWHEERREAEHE
—H(CEZZF ZR)EEHFATL
MEE - ENBTITER(CT =2

ZR)RBHFALIRBE_T_=F

“AZTHN\BLEEEZHFMG:

2023 2022
—— = =

—_= — = —_———

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Salaries, bonus, other allowances and
benefits in kind

Employer’s contributions to retirement
benefits scheme

Emolument band

e fEA HihEMK
YA &
e = BRINE 58I

2,712 2,243
105 75
2,817 2,318

Number of individuals

¥ &6 = A"
2023 2022
—E=-= —_E -
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 A R#500,0017 &
A R #1,000,0007T 3 3
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 A R #1,000,0017t &
A K #1,500,0007T 1 _

None of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11 EREEAEHNE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The senior management’s emoluments fell within the RREBABZHMMEBELLT -

following bands:

Emolument band Number of individuals
£ ] A
2023 2022
—_Eg2-= g
Nil-RMB500,000 AR®OTE
A R#500,0007T 3 2
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 A R#500,0017t &
A R #81,000,0007T 1 1
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 A R#1,000,0017t &
A R #1,500,0007T 1 _
INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12 FRBH KR, X H
The amount of income tax (credited)/charged to the RirEBEERFHKB),FTAZE
consolidated income statement represents: HEeBwA:
2023 2022
—_=E_-= —E- =

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT

Current income tax EHIFTE
— Hong Kong profits tax — BAMNEM - —
— Macau complementary tax — BPMEmEH - —
— People’s Republic of China — hEAR LB ([FE])

(“the PRC”) corporate income tax EEH 9,523 18,924
Deferred income taxation (Note 19) BEEFBRIE A 219) (11,413) 1,983

(1,890) 20,907

The PRC corporate income tax is provided for on the REEFEME AR IIE25% (=
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC at 25% T F 2% 2HFBBEMRER
(2022: 25%). T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

b OB A

W3

12

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(CONTINUED)

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is
16.5% (2022: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group does not have any

assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during each BERABEEATMNERMAEN - &
of the two years ended 28 February 2023 and 28 REMBBRERALERBTBNEH
February 2022. EL B -

The applicable rate of Macau complementary BFFMEHARERTER12% (=

tax is 12% (2022: 12%). No provision for Macau
complementary tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statement as the Group does

not have any assessable profit arising in Macau ERRERMAEATMNERMATF - W
during each of the two years ended 28 February i\? MBHREANL B BRFIFTEMH
2023 and 28 February 2022. FERAEL B -

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before AEBERAMESHAER), EH 2

income tax differs from the theoretical amount that

STATEMENTS

12 BB R, X H (&)

=B RE
— —4F:16.5%) °
—E-=F A+ NBEZ
FZ_AZTNHLEMBAFESFRL

- —

— =

@ AR AE16.5% (==

HRASEREHE

= — —

=

112%) c N AEEBERE =

—F A+ NEEKRZE=-—
FZAZ+N\BHIMEFESFRL

MEREREAREAEZER

would arise using the applicable tax rate as follows: Mo ERWOT:
2023 2022
—E-=F —_FT-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREBTET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrRATE B AT (B 18)
i Al (53,157) 23,548
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEEHERFEBD
applicable to profits in the respective A Fi R E M Fi 18
geographical areas (7,665) 7,125
Income not subject to tax HAERB WA (1,469) (7,008)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X
purposes 2,612 170
Tax losses for which no deferred RERELEFEHIBEEE
income tax asset was recognised Z T IEE 1B 9,401 3,697
Utilisation of previously unrecognised — 1# 3 5 B & & 52
tax losses T IE B 1R (2,909) (321)
Withholding tax on distributable N5 K & M 2 TR
earnings in the PRC (1,860) 17,244
Income tax (credit)/expense "R R) X (1,890) 20,907
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12

13

14

NOTES TO THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 12 FRB B GNRR), X i (&)
(CONTINUED)
There was no tax charge relating to components of HE_ZT_="F_A-+/\BILFE -
other comprehensive income for the year ended 28 WERHEMEEBRAIB 2RIBZ H (=
February 2023 (2022: Nil). T )
(LOSSES)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BR(EE) &F
Basic =N
Basic (losses)/earnings per share is calculated by BRERNER), &M AR
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of BaimaAREGLGER),&F BTM
the Company by the weighted average number of FADETETER MNE TG
ordinary shares in issue during the year. o
2023 2022
=—g== —EF=-=
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ~ AR FIHEzE3HH A MG
the Company (RMB’000) (B 1#8), % 7
(AR®EFT) (50,271) 2,980
Weighted average number of ordinary £ %17 & i i% 2 & F
shares in issue ('000) BHE(FED) 705,895 705,895
Basic (losses)/earnings per share BREXREE), & F
(RMB cents) (AR5 (7.12) 0.42

Diluted

For the years ended 28 February 2023 and 28
February 2022, the Company had share options
outstanding which were anti-dilutive potential
ordinary shares, the diluted (losses)/earnings per
share equals basic (losses)/earnings per share.

DIVIDEND

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 29 May
2023, the Directors did not propose a payment of
final dividend for the year ended 28 February 2023
(2022: Nil).

14

B
22— =F"A-+N\HEK-Z
T A+ N\BLFE  KAF

ZHARTTEBREHEELBRA
@Bz E SREFE(ER)
HAEERFRER(BIE), A
=\

R-ZB-_ZFRA-_+TNABRETZE
Fe L EFCTRBERAE_T

=R AT \BHIEFEZ XK
B(ZE-—F:8\)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI B R P R
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REYWE
2023 2022
—E_=F =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TF
At beginning of year R E A 66,999 2,360
Transfer from property, plant and M - HEE Rk
equipment (Note 16) HEEANFT6) - 65,368
Fair value losses recognised in the RérEEmEE
consolidated income statement RN AFEERE
(Note 6) (Hite6) - (747)
Currency translation difference E R E R 6,201 18
At end of year JINESEES 73,200 66,999

216 le saun

Investment properties are stated at fair value which
are referenced to the valuations that rely on the open
market value basis at the consolidated balance sheet
dates prepared by an independent professional
valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited. The
fair value changes are included in “other (losses)/
gains, net” in the consolidated income statement.

On 28 February 2022, the Group vacated an
owner-occupied property which is then held to
be leased in future. On the date of transfer from
property, plant and equipment to investment
properties, the difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property of
approximately RMB747,000 was recognised in profit
and loss as fair value losses.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment
properties
During the year ended 28 February 2023, no
rental income has been generate from the
investment properties (2022: Nil).

As at 28 February 2023, the Group had no

unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2022: Nil).

da holdings Itd. 2R ETFHER B R A A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment
properties (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
through sale. The Group has measured the
deferred income tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties
using the tax rates and the tax bases that are
consistent with the expected manner of recovery
of these investment properties (Note 19).

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. In
the current year, the valuations are performed
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuers. At
the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations. The directors determine
the value of the properties within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates.

At each financial year end the Group:

° Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

° Assesses property valuations movements
when compared to the prior year valuation
report; and

o Holds discussions with the independent
valuer.

B £ B A M

15 BEWYE(E)

(a)

(b)

REEEBERBERZREVE
& # ()

AEBOBEVENEEER
EEBBEEN TN ERRLE
MEFRRXBOOLENZE - K
EEFAEREMENTBHK
AR B EMBE 8
HEEREYENEREER
ERREZEESHETHE(H
$19) ©

HEEE

AEBKEIREBFREREDY
EZ2BIUGE -RAFE - B
3 X 4 B B i 8 OIR BR AT (4 R
AERABIETHE RE—
BHREHAR EFSEEHA
BYAE EFREBEDED
NP EEFEHE -BEERAER
FEGEDBERREMEEE -

REBEVRFEE ~AEE:

e RYEMBIMERSEZM
BEXEMBHAE:

« BUBELEEMEERS
WA RO ERD
R

o HUBVAIMEEEITHN® o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt BB R

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar investment
properties. Where such information is not
available the directors consider information from
a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature or recent
prices of similar properties in less
active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or

(i) capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income,
and a capitalisation rate derived from an

analysis of market evidence.

Fair value hierarchy

Description #t

15 REYWE(E)
(b) 1h{EE%E(H)
AP EHNSZTFERRIRERT
BHREKREDWENREB - 528
EXRENBHEERNEEES
& 2R B FE

TREEMERARTS
MIRERBIMEREAD
ABRTIZENIE #HEE
R EHER

RIBEASEHBFRERER
ZEEFRBDR X

R EN A FET 5 W
A BEREBEERA EX
L) F R Ty i 35 & H 9
AT

AFEER
Fair value measurements at 28 February 2023 using

R-ZE-=fC

Quoted prices
in active
markets for
identical assets
HEEEZ
ERMEEE
(Level 1)
(5-8)
RMB’000
ARBTR

AZtNBERTHAFETE

Significant
other Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
EZHMUERE EESFUEE
BAE BAE
(Level 2) (Level 3)
(5=F) (£5=8)
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB TR AR® TR

Recurring fair value measurements & &4 A FE: &

Investment properties: REME:
The PRC s
Macau R
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15 REWE(E)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) fH{EE%E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEELE)

Fair value measurements at 28 February 2022 using
RZF-_F_A-T\BEATIRAFEAE

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
BRAEEz BEAMUEER EZIUHE
EETERE BAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(£—E) (E=B) (E=8)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Description it ARETTT ARET T AREFTL
Recurring fair value measurements &% A FE &
Investment properties: REME:
The PRC th - - 2,360
Macau 2P - - 64,639
- - 66,999
Fair value measurements using significant RFEAEEAEET TEHEK
unobservable inputs (level 3) W AE(E=ZE)
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers AEEMNBRERSHELERARD
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy FESFHE D REALIERN
levels as of the date of the event or change in HoOWMENR TR EEER
circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and BHE-_T-="F-_A=+N\HBHEK
3 during the years ended 28 February 2023 and TR CFZAZTN\BLEE -
28 February 2022, REEF—RB FE_EBERF=ZESH

M2ENER -
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

15 BREW=X(H)
(b) fH{EE % (&)
ARFEITEEHEZT B 5
WAE(E=ZE)(E)

The PRC Macau Total
h B # st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®Tx
At 1 March 2021 N-ZEZ—4F
=H—H 2,360 — 2,360
Transfer from property, S T &
plant and equipment e A — 65,368 65,368
Losses from fair value NEFEAEZ
adjustment BB — (747) (747)
Currency translation ERER
difference — 18 18
At 28 February 2022 A= s
—A=+N\H 2,360 64,639 66,999
Total change in fair value ~ EXREBEE T
for the year included in FFAGREE&®
the consolidated income &£ ZAFE R
statement for assets held  “FEEH - &
at the end of the year, B 7 [ B Ath (/&5
under “other (losses)/ 8B),/ W=
gains, net” ¥ 58 — (747) (747)
Change in fair value for FRBEEET
the year included in the A EER
consolidated income E A/ =
statement for assets held &)
at the end of the year — (747) (747)
At 1 March 2022 i —
= H—H 2,360 64,639 66,999
Currency translation EREE
difference — 6,201 6,201
At 28 February 2023 R-ZEZ=
—A=-+N\H 2,360 70,840 73,200
Total change in fair value ~ FRFEEEL
for the year included in FSFAGREE &
the consolidated income RIAFER
statement for assets held  FEE#H -
at the end of the year, B AE [ H A (/&5
under “other (losses)/ 8B),/ W
gains, net” F 78 - - -
Change in fair value for FRABBEEY
the year included in the FFAfRAER
consolidated income rZ2RFEE
statement for assets held &)

at the end of the year
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15 REYWE(E)
(b) 1h{EE%E(H)

12 18 #% i
NEEFEFEAEEITAER
WABE(E=E)
ERGEDNEREEL R EE
TE oo FE AR AT M R EY A4 b B
E7EBERBEYWEANNEE
EREZEZBEFEHAE -
BEFEEZAEBE2HAREA
FBEF KB o

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Valuation basis (Continued)
Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The valuations were determined by using the
direct comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this

valuation approach is price per square meter.

Relationship of

Fair value at Range of unobservable
28 February 2023 Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
Description (RMB’000) technique inputs input value
R=BZ=F
ZB=TNAE#
AYfE BEAIN BEAIN BEAUNAAE
%R (AR®Tr) HEHE BAE BAENEE BATEMNEE
Investment property
— retail shop in 2,360 Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit
the PRC approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REMZE
- URPERER ERNLBE ALEEMENL  BYAKARE  EUEERS
EB/FE 16,5237 NTERS
Investment property
— retail shop in 70,840 Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB964,077 per  The higher the unit
Macau approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REMZE
- fURRMZER ERNLBE ALEEMENL  BYAKARE  EUEERS
EB/FE 964,077 NTERS
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)
Valuation techniques (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

EMENTS

15 BEWYE(E)
(b) fhH{EE % (&)
1518 #5 7 (4&)

NFEFEERAERETAIBRE
wmABE=E(E)

Relationship of

Fair value at Range of unobservable
28 February 2022 Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
Description (RMB'000)  technique inputs input value
R-ZF-ZF
iy JINEL:
RYE BRI BERIH BEAIMBAE
AR (AR¥TR) #ERE BAE AAENEE BRTEMNBEE
Investment property
— retail shop in 2,360  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit  RMB16,523 per The higher the unit
the PRC approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REME
- URPERER ERLEE ALEAMENL  BYAKARE  EUEERS
EB/FE 16,5237 NTERS
Investment property
— retail shop in 64,639  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB879,677 per  The higher the unit
Macau approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REME
- fURRMZER ERLEE ALERMEL  BYHRARE  EBENEERS
EB/FE 8796777 NTERS
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 I HBRRE
Freehold
land and Leasehold Plant and Fumniture Motor
buildings  improvements machinery —and fixtures vehicles Total
KAEE iESkIES
THRET HEIR HEREE GARKE nE st

RMB'000 RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBOOO
ARBTTL  ARBTR  ARETR ARETRL ARETR ARETR

At 1 March 2021 RZEZ-F=A-H

Cost A 85,782 183,565 26,709 21,348 2,822 320,216
Accumulated depreciaton 2T E (14,287) (175,808) (26,709) (20,282) (1,760) (238,796)
Net book amount ERFE 71,545 1,747 - 1,066 1,062 81,420

Year ended 28 February 2022 EZE-F-—F
“AZTNBLEER

Opening net book amount ~~ EIRAFE 71,545 7747 - 1,086 1,082 81,420
Exchange realignment EXHE (2,281) (11) - 7 ) 2,229)
Additions TE - 21,042 - 359 - 21,401
Write offldisposal (Note 251t)  #13 / & (W 2231) - (465) - (209) - (674)
Transfer to investment BERENEW 71

properties (Note 15) (65,368) - - - - (65,368)
Depreciation nE (204) (10,651) - (821) (257) (11,933)
Impairment (Note (2) REWE) - (4,109) - - - (4,109)
Closing netbook amount ~ EXBEFE 3,692 13,553 - 467 796 18,508
At 28 February 2022 S

ZAZTNA

Cost B 17,95 258,035 - 19,814 2,804 298,609
Accumulated depreciation 2B E (14,264) (244,482) - (19,347) (2,008) (280,101)
Net book amount BEFE 3,692 13,553 - 467 796 18,508
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BRI EE)

(CONTINUED)

Freehold

land and Leasehold  Plant and Furniture Motor

buildings improvements  machinery and fixtures vehicles Total

XA%# ANz

1HEEF YEIR RERRE HGARKE RE EH

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AE®T TR AR®BTR AR%Tn AR%ETn AR%Fn AR®Tx
Year ended 28 February 2023 HE-F-=%

ZAZTN\BLEER
Opening net book amount ) EEEFE 3,692 13,553 - 467 796 18,508
Exchange realignment EX3E 350 131 - 7 2 509
Additions NE - 14,589 - 1,795 - 16,384
Write offldisposal (Note 230b) i3 /& (W Z23) - (1,560) - 47) - (1,607)
Depreciation nE (185) (12,258) - (516) (232) (13,191)
Impairment (Note (2) wEWe) - (6,069) - - - (6,069)
Closing net book amount EXEMFE 3,857 8,386 - 1,706 585 14,534
At 28 February 2023 RZFZ=F
ZAZTNA

Cost A 18,593 266,416 - 21,831 2,857 309,697
Accumulated depreciation  EEITE (14,736) (258,030) - (20,125) (2,212) (295,163)
Net book amount EESE 3,857 8,386 - 1,706 585 14,53
Note: B it -

(a)

Certain retail stores with operation were making losses during
the year and the Group is uncertain whether the stores could
meet the sales target. The Group regards each individual retail
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and
carried out impairment assessment for the retail stores which
have indicators of impairment. As a result, impairment loss
of approximately RMB6,069,000 (2022: RMB4,109,000) and
approximately RMB11,5655,000 (2022: RMB3,305,000) against
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets, respectively,
were recognised in selling and distribution expenses of the
Group. The estimates of the recoverable amounts were based
on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the sales forecast.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 LEASES

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
these leases, except for short term leases, see Note
2.18 to the consolidated financial statements further
information.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the

B £ B A M

17 #HE
BREBEEN AEEEEREE
MOBEREESE - TH@EA - 3B
EHGEVBEERRME218

() RERAEERERERANEHE

HAEEERBRBETRTINUTNH

following amounts relating to leases: REENEHE:
2023 2022
—_E—-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREBTT
Right-of-use assets EHREEE
Land use rights + b 5 PR A 12,895 12,347
Retail shop premises, warehouses ZEEH - E2 LA E
and offices 21,974 40,414
34,869 52,761
2023 2022
—E—-= —ZEF=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Lease liabilities HEESE
Current B 22,735 22,387
Non-current FER B 14,564 24,927
37,299 47,314
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 HE(E)

226 e saunda holdings Itd. 2 BT FHERBR A7)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated @ REEEEEEREINESHEE
balance sheet (Continued)
2023
“E-Z=E
Retail shop
premises,
Land warehouses
use rights and offices Total
BEEH
THEAE ERRBAE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
Right-of-use assets BREEE
Opening balance as at W-E--%#=F—H
1 March 2022 L ENE 12,347 40,414 52,761
Additions WE - 18,444 18,444
Depreciation charge (Note 7) TEBRWH7) (622) (23,001) (23,623)
Early termination of leases RAKIEEERY - (3,374) (3,374)
Impairment (Note 16/2)) REW 2166) - (11,555) (11,555)
Exchange realignment EXHE 1,170 1,046 2,216
Closing balance as at RZEZ=%
28 February 2023 “AZtNhBZ
EREH 12,895 21,974 34,869
2022
Retail shop
premises,
Land warehouses
use rights and offices Total
TEEH
Tifb AR EERMAE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTL ARETTT
Right-of-use assets BREEE
Opening balance as at n-E-—%=Zf—H
1 March 2021 ZENEH 13,354 21,085 34,439
Additions NE — 42,954 42,954
Depreciation charge (Note 7) TEBRMH7) (595) (19,934) (20,529)
Impairment (Note 16/2)) REN 2166) - (3,305) (3,305)
Exchange realignment EXRE (412) (386) (798)
Closing balance as at RZE-ZZ%
28 February 2022 “AZtNBZ
EREH 12,347 40,414 52,761




17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

17 HE(#E)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@ RIEeEEEERBIANSEE
balance sheet (Continued)
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR®TT
Lease liabilities HEARE
Opening balance as at 1 March R=ZA—B2FV&E& 47,314 26,907
Additions NE 17,881 42,551
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (26,705) (23,441)
Interest for lease liabilities (Note 8) T & & & | & (41 :%8) 1,491 1,692
Early termination of leases RAIKIEEESD (3,730) —
Exchange realignment EXRFE 1,048 (395)
Closing balance as at 28 February - A —-+/\HZ
FRER 37,299 47,314
Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RGREEBERBERANSHE

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

FAEBEaRRBTRITUTERE
ENER:

2023 2022
—EBE-=F Z—E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Interest expense (included in F B S H (GEA B 5 )
finance cost) (Note 8) (H1i#8) 1,491 1,692
Expense relating to short-term FAEBEAERSGIA
leases (included in selling and HERDHRAZM—M&
distribution expenses and general 1T )
and administrative expenses) 25,605 24,280
Expense relating to variable lease B AFTAHEEGERN
payments not included in lease AEMENRAXZGIA
liabilities (included in selling and & & % $8 5/ X F1 — &%
distribution expenses and general 17 R X )
and administrative expenses) 46,624 70,083

For the year ended 28 February 2023, the
total cash outflow for leases amounted
to approximately RMB98,934,000 (2022:
RMB117,804,000).

BE-_ZEZ-_=F_A=-+N\HIL
FE - HERSAEBEAOA
R#098,934,000C (=T = — 4 :
A R #117,804,0007T) °
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group’s right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as a lessee mainly arise from lease of
various retail shop premises, warehouses and
offices with terms of 6 months to 10 years but
may have extension options as described in (e)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from
a store. For individual stores, up to 47% of
lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms with percentages ranging from
5% to 28.5% of sales. Variable payment terms
are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the condition that triggers
those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the
Group with such variable lease contracts would
increase total lease payments by approximately
RMB4,662,000 (2022: RMB7,008,000).

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of property across the Group.
These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority
of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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STATEMENTS

17 HE(#E)

(c)

(d)

(e)

AEENHEHEERBREARS
=

EREMA NEEZF A&
BEREEAE TEXRBTE
EWH - ERERBAEZTAME
B4 MEEEGHNZFH A6
EAZE10F - WA B E T X(e)
FIT it M) RE HA SR 12 4 o

HEBDAEMBAER EHE - &2
2 &R AR K R AR AT o BR
HEASENHEEEPHE

R¥E 2 S - & 1 I & 6 0
AR -

ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
SYMEREREEEHELE
m%ﬁﬁmﬁmT“H X RE i
R REREEME * ZE47%
K HE ﬁﬁé%ﬁ%#T“ﬁ

RIER > BN T HEHEZERS%
Z28.5% ° @%Tmﬁmﬁﬁm
BREAEZE BEEHKILIE

B E KA E & ME o B
RRBEBRNAIZEHENRAE

BEAEHEN R GHEE
HAHHETE EFIEEFIL °
WMAEBAFEREHEHESR

B FT 7B 5 A 85 B R L IN10% -
MENRBREBEMOARE
4,662,000 (ZE - —F AR
#7,008,0007T) °

EHIR KR RERE
AEENFZNELBERELTH
MRIEEER - ZFEERER

ERABEEBAEBEEXBAAZ
BEZEEEERM - KD A
RERREIDEZEEETHAAER
SETE MAEBELHEATH
17fE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group at 28 February 2023 which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the results or form
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group:

b P B A i

18 KB A H]

BEERENR-_ZE-_=F-"A=+N\H
HASEXEEFEATERBRAN
EEFEEMNTER>NETENS
NS (IN

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and share capital and Principal activities/ 2023 and 2022
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZEZZER
HRALHER BRATRAR TEER/ ZBCCE
MEARER EANER ERES EEBE i M 2
Blooming on Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
REBRRA A BREADNA  2BBREEIER BENY/
LR e
Brightly Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
BERREFRAT A BREALA 2REREEVEL BEN%/
LAk i
Charm & Easy Management Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
A BREALA IRBREENET REERRE/
ERR BR
Charm & Easy Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Retailing of cosmetic 100%
liability company HK$1 each products/
Hong Kong
A BREALR REREENET EMERTE/
ERR B
Charm & Easy Macau Limited Macau, limited liability ~ MOP100,000 Retailing of cosmetic 100%
company products/
Macau
EBERMARAR RFBREFELQR 100,000RFI T EIHERTE/
R
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 Mt 27 (&)
Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and share capital and Principal activities/ 2023 and 2022
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZEZZER
HRAIBER BRATRAR TEEE/ ZBIZE
WEAS AR EAER EBES Exuy k=g $:
Grandmark Holdings Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
EHEERRAA A BREALR RBREENET REER/
EER B
Great Sino Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares of  Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services and
investment holding/
Hong Kong
BECERERAA A BREADLA 10000k 5REEIET REEERER
LR RERR/
Le Saunda (B.V.I.) Limited British Virgin Islands, 31,500 ordinary shares of  Investment holding/ 100%
(Note (a)) limited liability US$1 each Hong Kong
(W) company
AERTES: HS0REREEIEL  RERR/
AREERT ERER Eh
Le Saunda Calcado, Limitada Macau, limited liability ~ MOP200,000 Property holding/ 100%
company Macau
R BREMARA  2000008MT KENE/
2P
Le Saunda China Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
KBEATEREERAA A BREALA  100RSREEIET RERKR/
EER B
Le Saunda Licensing Limited Bahamas, limited liability 5,000 ordinary shares of ~ Holding and licensing 100%
company US$1 each of trade-marks and
names/
Hong Kong
NEEBRARRA" BREHS - 5000RERAMEIZET  HERRLBFLER
EREEAT ERR ERERAR/
B
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

b P B A i

18 B 2R (#)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and share capital and Principal activities/ 2023 and 2022
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZEZZER
HREIBER BRATRAR TEER/ ZBICE
MEARER EANER EHBES Exuy k=g $:
Le Saunda Management Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
KBEAERERAR A BREALA  2RkEREEVER REERRSE/
EER B
Le Saunda Real Estate Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
RBEMHEERDA R BREALA  2REREEIER RERR/
ERR Eh
L.S. Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company HK$1,000 each plus Hong Kong
20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each
RBHATERRLA &8 BREELR  2REREMEI00ET < KETE/
Lakmoook sk  EFE
HEL00ETERSZHE
BT B 7
Maior Limited Hong Kong, limited 1,000 ordinary shares of ~ Trading of shoes and 100%
liability company HK$2,000 each investment holding/
Hong Kong
EEEHERARAA B AREEDR  1000REHREB2000%T REBHRRERR/
3l Bk
Master Benefit Limited Hong Kong, limited 3,000,000 ordinary shares  Investment holding/ 100%
liability company of HK$1 each Hong Kong
EEBRAA BA BREMDA  3000000RSRAEIBT REER/
ERR B
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Name of entity

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

18 B 2R (&)

Particular of issued

share capital and
debt securities

Principal activities/
place of operation

2023 and 2022
Interest held

ZEZZER
HRAIBER BRATRAR TEER/ ZBCCE
MEARER EAER ERES Exuy fi s M 2
Super Billion Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
HEEXERAA A BREALA  100RERAEGEIET KENE/
LR e
Trend Door Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
YR YN A BREALA  2REREEVEL RERKR/
EER B
Trend Light Trading Company Limited  Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
REESRRAT R BREALA  2kEBREEIER RERR/
ERR B
MEESHRE)ERAA The PRC, limited liabilty ~ US$100,000 Wholesales and trading 100%
company of shoes/
the PRC
hE - AREMAR  100000%7 REHERES/
il
MEERR(TE)ERAR The PRC, limited liabilty HK$53,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE - AREMRE 53,000,000 REZE/
il
MEEESH(RINERAE The PRC, limited liability ~ HK$10,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE - AREMAR 10,000,000 NEZE/
il
EB7TE%(LE8)ARAT The PRC, limited liabilty ~ US$6,500,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
hE - EREMLA 6500000% T REZE/
il
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

R P

18 MIB LT (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and share capital and Principal activities/ 2023 and 2022
Name of entity kind of legal entity ~ debt securities place of operation Interest held
“E-ZER
ERRIBER BRTRAR IBE%/ “E-CF
MEARER EAER BEES EEnY FisER
BEERHELR)BRAT The PRC, limited liability  US$2,200,000 Retalling of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
MEBREMAR  2,200000F T RETE/
HE
HBEHKRE)ERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ US$800,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
company the PRC
EAREMLRAT  800000%T RETE/
i
EHREEMMBRAT The PRC, limited liability  RMB27,000,000 Retalling of shoes/ 66.67%
company the PRC
mE-BREMAR  AR¥27000,0007 RETE/
t
BLUTEEEREEXERAA The PRC, limited liability ~ US$1,050,000 Inactive/ 100%
company the PRC
ME-BREMAR 1,050,000 REEEEY/
HE
BLTEEERREXER AT The PRC, limited liability ~ US$1,500,000 Inactive/ 100%
company the PRC
hE - BREMAR 150000057 RELEES,/
t
FELTEERERFHERE The PRC, limited liability  US$200,000 Inactive/ 100%
BRAF company the PRC
B EREMAAR  200000%T RELEED/
t
Note: B iE -
(a)  Le Saunda (B.V.l) Limited is held directly by the Company. All (@) Le Saunda (B.V.I) Limited AN A 7 B £ #

B MAEEMHBLARGAMERHE -

other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Y OEHRES
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the tax assets against the tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after

19 EEFREBER
EEEERNASECEHRESHEER
ERRTCHAESREAEERE  ME
B HRERRA—HBHE - A
FEREMERBEEERAEMALH
NMIESEEEERBRERAIEN T

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated BOFTABEE MK
balance sheet:
2023 2022
—_E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT ARETTT
Deferred income tax assets REFSHIEBEE 32,390 32,150
Deferred income tax liabilities BELEMGHERR (18,312) (28,800)
14,078 3,350

Deferred income taxation is calculated in full on
temporary differences under the liability method
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted EEE o
by the balance sheet date.

EEMGHRERMABEENEE K
ERHEEACEEIAREENHR

2023 2022

—EBEo=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR%®TTT

At beginning of year REH] 3,350 5,422
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated 1% (Gt A) & B =X

income statement (Note 12) (B it12) 11,413 (1,983)

Exchange realignment EXRFE (685) (89)

At end of year JINEEF S 14,078 3,350
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The movement on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

b P B A i

19 EZEFTEBEGE)

i B 49 B4R S 2 R A O A0 B
T

Withholding tax

Unrealised profits on Revaluation of on dividend for
inventories investment properties undistributed profits Others Total
AEREFEF RENFEMR ADRBAORSBENR 2t @it
(Notg)
(Btiz)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—E8-=f —ZT-- —g-=f —T--f CZE-=f —T--— —E-=f —T-— —E-=f -—Z--

RMB'000  RVMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARET:E

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARMTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

At beginning of year RE) 25,707 24,425 (7,140) 7748 (21,659  (16,449) 6,442 5,194 3,350 5,420
Credited/(charged) to RABRERT

consolidated income nk/ GtA)

statement (2,366) 1,610 - 369 11,173 (5,210) 2,606 1,048 11,413 (1,983)
Exchange realignment EXRE - (328) (685) 239 - - - - (685) (89)
At end of year RER 23,341 25,707 (7,825) (7,140) (10,486) (21,659) 9,048 6,442 14,078 3,350
Note: Bt -

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. All dividends coming from the
profits generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 shall
be subject to this withholding income tax. The Group did not accrue
withholding income tax for a portion of the earnings of approximately
RMB113,881,000 (2022: RMB159,950,000) of its PRC subsidiaries
because the Group does not have a plan to distribute these earnings
from its PRC subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 28 February 2023, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of approximately RMB185,237,000 (2022:
RMB140,130,000) to be carried forward against future taxable income.

BER-_ZZLFT_ANBEMNEEMS
BOEERGD B -_TEN\F-A—HAKL B4
EREKRZARARE SN REETIKRNARE
BU10% B TR AT AR o e o B R HM B % B & P AE
FUEREBRITBBAGH  RIFERAREEN
MRE - R_FRNF-A—HEREFERA
PREAMBORERSHAMBENASH -
HRAEEEASDREBEANNE QR 28D
BAANMAFRZENAEH ZANOARK
113,881,0007L (=T = = : A R #159,950,000
JT) e

AR R TR FI 2578 AT AL 5 1B AR 2K FE iR B0k A &
BoREBBLAEBERARELCHBEAE - R
R =F A+ N\B AEEERBERTIE
BB 4 A R#185,237,000C (ZE - —F: AR
#140,130,0007T) 4 88 & ¥ R SR ER B m Fl o
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED)
The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

19 EZEFTEBEGE)

RIERBUEREZ BMANT :

2023 2022

—ZE—-= —=E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Tax losses without expiry date mIEHH 2 HIBEE 153,537 106,710
Tax losses expiring in 5 years AFRE®R 2T IEEIE 31,700 33,420
185,237 140,130

20 INVENTORIES 20 78

2023 2022

—E—-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Finished goods &K mn 230,500 228,272

Less: Provision for impairment of B FE R E R E

inventories (38,124) (41,960)
192,376 186,312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A i

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21 ESEWIEE HMEWEER
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS ReRBEMSKE

2023 2022

—E-=F T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARSTRT AR®ETTT

Trade receivables =) 1 43,682 51,678
Less: loss allowance B BB (5,674) (6,750)
38,008 44,928
Other receivables H e g AR 18 4,282 3,278
42,290 48,206
Deposits o 11,822 11,257
Prepayments TETRIB 3,301 4,119
Value added tax receivables JiE U 3 (B B A% 18 26,062 24,485
83,475 88,067
Presented as non-current assets EIERIERBEE 3,118 2,624
Presented as current assets E2IRRBEE 80,357 85,443
83,475 88,067
The Group’s concessionaire sales through AEERBEESZETHEENE
department stores are generally collectible within 30 — AN EEBELI0ECOKRAMKE
to 60 days. The carrying amounts of trade and other 25 MW ARIE & H b fE U BR 1B 2 BR
receivables approximate their fair values. There is MEHEEAFEREE BRAE
no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade XPRZ HHEBESEWEREBEIY &EE
receivables as the Group has a large number of EREEFRBR -
customers.
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Bt BB R

21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES,

AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, and net of provision,
based on invoice date is as follows:

21

EZRWRE HMoBWRER
BERkEMNREE

BEHRKR BRERIEZEEEKR
ZHRERZEZAHOMET

2023 2022

—E_=F =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®TT
Current to 30 days BIER 30X 36,796 40,385
31 to 60 days 31X ZE60K 341 2,443
61 to 90 days 61K 290K 246 936
Over 90 days HB\I0K 625 1,164
38,008 44,928

Trade receivables are denominated in the following

EZRBRBEAT I EE I :

currencies:

2023 2022

—_=E-= =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTFRT AR®FTIT
RMB AR 37,999 44,928
HK$ BT 9 —
38,008 44,928

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowance recognised as
at 28 February 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB5,674,000 (2022: RMB6,750,000). Information
about the impairment of trade receivables and
group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in Note
3.1(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED 22 BERBITEBREEFRITE

BANK DEPOSIT

o
TFA

2023 2022
—EBo=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Cash at bank and on hand RITHREEFHFRS 98,235 316,521
Bank deposits with initial term no HAPR DR =E ArYeR1T
more than three months (Note (a)) 75k (H 5% (a) 210,333 105,821
Bank deposits with initial term over HAPR %80 = {8 A 00 R 1777 3K
three months (Note (b)) (K1 &2 b)) 63,038 20,300
Cash and bank balances R e RIR1TH % 371,606 442,642
Pledged bank deposit EEARITHER - 647
371,606 443,289
Less: Term deposits with initial term B BARR 8 = 18 A &Y #3
over three months (Note (b)) 78 (H1aE ) (63,038) (20,300)
Pledged bank deposit B IRITF R
(Note (c)) (H1i% () — (647)
Cash and cash equivalents HekFERIRLIER 308,568 422,342

The cash and bank balances are denominated in the

following currencies:

BEeMRITEHRATINEE IR

2023 2022

—E-=HF —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®FTT
RMB AR 154,834 424,820
us$ ETT 112,948 1,271
HK$ BT 102,004 15,826
Other currencies Hin B #& 1,820 1,372
371,606 443,289
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22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSIT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits and
term deposits was 4.04% (2022: 2.25%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 to 91 days (2022: 7 to
91 days).

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with initial term
over three months was 3.64% (2022: 2.10%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity of 181 days (2022: 181 days).

As at 28 February 2023, the Group had no bank deposits that
was pledged as rental deposits. As at 28 February 2022, bank
deposit of approximately RMB647,000 has been pledged as
rental deposits for a subsidiary of the Company.

As at 28 February 2022, the effective interest rate on pledged
bank deposit was 0.07% per annum.

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

le saunda holdings Itd. ZEE T FHERER A
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RERBITERRECERBITE
(&)
H i -

@ HHRAGARTHTEINERINEXA
a¢4m%<;77¢2%w;a%r
FEHANF7EA( T —F 72N

E%

b) HERAB=-"FEANTHERONERNXAS
F3.64% (ZT = _F:210%) ZEFXK
FHB AR181IB(ZE == :181H) °

€ W-ZZTE-_=F-_A=-+NAE- $Eli
ERTEAEERAEERS - K=
ZZ®ZA=+NB" &1 TMmAE%
647,000 EHEBIEARA R A K — BB R
AIMMEERS -

RZZE-—_—F-—F=+N\A BEFET
GRNEBRIEAEEF0.07% °

@ AEEBRAARBREMNESRRITHER
DREFRPENRT - RBZFUARE
BEBUNEFRIMNERELPRERINEA
7 R BT R SNEE IR R R AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 BREHREREXRME
STATEMENTS
(@) Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax @ PFRETEBAT(ER), N&F EL
to net cash (used in)/generated from operations: BERFER/EE2HEF
HHH AR
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E -

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT

Cash flow from operating REXBEFBH2HRERE
activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrATIS T AT (B 18), (53,157) 23,548
Adjustments for: FEEESR
Exchange difference (Note 6) E X Z5 (T te) 8,199 (9,212)
Depreciation of property, plant VI WERRETE
and equipment (Note 16) (Kt it 16) 13,191 11,933
Depreciation of right-of-use CHREEERE
assets (Note 17) (Htet17) 23,623 20,529
Fair value losses on investment KEMEQAFEEIE
properties (Note 15) (K1 i#15) - 747
Loss on write off/disposal of plant  #fi $ " H & # 22 & 38 #5
and equipment (Note (b)) B 1B (H i m) 1,607 674
Gains on early termination of RAKIEEES D KR
leases (Note 17) (Htet17) (356) —
Impairment losses on trade B EWRIE R EEE -
receivables, net (Note 3.1(b)) SFEE (K i23.11) 4 1,060
(Write-back of impairment)/ FE(RERR),
impairment losses on WIEEE TR
inventories, net (3,839) 2,258
Impairment losses on property, Y% - B KR ERERVE
plant and equipment (Note 16) &5 18 (Fft 3£ 16) 6,069 4,109
Impairment losses on right-of use {5 Fi# & &= B B &5 18
assets (Note 17) (Htet17) 11,555 3,305
Finance income, net (Note 8) FEIEWA - F R
(H1#£8) (7,065) (6,197)
(169) 52,754
Changes in working capital: LEESEY:
— Inventories - FE (2,124) (36,017)
— Trade and other receivables — B RIWEKRE R
H b & Y BR 1B 5,980 8,045
— Deposits and prepayments — Be RFERFKIE (968) 1,799
— Trade payables and other — BZRNEER
payables E b BR 1B (2,797) (12,535)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &% (FER)/ E4 2
operations MREFRE (78) 14,046
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 ZEBEREXRMFT(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of write off/disposal of plant and (o) Wl H S 2SR 2R R
equipment:
2023 2022
—E=HF —E-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Proceeds from write off/disposal  #fi$4, H & 7 18 - —
Net book amount REFE (1,607) (674)

Loss on write off/disposal of plant i $& / H & # 25 &

and equipment REEE (1,607) (674)
(¢) Analysis of changes in financing activities during ) FRNMEBETEEE DN :
the year:
Shor-term Lease Dividend
bank loan liabilities payables Total
RHBTER HERR ERRE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR ARRTR AERTR

AL Match 2022 RSESSESA-R (000 () U6 (6797
Cash movements; Red9:
— Repayment for short-term bank loan - REFAENER 21,637 - - 21,637
— Repayment for principal element of -HERBERL
lease liabilities ) - 25,214 - 25,214
— Dividend paid o non-controling interest  — B ERERR S - - 221 221
_oooam o sad o a0z
Non-cash movements; FRs%E
— 2022 dividend declared to non-controling — ~E = ~£F &
interest FARESRE - - (221) (221)
— Additions to lease liabilties -HERERE - (17,881) - (17,881)
— Early termination of leases - REKLRERN - 3,730 - 3,730
— Foreign exchange adjustments -EREE (1,437) (1,048) (45) (2,530)
oo e (18199 (266 _ _ _ _(16,902)
At 28 February 2023 RZE-ZF-A-T/\H - (37,299) (508) (37,807)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B A

23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 HEHRERERMITE)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(c) Analysis of changes in financing activities during © FAMEZDEHHOM: (B)

the year: (Continued)

Shor-term Lease Dividend

bank loan liabilities payables Total
RESHERN HERE ERRE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTL ARETT AEETT AEETT

AT Merch 2021 ASEo-EZf-R - e B9 125
Cash movements; Re#
— Proceeds from short-term bank loan ~f& Mﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁgt (40,400) - - (40,400)
— Repayment for short-term bank loan - BBROETER 20,200 - - 20,200
— Repayment for principal element of -HEBBEAL
lease liabilties ) - 21,749 - 21,749
— Dividends paid -2FkE - - 292,005 292,005
— Dividend paid o non-controling interest  — B S EREER S - - 603 603
oo o0 2t 20608 24157
Non-cash movements: 3F ReE9:
— 2021 final and final special dividend “TT-ERER
REERIR 2 - - (292,722) (292,72)
— Additions to lease liabilties -HEBBARE - (42,551) - (42,551)
— Foreign exchange adjustments -EAEE - 395 - 39
______ oo e s (3878
At 28 February 2022 RZEZZ#-A-T/\R (20,200 (47,314) (469) (67,977)
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The credit periods granted by suppliers are generally
ranged from 7 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the

BRI B R P R

24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BEENEE HttESKRER

CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHNEE
2023 2022
—E-=F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT AR®TTT
Trade payables E o5 EMNIRE 12,012 22,406
Other payables H {th & AR IR 46,483 40,880
Value added tax payables JE A 15 1B T 7% 18 9,863 9,634
Contract liabilities (Note) ERNaEM Z) 13,397 10,546
81,755 83,466

HEREHRZEEN—RR7TEOX -
BEHKR BEHENEREZIERZ

trade payables at the end of the reporting period, BERBWET:
based on invoice date is as follows:
2023 2022
—ZE—-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARETT
Current to 30 days BIER =30k 11,802 22,242
31 to 60 days 31X ZE60K 75 —
61 to 90 days 61K 290K - —
91 to 120 days 91k 2120k - —
Over 120 days B iE120k 135 164
12,012 22,406
Note: B i# -

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in
the current reporting period relates to contract liabilities balance at
the beginning of the year.

TRERTEABRSHERNUZHFINEH

BEHERABZEE -

2023 2022
—g=-= - F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREF T
Revenue recognised that was included in the R ETAFIEL
contract liabilities balance at the beginning BESRE K
of the year 1,842 807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate
their fair values and are denominated in the following
currencies:

24

B £ B A M

EZRENERER HUESRER
BHREEGE
BHEMNEREREEREQFERS -
I PAF 5116 B 51 Bk

2023 2022

—_=E-= =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
RMB AR 11,944 22,396
HK$ BT 68 —
us$ ETT - 9
EURO E — 1
12,012 22,406

SHORT-TERM BANK LOAN

The analysis of the carrying amount of short-term
bank loan is as follows:

25 EHBITER

RERITERZEEEI TN :

2023 2022
—g== —EF=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Unsecured and repayable within 1 year 4 # 38 K& — 4 [ 5k JE & 5
or on demand EiE - 20,200

As at 28 February 2023, The Group had no
outstanding bank loan. As at 28 February 2022,
the short-term bank loan was denominated in HK$,
unsecured, which bears average interest rate at
1.29% per annum and repayable within 1 year or on
demand.

RZEZ_=F-_A=+N\B Xx&H
WERTERGBBE R _—_F—
RZ+NH GHERITERABITE
B &EHR FHFEMNXLE1.29% K
BAR—FANEEREE -
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Ao o B 25 R Mk

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 B
2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-CF
Number of Share capital Number of  Share capital
ordinary R& ordinary BRA
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
EEREA THET EERKRHA TET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 & 3@ [%0.107% 7T

Authorised: EERA:
At the beginning of year FNRER
and at the end of year 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
Number of Share capital Number of  Share capital
ordinary LT ordinary A
shares RMB’000 shares RMB’000
EERYE AR®TR EEREE ARETR
Issued and fully paid: BETRGRKRAK:
At the beginning of year FNRER
and at the end of year 705,895,060 59,979 705,895,060 59,979

246 e saunda holdings Itd. 2 BT FHERBR A7)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 SHARE OPTIONS

At a special general meeting of the Company held
on 22 July 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the share option scheme
(the “Scheme”), pursuant to which the directors may
grant options to eligible persons (as defined under
the Scheme) to subscribe for shares in the Company
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. The
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of shareholders’ approval. The aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
options schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time.

Each share option under the Scheme entitles the
holder to subscribe for one share of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price, which is to be determined
by the Board of Directors provided always that it shall
be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange for the date of offer of grant
(which is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer
for the grant of an option is accepted by the eligible
person), which must be a business day; and (i) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of grant.

27

ok 7 S 5 R A B

i8R R

KRRIRZEZE-F+tA+ZHE
THRERFIAE L ARFARRE
o RERMERER S (58] &
b EFARAEEBAL(ER RE
ENERTHERE ZZFEATUREG
BRI ART D o 518 7] &%
THEREMIROHDEETEESR
BMEM-AEZEBARABEETRAN
10% ° AT ET &l sk A A A E A H
AR ETE 2 HERTFEEKRIT
FTHEREMBITHORNOBE 715
HBEANT TR EITRANSO °

FEITHE O BRER THE AR -
EHESSETHNERRE —RBRAE
NEFREE0I0E TR - R
EZEBERATLR  (\HTHBEE
BATEABREZAERETEE -
BV EAREEZER EARMNEBR A
BRREXRMATHKTE  RiET
BREZSANAEEEARNEB
FTBHBERNFHRMERED
BEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao o B 25 R Mk

27 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 27 BRRE(E)
Movements in the number of share options WARITERERESE K EMEE N
outstanding and their related weighted average BEHTEEEsHNT

exercise prices are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F

Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price per of share price per of share
share options share options

ERTH SR
TEE BREXE TEE  BREHE
(HK$) (thousands) (HK$) (thousands)
(B7x) (F4) (&) (1)

At beginning of year =3) 2.185 1,073 2.185 1,625

Lapsed BEXM 2.185 (1,073) 2185 (552)

At end of year FR = 2185 1,073

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to AREBTEEZFNIETETUERE R

repurchase or settle the options in cash. For the year BOEEERE BE-_T ==

ended 28 February 2023, approximately 1,073,000 F_AZHTNBLEE SRAET

(2022: 552,000) share options at an adjusted exercise {8 £2.185% JT 2 #91,073,000 (==&

price of HK$2.185 were lapsed. — % :552,000)fp BEIRED KR °

Number Number
(Adjusted) of share (Adjusted) of share
Exercise options as at Exercise  options as at
price per 28 February price per 28 February
share 2023 share 2022
R-B-=% RZE-Z
(#%) —A=tNH (#%) Z—HA=tNR
BRTEE BREHA BRITEE  BREHE
(HK$) (thousands) (HK$) (thousands)
(B7x) (F4) (BT (1)
Expiry date at: B8R
9 July 2022 “T--%+ANA
(Note (a)) (Hit (@) - - 2.185 1,073

Note: Hiat -

(a) Become exercisable from a range of dates between 10 July (@ ARBAZE—"NFEATHEEZ_ZT—X
2014 and 10 July 2016 and expiring on the 10th anniversary FEATHEBTAITE B RE LA
from date of grants of 10 July 2012. ZE—CZFEATHRBIRI0OAFZHE

AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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27 SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 28 February 2023, no amount
was recognised and included in “employee benefit
expenses” (2022: Nil).

27 BRREE)
BE-_Z-_=F-_A-t)\BILEFE"
WEEREEERALTAEERF
A IR( T —F:8],)-

28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 28

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
in Hong Kong based on employee pensionable
remuneration and length of service.

BRABAEME
AN ERE R B R IKE B & RS F
HRBBHEITAERNEREEE -

The amounts, included in trade and other payables
(Note 24), recognised in the consolidated balance

EHEARNGEAEEABER AR
5 FEAT BR T8 N B b & A< BR 18 (B 55 24)

sheet are determined as follows: e
2023 2022
—_E—-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARETT
Present value of defined benefit AERMETRE
obligations 16 19
Liability in the consolidated balance RiFEEERBERMARE
sheet 16 19

FA - AERNEERENE S W

The movement in the present value of defined benefit

obligations over the year is as follows: Ik

2023 2022

—ZE=-= —EF=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
At beginning of year F 4] 19 55
Interest cost A - —
Current service cost IR AR 7% B X 1 1
Payment AT - (163)
Actuarial (gains)/losses BECaF), B8 (6) 127
Exchange realignment ERFE 2 1)
At end of year F 16 19
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A MR i

28 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 28 EAKEFNEEE)
(CONTINUED)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income REGEEBEERERNESBLOT
statement are as follows:
2023 2022
—EB-=F —_EF_-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR%®TTT
Interest cost included in staff costs FABIRAZFE - —
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as TERNBEREKRERWDOT:
follows:
2023 2022
—E=-= = = —
Discount rate IR E 1.22% 1.22%
Future salary increase rate AR R Fr B hn b =X 2.00% 2.00%
29 RESERVES 29 f#E
Employee
Capital  Exchange Share-based
Share  redemption translation Statutory  Contributed Retained Capital compensation Other
premium reserve reserve reserves surplus earnings reserve reserve reserve Total
(Note (3))
EERf
ROEE AXEERE NERERE EERE BARR RERA Exifk BHERE HbER @it
(Ki(a))
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARMTn ARETR ARMTR AR%TR ARMTR  ARETn  AR¥TIr ARETR
At 1 March 2022 g S
=h-H 88,982 145 (58,127) 47,145 3,076 530,311 4812 19,679 9 636,032
Comprehensive loss 2EBE
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (50,271) - - - (50,271)
Other comprehensive Efp2EKA
income
Currency translation EXEE
differences - - 9,779 - - - - - - 9,779
Retirement benefit RRBHERE
obligation - - - - - - - - 6 6
Transection with owners — HEEHEAZXS
Share option scheme EhRiEHE
— share option lapsed - BREER - - - - - 19,679 - (19,679) = -
At 28 February 2023 i —_—
—A-tNH 88,982 145 (48,348) 47,145 3,076 499,719 4,812 - 15 595,546
Representing; f&:
Others Eft
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b P B A i

29 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29 FHE(E)
Employee
Capital Exchange Share-based
Share redemption translation Statutory  Contributed Retained Capital  compensation Other
premium reserve reserve reserves surplus earnings reserve reserve reserve Total
(Note (a)
EERH
RiEE EXEEEE NEAERR EERE YARB REEH BhEE BHER HibHk &t
(Hit)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETr  ARBTrn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 March 2021 R-B--%
=A-H 88,982 145 45,727) 47,145 3,076 819,028 4812 20,101 136 937,698
Comprehensive income ~~ 2EKA
Profit for the year ERaR - - - - - 2,980 - - - 2,980
Other comprehensive loss 21t 2 EE
Currency translation EREE
differences - - (12,400) - - - - - - 12400)
Retirement benefit RINRHER
obligation - - - - - - - - (127) (127)
Transaction with owners ~ EEXEEAZRS
Share option scheme EiRETE
— share option lapsed - BREXR - - - - - 42 - (422 - -
Dividends ke - - - - - (292,119) - - - (292,119)
At 28 February 2022 RZB-ZE
ZAZtNE 88,982 145 (58,127) 47,145 3,076 530,311 4812 19,679 9 636,032
Representing; ftx:
Others Eft 636,082
Note: Bt -
(@)  Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion and (@) FEERBENPEKLREEHHEAR

general reserve funds set up by subsidiaries established
and operated in the PRC. As stipulated by regulation in the
PRC, the subsidiaries are required to appropriate to statutory
reserves an amount of not less than 5% or 10% of the amount
of profit after income tax of respective the PRC subsidiaries,
calculated based on the PRC accounting standards. Should
the accumulated total of the statutory reserves reach 50% of
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries
will not be required to make any further appropriation. Pursuant
to relevant the PRC regulations, the general reserve fund may
be used to make up losses or to increase the capital of the
corresponding subsidiaries whilst the enterprise expansion
fund may be used to expand the corresponding subsidiaries’
production operations or to increase the capital of the
corresponding subsidiaries.

s GhmexhrRE-—RERESR -
BHRBEMRRE WEBRRAREE®B
HH o 2B ORNBFEEAENHES
Fh B B B & A B9 B BT 1S R 1R ik A #956% K
10% ° WA ERBRELBETEMBE L
B AL A AR 950% » B BB A RIS B 2B B 1
HEER - REEBPERE —RERE
SR AEEBERRIEMARMNE AR
BA MeFxAREASAAAERERTSH
B R EY AR E ST K 0 N AR B P B 2 Rl Y
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE
o B B 5 AR M

D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 COMMITMENTS 30 A&IiE
Capital commitments EAREIE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETTT
Contracted but not provided for, in ERTAE I BT IR B E —
respect of — purchase of property, EHREEYME  HER
plant and equipment B
- 363
31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31 BB ITEDE
2023 2022
—ZE2=-= —_E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TFIT
Financial assets at amortised cost: T E B E LR A S R
Trade and other receivables 5 rEKEEIE &
H 4ty e e BR IR 42,290 48,206
Deposits i oA 11,822 11,257
Pledged bank deposit B IRITF - 647
Cash and bank balances e MIR1T4 8 371,606 442 642
425,718 502,752
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETTT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: = Gt B (& 15 # #5 5% 7851/ -
Trade and other payables BS5RMNERER
H fth BT AR 1B 57,855 63,259
Lease liabilities MEBE 37,299 47,314
95,154 110,573
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A i

32 BANKING FACILITIES AND GUARANTEES 32 BITHERER

The banking facilities made available to subsidiaries AIEHAEBRNWB AR SHAHWEITRE
of the Group are as follows: BREEWNT:

2023 2022
—EC-=E —E-CF
Available Facilities Available Facilities
facilities utilised facilities utilised
TRHEE CBHREE AAEE EEREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%¥Tn AR%®Tr ARET:x

Banking facilities granted to  [A1 7~ 5 B[ B 2 5] & ih

subsidiaries of the Group ~ HIRTTREEE 40,113 - 57,360 20,840
As at 28 February 2023, no amount of facilities RZZFEZ=F_A=Z+/\HB - T &ESF
were utilised for bank loan (2022: approximately ARMEREERFTER(ZE-_Z
RMB20,200,000) and bank guarantee (2022: # A R #20,200,0007T) & R 17 #& 1%
approximately RMB640,000). (ZZE=ZZF : HH AR ®640,0007T) °

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 FHEEALNRES
(a) Related parties (a) BERAEAL
As at 28 February 2023, Stable Gain Holdings R—_E-_=Z=F_A=-_+N\8"
Limited held 31.94% (2022: 31.94%) equity Stable Gain Holdings Limited ¥
interest in the Company as the single largest oW N/NECT IR e VL7 Gl =St
shareholder. 31.94%) K IR A= - BE — &
RNARER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 FEEALINXRS (E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transaction with a related party (b) E—(UBEEALTZRE
Significant transaction with a related party, H-—RAEBATETZEFER
which was carried out in the normal course of ST ASEBEERKPHETT
the Group’s business, is summarised as follows: IBEaan T

2023 2022
—E—-= —EF=-=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Rental expenses charged by a mM—fBEBEEALIZM

related party (Note) MeRX(HZ) 628 —

Note: Bt -

For the year ended 28 February 2023, the Group rented a shop st :Kt:g:_iilj —+N\R Jt/if‘% VN
located in Macau from Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a substantial &H @%’SQEZIRJ?Q%#%**?%?%ET
shareholder of the Company, as a retail outlet in Macau (2022: — A RORPIRIE S ERRPIM T EPI™
Nil). (ZZ==F:8|)-

(c) Key management compensation (c) XEEEHEMS
The directors are considered key management ESHRRAREZTRZERE -

of the Group.

2023 2022
—_ZE-= —Eo—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT AR®TTT

Salaries and other short-term e hEMCHEERA

employee benefits 3,896 4,517
Employer’s contributions to EXRIKSFEHR

retirement scheme 36 24

3,932 4,541
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE 34 APREEEBREGE
COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) XLAFEEREBX
As at As at
28 February 28 February
2023 2022
R-ZEZ= A = ——
—A=+NH —“A=-+N\H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

P & AR TR ARBETT

Assets EE
Non-current assets EMENE E
Interests in subsidiaries LSNP 3 271,779 283,613
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H b e W BR 18 230 205
Cash and bank balances B & MIRTT 4 8 1,736 1,594
______19%6 1799
Total assets REE 273,745 285,412
Equity &=
Capital and reserves ZIN/NETE: EE = =N

&
attributable to the owners  JE {5 J& 7N K £ {8
of the Company

Share capital ELEN 26 59,979 59,979

Reserves % 34(b) 212,615 224,357
Total equity mgx 272,504 284,336
Liabilities =
Current liabilities mEEE

Accruals fEET & A 1,151 1,076
Total liabilities mAE o ____1151 1076
Total equity and liabilities — #m &k BERE 273,745 285,412
The balance sheet of the Company was RARlzBEEBERERC
approved by the Board of Director on 29 May T=FRAZThBEZES=SH
2023 and was signed on its behalf. o WHTIIATREESE
James Ngai Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
7 M & "Ey
Chairman Director
TE EF
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE 34 ARREEEBRNHEEE)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AT FESE
Employee
Capital  Exchange share-hased
Share  redemption translation ~ Contributed Retained  compensation
premium reserve reserve surplus gamings reserve Total
EERf

RfiEf EXRERE AERERE  SARBR  REEA ELE it
RMB'OO0O ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARETn  ARMTR  AREfR

At 1 March 2022 W-E-ZE-R-E 88,962 145 (30,475) 11,849 134177 19,679 224,357
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year EhER - - - - (11,742) - (1,742)
Tansacton vith owners —— EEZEEAZRH
Share option scheme BhREHE
—share opfion lapsed - BREXH - - - - 19,679 (19679) -

At 28 February 2023 -2
ZAZTIE 88,962 145 (30,475) 11,849 142,114 - 212,615

Representing; R&:
Others £ff 212,615
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

34 AARNEERBREME(E)

(b) XATFHEEE (R

(Continued)
Employee
Capital Exchange share-based
Share  redemption frandlation ~ Contributed Retained  compensation
premium reserve reserve surplus gamings feServe Total
E2RD
KiviE ZABOES SEMEER  GARR  REEN ek i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARMTT  ARETT ARMTR  ARETR  ARETRH
At 1 March 2021 N-E-E=F-R 88982 145 (30,475 11,849 426,706 20,101 517,308
Comprehensive loss REER
Loss for the year EmgE - - - - (332 - 632
Tansacton vith owners — EEZEEA 25
Share option scheme BRETE
— share option lapsed - BREXR - - - - 42 (429 -
Dividends RE - - - - 292,119 - (292,119
At 28 February 2022 i S
AN 88,982 145 (30,475) 11849 184177 19,679 24,367
Representing; R&:
Others Hit 204,37
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TR B

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

AEBZHEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“EC=F “ZT--F T T —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETH ARETT AR®TR
Revenue W s 413,227 569,034 594217 736,387 908,784
Operating (loss)/profit g (BR)/ &7 (60,222) 17,351 163,106 (28,164)  (24,947)
Finance income, net BB - F58 7,065 6,197 4,967 6,890 11,508
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETGE A (BE)/
i Al (53,157 23,548 168,073 (21,274) (13,439)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiERmG /() 1,890 (20,907) (61,922 (9,046) (13,889
(Loss)/profit for the years FR(EE)/ & (51,267) 2,641 106,151 (30,320)  (27,328)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: e (BB),/aH
— owners of the Company — AREER
BEA (50,271) 2,980 106,154 (30,519)  (28,032)
— non-controlling interest - kERER (996) (339) (3) 199 704

(51,267) 2,641 106,151 (30,320) (27,328)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

oA B
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP
rEBZEEREE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZE-=f -—T--F —E--F —T-TF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Investment properties, property, RENE Y%
plant and equipment and BERFBER
land use rights T HIE R 87,734 85,507 83,780 129,973 230,108
Right-of-use assets FREEE 34,869 52,761 34,439 37,969 -
Long-term deposits and prepayments & $#& & kB HE 3,118 2,624 1,485 3,421 4,632
Deferred income tax assets EEMEHELE 32,390 32,150 29,619 55,332 54,302
Net current assets MBEEFE 538,401 586,024 893,544 774,490 924,993
696,512 759,066 1,042,867 1,001,185 1,214,035
Total equity B 663,636 705,339 1,007,947 961,704 1,186,166
Deferred income tax liabilities EEmMGHEAE 18,312 28,800 24,197 24,757 27,869
Lease liabilities HEERE 14,564 24,927 10,723 14,724 -
696,512 759,066 1,042,867 1,001,185 1,214,035
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BBV

Location Type Tenure

it Bk gz HAME

(@ Shop Nos. 5 & 6, Shop Medium lease
215 & 217 Qi Sha Road,
Block 1, Hao Jing Hua Yuan,
West District, Zhongshan,
Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China
RE AR AFE BRG] HHERAE 49
BREAH LT
79 @ I 7 B 215 %2 217 5%
5 = A6 B — 185 K% 65% #

(b) Res-Do-Chao B, Vai Son Kok, Shop Privately owned
No.26 Rua De. S. Domingos,
Macau
B P EE AR
AT = 7265

2k JIE B 3 T B g
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Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service:
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